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{ FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS}

2002 /2001
(In millions) Change 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

FOR THE YEAR
Income from continuing operations +6 % 317.1 298.6 161.7 194.1 143.4
Net income -9 % 256.3 283.0 161.7 194.1 143.4

PER SHARE
Income from continuing operations - diluted +6 % 3.44 3.24 1.86 2.26 1.75
Net income - diluted -9 % 2.78 3.07 1.86 2.26 1.75
Net income - basic -10 % 2.80 3.10 1.87 2.29 1.77
Dividends declared - .80 .80 .89 .72 .54
Book value 1 +6 % 26.17 24.74 20.42 19.39 17.39
Market price - end 39.35 52.58 62.44 59.19 62.38
Market price - high 59.65 64.00 62.75 75.88 62.38
Market price - low 34.14 42.30 36.44 49.00 38.38

AT YEAR-END
Assets +9 % 26,566 24,304 21,939 20,281 18,050
Loans and leases +10 % 19,040 17,311 14,378 12,791 11,219
Loans sold being serviced 2 -6 % 2,476 2,648 1,750 1,252 1,040
Deposits +13 % 20,132 17,842 15,070 14,062 14,221
Long-term borrowings +28 % 1,310 1,022 563 566 511
Shareholders’ equity +4 % 2,374 2,281 1,779 1,660 1,453

PERFORMANCE RATIOS
Return on average assets .97 % 1.19 % .74 % .97 % 1.00 %
Return on average shareholders’ equity 10.95 % 13.28 % 9.65 % 12.42 % 10.98 %
Efficiency ratio 63.40 % 61.60 % 64.92 % 3 66.55 % 70.11 %
Net interest margin 4.56 % 4.64 % 4.27 % 4.31 % 4.56 %

CAPITAL RATIOS 1

Equity to assets 8.94 % 9.38 % 8.11 % 8.18 % 8.05 %
Tier 1 leverage 7.56 % 6.56 % 6.38 % 6.16 % 5.91 %
Tier 1 risk-based capital 9.26 % 8.25 % 8.53 % 8.64 % 8.40 %
Total risk-based capital 12.94 % 12.20 % 10.83 % 11.29 % 11.34 %

SELECTED INFORMATION
Average common-equivalent shares (in thousands) 92,079 92,174 87,120 85,695 81,918
Common dividend payout ratio 28.58 % 26.11 % 34.65 % 3 29.33 % 28.40 %
Full-time equivalent employees 8,073 8,124 6,915 6,833 7,099
Commercial banking offices 415 412 373 362 345
ATMs 588 589 509 484 476

1 At year-end.
2 Amount represents the outstanding balance of loans sold and being serviced by the Company,

excluding conforming first mortgage residential real estate loans.
3 Before impairment loss on First Security Corporation common stock.



{ZIONS BANCORPORATION} Zions Bancorporation is one of the
nation’s premier financial services companies, consisting of a
collection of great banks in select high-growth markets. Under
local management teams and community identities, Zions
operates over  full-service banking offices in Arizona,
California, Colorado, Idaho, Nevada, New Mexico, Utah and
Washington. In addition, Zions is a national leader in SBA
lending, public finance advisory services, agricultural finance and
electronic bond trading. The Company is included in the S&P
 Index. Investor information and links to subsidiary banks can
be accessed at www.zionsbancorporation.com.
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The highlight of  for many of us at Zions Bancorporation was the highly
successful Olympic Winter Games, held here in Salt Lake City. In the
aftermath of the September ,  terrorist attacks, the Games were a
powerful symbol to the entire world of so much that is good; a reminder of
the freedoms and values we cherish in this country, and of what we are
individually and collectively capable of achieving. 

The Olympic Winter Games were also a reminder that great accomplishment
is only possible when great challenges are encountered. This past year has, in
very many respects, been a challenging time. A stagnant economy in most of
the western United States has resulted in a difficult banking environment.
Nevertheless, Zions Bancorporation’s credit quality and its fundamental
financial results remained strong, and we remain optimistic about the future. 

{Financial Results}
Zions Bancorporation’s net income from continuing operations reached .

million or . per diluted share, an increase of .% from the . million
or . per diluted share earned in . However, reported GAAP net
income in  was . million or . per diluted share, a decrease of .%

from the . million or . per diluted share earned the previous year.

During , Zions Bancorporation took steps to sell, discontinue or
significantly reduce the size and scope of several technology businesses—
including most prominently our subsidiary companies Digital Signature Trust
Company and Lexign, Inc.—that had failed to meet our financial expectations.
Write-downs were also taken on investments in our venture capital portfolio,
reflecting weakness in the technology sector, and on the Company’s minority
investment in an investment banking firm, reflecting the very difficult
environment in that industry. During the previous year, the Company had
experienced write-downs in its venture capital portfolio, though these were
more than offset by a substantial gain resulting from the sale of Star System,
Inc., in which Zions was a substantial investor, to Concord EFS, Inc.

Comparisons between the two years are further complicated by changes in
accounting principles in both years, as required by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board of all public U.S. companies. The most significant of these
changes resulted in eliminating the amortization of goodwill in the Company’s
income statement subsequent to .

The effect on income of these accounting changes, the discontinuation of
some of the Company’s technology-related businesses and of unusual gains and
losses recognized on securities is reflected in the following table:

To our { Shareholders}
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The underlying income from continuing operations, before
the cumulative effect of accounting changes, was up .%

in , as reflected in the above table.

The Company’s total revenue, as adjusted for certain
equity securities gains and losses, increased .% in .
This reflects strong internally generated balance sheet
growth, with average earning assets increasing .%

during the year, but a somewhat weaker net interest
margin of .% in  as compared to .% in .
The historically low levels of interest rates experienced
during the year created margin compression as core
deposits such as demand and savings accounts were
invested at lower yields than in previous periods. The
adjusted noninterest income component of revenue
increased .%, reflecting strong growth in service charge
and commission income, offset by a significant decrease in
income from loan sales and servicing.

Operating expenses, as adjusted for the discontinuation 
of goodwill amortization and other identified items,
increased .% during . While good progress was
made in reducing or controlling a number of discretionary
cost items, higher compensation and employee benefits
costs—which increased a combined .% in —were
experienced largely as a result of increased employee
incentive programs and higher medical and pension-
related costs. At year-end , the Company
implemented changes to its retirement plans to freeze
defined-benefit pension plan accruals and initiate new
defined contribution plan arrangements. While the
changes are intended to have a neutral effect on operating
costs, the new plan design should create a more stable
pattern of Company expenses in future years.

(In millions) 2002 2001 % Change

Net interest income (as reported) $ 1,035.1 949.8 9.0%
Noninterest income (as reported) 376.8 412.2 -8.6%
Less: adjustments to noninterest income 1 (28.7) 31.2 -192.0%
Adjusted noninterest income 405.5 381.0 6.4%
Adjusted total revenue 1,440.6 1,330.8 8.3%
Noninterest expense (as reported) 858.9 836.1 2.7%
Less: amortization of goodwill 2 - 31.5 -100.0%
Less: other adjustments to noninterest expense 3 8.2 7.3 12.3%
Adjusted noninterest expense 850.7 797.3 6.7%
Provision for loan losses (as reported) 71.9 73.2 -1.8%
Adjusted income from continuing operations

(before income taxes and minority interest) 518.0 460.3 12.5%
Income taxes on adjusted income from 

continuing operations and minority interest 178.1 144.8 23.0%
Adjusted income from continuing operations 339.9 315.5 7.7%
Loss on discontinued operations, net of tax (28.4) (8.4) 238.1%
Impairment losses included in discontinued operations,

net of tax 22.7 - -
Goodwill amortization included in discontinued operations - 2.4 -100.0%
Net income without unusual items and goodwill amortization $ 334.2 309.5 8.0%

1 Adjusts for certain equity securities gains (losses) as identified on page 27

2 Adjusts for amortization of goodwill as explained on page 27

3 Adjusts for merger related expense, restructuring charges and certain impairment charges identified on page 27



Zions Bancorporation Annual Report 2002

{4}

{E-Commerce Investments}
While we are pleased with the strength exhibited by our
underlying banking business last year, the Company’s
reported net income suffered significantly as a result of
the poor performance of several of our e-commerce
investments. This under-performance was responsible for
the . million charge reflected under the cumulative
effect of accounting change in , as goodwill
associated with these investments was written down to
realizable value. The operating results of two of these
ventures, Phaos Technology Corporation and Lexign,
Inc., are reported under the category of discontinued
operations in the Company’s financial statements. Phaos
Technology Corporation was sold in the fourth quarter of
, and Lexign, Inc. was substantially restructured. 
A third venture, Digital Signature Trust Company, was
sold during  in exchange for a % interest in its
buyer, Identrus, LLC. Like Digital Signature Trust
Company, Identrus—which is owned by a consortium 
of leading banks in the U.S. and abroad—provides
security and authentication services for online
transactions. We expect that the actions taken in 

with respect to these investments will substantially reduce
the negative effects of these operations on our financial
results in future periods.

{Credit Quality}
We are very pleased with the Company’s credit quality as
measured by net charge-offs of loans and leases and by the
level of nonperforming assets. Net charge-offs totaled 

million in , or .% of average loans and leases. While
this was an increase from the  million, or .% of loans
and leases charged off in , it was nevertheless much
stronger than the industry’s performance. FDIC data for the
first three quarters of  indicates that average net
charged-off loans for the nation’s insured banks was .%,
and .% for banks with assets of greater than  billion. 

Nonperforming assets, consisting of nonaccrual loans,
other real estate owned (primarily foreclosed properties)
and restructured loans, totaled  million or .% of
net loans, leases and other real estate at year-end , as
compared to  million or .% at the end of .
These ratios reflect great strength relative to the norms in
the industry, particularly in light of the weak economy 

experienced in much of the West during the past year. At
a time when many large banking companies have
experienced high levels of stress in their portfolios of
commercial and industrial loans, the most recent
available data indicates that, among the nation’s twenty-
five largest bank holding companies, as measured by
domestic commercial loans, Zions ranked number one in
terms of the quality of this portfolio.

{The Economy}
The economy throughout the western United States has
suffered in recent months as a result of the decline in
demand for high-tech products and a concurrent severe
reduction in venture capital investment, overcapacity in
the telecommunications sector, reduced travel and
tourism activity, strained local government budgets and
drought. These conditions have led to net job losses in
nearly every major market in which the Company
operates, with the exceptions of southern California and
southern Nevada. There, growth has continued, though at
a much slower pace. 

The major bright spot in an otherwise difficult economic
picture has been the housing market. With inflation
remaining near .%, short-term interest rates have been
lowered to levels not seen since the early s, and 
long-term rates, including home mortgage rates, have
followed. This has been a boon for housing, allowing
large numbers of first-time buyers to purchase homes,
and existing homeowners to refinance—creating a great
deal of stimulus to an economy which would otherwise
be experiencing even greater stress than has been evident.

While economic conditions will likely remain weak
throughout much of , over the longer term, the West
continues to offer all the conditions necessary for strong
growth. As world demand picks up, the West should
benefit from its incredible pool of technology, human
capital and infrastructure; its favorable location relative to
the Pacific Rim; its natural resources and its quality
lifestyle. All indicators continue to point to a higher rate
of population growth in the West than in other parts of
the country over the next two decades, and with that
growth will come jobs and economic activity.
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{Focusing on the Fundamentals}
As we enter , we are focused on the fundamentals—on doing basic things
well. Our first priority is to maintain strong credit quality. A great deal of hard
work has been done over more than a decade to build a solid credit culture, and
it’s now paying off. We’ll continue to devote resources to training our people and
providing them with the systems necessary to monitor and manage credit wisely.

We are also focused on keeping operating costs in check. We’ve made a good start
in the latter half of  in paring our expense structure. We’ll continue to
consolidate our operating platform and find more efficient ways to provide back-
office services. At the same time, we’ll continue to critically examine those
activities and parts of our business which aren’t sufficiently profitable and which
are unlikely to improve, with a view towards eliminating them. 

Finally, we’ll work hard to create for our customers the strongest banking
relationships in the West. This is a people business, and the strong relationships
that create enduring franchise value for Zions Bancorporation can only be built
by exceptional people. We have some great ones in this Company. The U.S. Small
Business Administration recently recognized us as being the eighth most “small-
business-friendly” bank in the country, and the top small business lender
headquartered west of the Mississippi River. This is the result of operating like 
a small business in our own right. We place a premium on having strong local
bankers in the communities we serve, on their involvement in those communities
and on personally knowing their customers. I’m confident that this approach to
banking will continue to allow us to do great things in the future.

{A Salute to Roy W. Simmons}
At our annual shareholders’ meeting in April , we honored Roy W. Simmons
upon his retirement as Chairman and member of the board of directors of Zions
Bancorporation. He was named Chairman Emeritus, and we’ll continue to value
his insight and friendship for years to come. Roy Simmons literally created Zions
Bancorporation, and his vision and hard work in building this great Company,
based upon the philosophy that “People Mean Everything,” has provided
enormous dividends to our customers, our past and present employees and to our
owners. It’s been my privilege to work with—and to learn from—him for over
thirty years. Great though he’s been as a banker, he’s an even better father, for
which I’ll ever be grateful.

Respectfully,

{Harris Simmons} 

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

February , 
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An Interview with

In a year defined by a declining stock market, unparalleled corporate malfeasance, and an

economy still rising from the ashes of 9/11, investors now scrutinize the intentions of

corporate leaders as closely as they would a quarterly report. As a result, “full disclosures”

have become the rule more than the exception, and investors now have access to unprece-

dented amounts of financial data. 

The turn in events has fueled significant discussion among both investors and board members.

As an extension of that discussion, Zions Bancorporation solicited questions from a number

of its shareholders and addressed them to Zions Bancorporation chairman and CEO, Harris

H. Simmons. The resulting interview offers insights that transcend a “Letter to Shareholders,”

covering topics ranging from Zions’ real estate loans to the prospects for future growth. 

Simmons’ responses allow investors to participate in a candid conversation with the man who

has led Zions Bancorporation from a local bank with . billion in assets to a regional bank

with over  billion. His discussion also confirms just how stable Zions Bancorporation’s

fundamental business has been in a year of remarkable turbulence.

{ Harris Simmons }
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{HARRIS SIMMONS} At the end of , our total commercial real estate
portfolio—which we define to include all construction loans, both residential
and commercial, plus non-owner-occupied term loans secured by commercial
real estate—totaled . billion. And this portfolio grew less than % during
the year. Nearly half of this portfolio, . billion, is made up of construction
loans. And about half of those construction loans, . billion, are residential
construction loans. 

This portfolio has actually been our strongest performer in recent quarters. In
, our net charge-offs on commercial real estate loans were only about
.% of average loans outstanding. This compares with the .% rate for the
entire loan portfolio. And while commercial construction activity has slowed
recently in the West, and vacancies in some product types have increased,
housing markets continue to be reasonably strong, particularly in the more
affordable product categories where we have focused our efforts.

We perform stress tests on our commercial real estate portfolio to evaluate the
effects of different levels of default rates and losses. Based on these tests, we
believe that if we were to experience the “-year flood” levels of defaults
and losses which we saw in the late s, our capital at risk would amount
to only about .% of our combined shareholders’ equity and loss reserves.
And that’s before any tax benefits from such losses. The reason the capital
exposure is much lower today than in the last cycle is that customers’ equity
in real estate transactions is typically much stronger today than has been the
case in the past. In fact, we currently gauge our average loan-to-value ratios—
which are loan commitments as a percentage of appraised value at the
inception of the transaction—to be about %, which is well below the levels
we were seeing in the s. 

Additionally, we are structuring and monitoring our loans in a more
disciplined manner than we did during the last cycle. This is generally true of
other lenders as well. And we benefit from the fact that some of the large,
rogue savings and loan institutions, which exacerbated the excessive flow of
capital into the real estate sector in the s, are no longer with us.

All of these factors result in a risk profile, and portfolio performance, that
leave us quite comfortable with the risk-adjusted returns we are seeing in this
business, and with the total size of our exposure to it.

Shareholder Question<<

Zions seems to have a heavy

concentration in commercial 

real estate loans. With vacancy 

rates at or near the highest levels

in a decade, could deteriorating 

real estate loans damage profits 

in the next few quarters?



Shareholder Question<<

Zions recently exited several high

tech ventures after spending

mill ions of dollars on businesses

that never made money. Will these

businesses result in additional

future write-offs, and what have 

you done to avoid such mistakes 

in  the future? And has th is

experience reduced your appetite

for such ventures?

{HARRIS SIMMONS} Our objective in making a number of e-commerce related
investments during the past few years was to increase our sources of non-
interest revenue in areas that leveraged some of a bank’s core strengths, such 
as the ability to provide third-party authentication of parties to online
transactions, which is essentially a fiduciary function. At the time we made
these investments, we believed they had substantial growth potential. And it
was widely believed that the failure to make these kinds of investments could
jeopardize the future of the Company.

But spending in the technology sector has plummeted over the past two years,
and the adoption of these technologies has been dramatically slower than
industry analysts had forecast. So we have sold our interests or pared way back
on the resources we are devoting to these businesses. There continue to be
opportunities which have arisen from these investments which still appear to
hold promise. We are continuing to nurture some of these opportunities,
though with greatly reduced expenditures and a much smaller component of
management’s time devoted to them.

In building any business, you’re likely to drill a few dry holes. The total
amount we invested in these businesses was not great in relationship to our
capital, and while we’ve been disappointed with the results of some of these
investments, they’ve now been written down to the point that they pose little
future risk to our earnings. Our appetite for such investments is indeed
dramatically reduced from what it had been. But it will always be important
that we take measured risks and experiment with new opportunities as we look
for ways to grow.
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Shareholder Question<<

For many years Zions was viewed 

as a growth company, but in recent

quarters neither revenues nor

earnings per share have grown

significantly, and investors have

increasingly viewed Zions as a value

stock. Are the growth days over?

{HARRIS SIMMONS} We have a great franchise in what have historically been
some of the fastest growing states in the nation. This has allowed us to achieve
some of the best growth in the industry over the past decade. Over the past
five years, our growth in revenue per share, adjusted for gains and losses
on securities, has averaged .%—well above the industry average of
approximately .%. This past year, our revenue growth dipped to .%. While
this isn’t what we’d like to see, it was better than the industry’s experience and
it was achieved during a period of economic stagnation in the West. 

So I think we’ve actually had reasonably good revenue growth. We need to
work on operating costs. Our goal is to reach a level of operating expenses by
the second quarter of  which, when adjusted for the rate of revenue
growth, is  million below the level we were operating at during the same
period in .

I don’t think our days as a growth story are over. As we look to the future, we
still see a great opportunity to generate above-average growth for Zions
Bancorporation. As local economies recover, we expect the long-term
population and employment growth rates in the western United States to
outpace those of the nation as a whole, and we believe we’re well positioned to
take advantage of the opportunities that growth will provide. Growth has to be
what we focus on, and we’re in markets that should allow us to grow very nicely.

Shareholder Question<<

While e-commerce has fallen out 

of favor, the Internet is sti l l  very

large and growing and has changed

the way people do business. 

Do you anticipate growth in Internet

banking? And what new services

might you offer via the Internet?

{HARRIS SIMMONS} The Internet may not have “changed everything.” But in
certain industries and for certain applications, it is nevertheless having a major
impact. Online banking was much slower to take hold than many had
expected. But it is becoming clear that a very substantial portion of our
business and our interactions with customers will take place over the Internet. 

We provide some great products through our online banking sites, including
some relatively unique products. For example, we offer online secured
storage of a customer’s personal computer files–a sort of virtual safe deposit
box. We also offer a personalized messaging service that can provide a
customer, via e-mail, with useful information, such as when the balance in
an account reaches a given threshold. This year, customers will see
improvements in the online availability of posted check images, and we will
begin providing the ability to receive account statements electronically.
Small business customers will also see a number of improvements in the
services we provide them over the Internet.

And the good news is the cost of providing these enhanced services is
declining, due in part to better vendor-provided software.



{WE WILL CONTINUE TO LOOK FOR OPPORTUNITIES TO ACQUIRE

COMPANIES THAT COMPLEMENT OUR OPERATIONS.}
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Shareholder Question<<

As the value of Zions stock—and

equities in general—have declined

over the past three years, stock

repurchases have failed to give

shareholders any observable return.

Would you consider raising the

dividend in order to provide

shareholders with real cash return

on their investment?

{HARRIS SIMMONS} Subsequent to year-end, we raised the dividend modestly,
to . per quarter. Our board of directors’ philosophy towards dividends 
is significantly influenced by current U.S. tax law which results in the 
double taxation of dividends. Most investors consider the total return to
shareholders—the combination of dividends and the change in the price of
their shares—as the best measure of investment performance. The Company
has been an active purchaser of its own shares in the open market. In fact, we
repurchased over  million of our shares in . Such repurchases afford
shareholders who wish to receive cash in exchange for shares to do so on their
own timetable, and with any income taxed at the capital gains tax rate as
opposed to the generally more punitive personal income tax rate. At the same
time, future income from the Company’s operations is divided over a smaller
remaining number of outstanding shares; so the pie belonging to shareholders
is cut into fewer slices, resulting in a higher stock price than would be the case
had those shares not been repurchased.

The board of directors recognizes that we have shareholders who desire a steady
and increasing stream of dividends. My expectation is that we will continue to
increase the dividend in the years ahead as the capital demands of our growth
allow, but that we will maintain a conservative dividend policy until such time
as the federal government’s tax policy on dividends changes for the better.
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Shareholder Question<<

Zions operates very autonomous

banks in the different states, yet it

seems that some customers would

benefit from being able to do

transactions across the state lines

that divide your banks. Also, it

would seem that maintaining

independent banks is inherently

less cost efficient. Would you

consider consolidating charters to

gain efficiencies and provide

broader services?

{HARRIS SIMMONS} Well, no strategy should ever be thought of as being
beyond challenge or permanent. But having said that, our strategy has served
us extremely well, and it continues to do so. Our organizational structure—by
which we operate a “Collection of Great Banks” with local identities,
management teams and decision-making in each of our major markets—sets us
apart from some of the very large banks that operate in the western United
States. It is a strategy that has been fundamentally important in attracting and
retaining strong local management, which is so important to building a
customer relationship-centered business. And it imbues these local
management teams with a sense that they can make a real difference. They can
experience the satisfaction that comes from really running and building their
own businesses. And that, in turn, has been one of the secrets to sustaining
some of the best revenue-per-share growth in the industry over the past decade.

At the same time, we continue to work at identifying functions that can be
centralized or outsourced to reduce operating costs. These are typically back-
office operations such as call centers or deposit processing operations that are
“invisible” to our customers. As we continue to do this, we will also find new
opportunities to serve customers across the boundaries of our various banks.

Any strategy involves trade-offs, and certainly by being organized more along
geographic lines as opposed to business lines, we give up some opportunities.
But we’re sold on the model we’ve been employing. We believe that, all-in-all,
it gives us the best of what a community bank has to offer while capturing
many of the benefits of size. And in the process it has allowed our basic
banking operations to perform very nicely.





{ IT WILL ALWAYS BE IMPORTANT THAT WE TAKE MEASURED CHANCES AND

EXPERIMENT WITH NEW OPPORTUNITIES AS WE LOOK FOR WAYS TO GROW.}
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Shareholder Question<<

Much of Zions’  historic growth has

come from acquisit ions.  Do you

anticipate continued growth 

through acquisit ions in the next 

few years, and if so, in what

geographies or businesses?

{HARRIS SIMMONS} Since , our total assets have grown by  billion
–from . billion to $. billion. The total assets of companies we acquired
during this period totaled approximately . billion. So, while acquisitions
have provided important diversification outside our original “home” market of
Utah, internal growth has also played a very important role. This is reflected
in the strong growth in revenue per share, which has increased at a
compounded rate of nearly % over the past dozen years.

Acquisition activity in the banking industry has slowed dramatically over the
past year. A lot of the reason for this has to do with the expectations of sellers
and the economic realities for buyers. Today there is a significant gap between
the two. The situation has been further aggravated by the elimination of the
pooling-of-interests method of accounting in favor of the purchase method of
accounting. This change, I think, has resulted in more disciplined investment
decisions by buyers and a heightened focus on the economics of business
combinations. And that’s a good thing.

We will continue to look for opportunities to acquire companies that
complement our operations. I expect that most of the deals we’ll consider will
be community bank acquisitions in the western United States—situations where
we can establish the foundation for future growth in solid markets around the
West, or where we can augment existing operations and realize substantial cost
savings as a result. Overall, we’ve been a reasonably successful acquirer of
community banks, and I expect we’ll continue to engage in such transactions—
generally smaller transactions—as the climate for such deals improves.



MY OWN EXPERIENCE WITH ZIONS BANCORPORATION

AND MY VISION FOR ITS FUTURE IS ONE THAT IS ORIENTED 

TOWARDS BUILDING SOMETHING OF ENDURING VALUE.{ }
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Shareholder Question<<

We have experienced what may

well be a historic season of

corporate malfeasance during

recent years. What has Zions done—

and what is it doing—to ensure that

the company is managed with

integrity? Has the company 

adopted new governance policies,

and if so, what are they?

{HARRIS SIMMONS} The corporate misdeeds we’ve witnessed over the past year
and a half have been shocking in their magnitude and tragic in their effect on
investors’ confidence in the market. It might be argued that the commercial
banking industry has a layer of protection not afforded some industries, in
that it is very highly regulated. Government oversight is by no means an
insurance policy against governance breakdowns, but it does provide outside
eyes and ears, and strong advocacy for the active involvement of a financial
institution’s board of directors. It’s also interesting to note that some of the
recent steps taken by Congress to strengthen the role of independent audit
committees reflect regulations imposed on the banking industry a dozen years
ago when the FDIC Improvement Act was enacted. 

Our board has been very actively engaged in implementing the requirements
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. We have broadened the role of the Nominating
Committee to include corporate governance responsibilities. We have
restructured key board committees, including the Audit, Executive
Compensation and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees 
to ensure that members are independent of management. We have updated
the charters for each of our board committees. And we have reviewed and
updated our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics. All of these policies and
charters will shortly be available on our corporate website.

Over the past few years, we have also strengthened the board with outside
directors who bring new perspectives to our business. Last year, Stephen
Quinn joined the board, bringing a wealth of financial expertise. This year
Patricia Frobes has been nominated for election by our shareholders. She
brings a strong real estate and legal background to our board. Our other board
members have a diverse set of backgrounds and viewpoints, which is very
useful to our management team. We have also increased the frequency of our
scheduled board meetings, and the various committees of the board have been
meeting with greater frequency as well. All of this has resulted in greater
participation by board members in the governance of the Company.

But rules and oversight aplenty are of limited value unless a company’s
management establishes the right tone and a healthy culture. And I’m quite
proud of the culture and tone we have in this company. For example, we were
early to move away from earnings guidance, and a lot of companies have
followed that lead.

My own experience with Zions Bancorporation and my vision for its future is
one that is oriented towards building something of enduring value. My
family’s investment in the Company dates back forty-three years, and I’m
hopeful that my own involvement—which itself dates back to —will
extend well into the future. That longevity is, I hope, useful in establishing
values which emphasize long-term value creation without cutting corners—
through strong credit quality, a focus on customer relationships which
produces sustainable revenue growth, and an eye on expenses. �
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Bank Headquarters CEO Offices ATMs Assets Deposits Market Share* State Rank*
(In thousands) of Bank Deposits by Bank Deposits

Salt Lake City A. Scott Anderson 149 208 $ 10,529,580 $ 7,116,514 UT 33% UT #1
ID 3% ID #6

San Diego David E. Blackford 91 108 8,804,855 6,970,139 2% #8

Las Vegas William E. Martin 63 87 2,683,207 2,348,623 9% #4

Phoenix John J. Gisi 53 52 2,925,044 2,486,949 5% #4

Denver Bruce K. Alexander 58 133 2,767,660 1,910,889 4% #4

Seattle Stanley D. Savage 1 - 647,887 458,702 1% #12

* FDIC insured institutions excluding thrifts and industrial loan corporations, 6/30/2002

Zions Bancorporation is one of the nation’s premier financial services
companies, consisting of a collection of great banks in select high-growth
markets. Under local management teams and community identities, Zions
operates over  full-service banking offices in Arizona, California,
Colorado, Idaho, Nevada, New Mexico, Utah and Washington. In addition,
Zions is a national leader in SBA lending, public finance advisory services,
agricultural finance and electronic bond trading. The Company is included
in the S&P  Index. Investor information and links to subsidiary banks
can be accessed at www.zionsbancorporation.com.

Zions Bancorporation { Quick Facts}
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2002



Zions Bancorporation { financial information}



Zions Bancorporation and subsidiaries (“the Company”)
reported net income of $256.3 million for 2002, a decrease
of 9.4% from the $283.0 million earned in 2001, which was
up 75.0% from the $161.7 million earned in 2000. Diluted
net income per share decreased 9.4% to $2.78 in 2002 com-
pared to $3.07 in 2001, which was up 65.1% from $1.86
per diluted share earned in 2000. 

During 2002, the Company elected to discontinue the
operations of certain e-commerce subsidiaries as described
in Note 15 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements. Income from continuing operations for 2002
increased 6.2% to $317.1 million compared to $298.6 mil-
lion for 2001, which was up 84.7% from the $161.7 mil-
lion for 2000. The loss from discontinued operations was
$28.5 million for 2002 compared to $8.4 million for 2001.
There was no loss from discontinued operations in 2000
since the operations of the e-commerce subsidiaries com-
menced in 2001.

Net income for 2002 and 2001 included cumulative effect
adjustments for changes in accounting principles. For 2002,
net income included a charge of $32.4 million related to
goodwill impairment on e-commerce companies upon the
adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) 142 and 2001 included a charge of $7.2 million
related to the adoption of SFAS 133. Income before these
cumulative effect adjustments was $288.6 million for 2002,
a decrease of 0.5% from $290.2 earned in 2001, which was
up 79.4% from $161.7 million earned in 2000.

The Company’s primary business is community and region-
al banking in the Western states. The Company believes
that these core banking businesses have continued to per-
form well in a generally difficult economic environment.
The Company enjoyed strong deposit growth, particularly
in its Zions First National Bank (“ZFNB”) affiliate.
Management believes that a significant portion of this
growth reflects an increase in ZFNB’s market share in Utah;
however, part of this growth may be a result of investors
reducing their exposure to volatile market investments.
Loan growth remained strong through much of the year
despite slow economic growth, although management

believes that loan growth began to moderate in the latter
part of the year. Credit quality held up well in a difficult
environment. The loan loss provision, at $72 million in
2002 was comparable to the $73 million provision in 2001.
While net losses increased from $39 million to $63 million,
nonperforming assets and accruing loans past due 90 days
or more were lower at December 31, 2002 than a year ear-
lier. Data available to management indicates that the
Company’s credit quality trends remain better than those of
peer averages as measured by nonperforming asset and
charge-off data. The Company’s net interest margin of
4.56% in 2002 declined slightly from 4.64% in 2001 in a
year when interest rates were volatile and declining. As dis-
cussed in greater detail elsewhere in this report, manage-
ment paid particular attention to asset/liability manage-
ment during the year. Finally, management turned much
greater focus to the control of expenses in 2002 and
announced its intent to take $50 million out of the annual
run-rate of expenses by mid-2003. A number of specific
actions were taken during the year, including restructuring
e-commerce investments (discussed further below), branch
closures and operations consolidation. Management
believes that these specific actions implemented nearly $40
million of annualized reductions by year-end 2002. In
summary, adjusted for unusual items as discussed below,
management believes that its core banking businesses per-
formed well.

In the past several years, the Company has recorded a num-
ber of unusual or nonrecurring income statement items
related to venture capital and investment banking invest-
ments, changes in accounting principles, and the sale of First
Security Corporation common stock after its failed merger
with First Security Corporation. The following table sum-
marizes the income statement effects of these unusual items
on earnings pretax and after-tax, and on diluted earnings per
share (“EPS”) for the three years ended December 31, 2002.
Further explanation of these items follows in the sections for
noninterest income, noninterest expense, discontinued oper-
ations, and in the “Other” section of Business Segment
Results, and for the accounting changes, Notes 7 and 9 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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If the net after-tax effect of these unusual items and prior
years goodwill amortization were added to reported net
income, a comparable picture of the underlying perform-
ance of the Company’s community and regional banking
business emerges, as summarized in the table below:

(In millions) 2002 2001 2000

Net income as reported $ 256.3 283.0 161.7 
Total significant unusual items 77.9 (6.6) 75.2 

Net income without unusual items 334.2 276.4 236.9 
Goodwill amortization, net of tax - 33.1 25.9 

Net income without unusual items
and goodwill amortization $ 334.2 309.5 262.8 

As derived from the above table, net income without
unusual items and goodwill amortization increased 8.0% in
2002 from 2001, which increased 17.8% from 2000. 

The Company’s return on average shareholders’ equity was
10.95% for 2002 compared to 13.28% for 2001 and 9.65%
for 2000. The return on average assets was 0.97% for 2002
compared with 1.19% for 2001 and 0.74% for 2000.

The net interest margin for 2002 was 4.56% compared to
4.64% for 2001 and 4.27% for 2000. The decreased margin
for 2002 is the result of declining interest rates during 2002
coupled with the Company’s slightly asset-sensitive position.
The margin was also affected modestly by the strong deposit

growth relative to loan growth, particularly in the latter part
of 2002, which resulted in funds being invested in lower-
yielding money market investments. The increased margin
for 2001 resulted primarily from a more attractive balance
sheet composition. Average loans and leases for 2002
increased 13.1% to $18.1 billion, average money market
investments increased 29.8% to $1.2 billion and average
securities declined 2.7% to $3.9 billion. Average interest-
bearing deposits increased 9.6% to $14.1 billion, average
noninterest-bearing deposits increased 15.7% to $4.5 bil-
lion, and average borrowed funds increased 9.0% to $4.9
billion. Taxable-equivalent net interest income for 2002
increased 8.9% to $1,056.4 million, compared to $970.0
million for 2001 and $821.5 million for 2000. 

Noninterest income decreased 8.6% to $376.8 million in
2002 compared to $412.2 million for 2001. The decrease is
due principally to unusual items described in the preceding
table. Noninterest expense increased 2.7% to $858.9 million
in 2002. The efficiency ratio, or noninterest expenses, includ-
ing noncash amortization charges, as a percentage of total
taxable-equivalent net revenues was 63.40% for 2002 
compared to 61.60% for 2001 and 64.92% for 2000.
Excluding the unusual items described in the preceding table
and discontinued operations, the efficiency ratio was 58.18%
for 2002, 61.34% for 2001 and 61.98% for 2000.

2002 2001 2000

After- EPS After- EPS After- EPS
(In millions, except per share amounts) Pretax tax effect Pretax tax effect Pretax tax effect

Noninterest income:
Equity securities gains (losses), net:

Net write-downs of venture capital
investments and a minority interest in 
an investment banking firm $ (28.7) (17.7) (0.19) (39.6) (24.4) (0.26) (3.0) (1.8) (0.02)

Gains from Concord EFS, Inc. transactions - - - 70.8 42.7 0.46 - - - 
Gains from sale of First Security 

Corporation common stock - - - - - - 23.6 14.6 0.17 
Impairment loss on First Security 

Corporation common stock - - - - - - (96.9) (59.8) (0.69)

Subtotal (28.7) (17.7) (0.19) 31.2 18.3 0.20 (76.3) (47.0) (0.54)

Noninterest expense:
Merger related expense - - - 7.3 4.5 (0.05) 45.5 28.2 (0.32)
Restructuring charges 3.3 2.0 (0.02) - - - - - - 
Impairment losses on certain long-lived assets 4.9 3.1 (0.03) - - - - - - 

Subtotal 8.2 5.1 (0.05) 7.3 4.5 (0.05) 45.5 28.2 (0.32)

Discontinued operations:
Impairment losses (28.7) (22.7) (0.25) - - - - - - 

Cumulative effect adjustments (35.0) (32.4) (0.35) (11.7) (7.2) (0.08) - - - 

Total significant unusual items $ (100.6) (77.9) (0.84) 12.2 6.6 0.07 (121.8) (75.2) (0.86)
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The Company’s provision for loan losses totaled $71.9 mil-
lion for 2002, compared to $73.2 million for 2001 and
$31.8 million for 2000. The increased provision for loan
losses for 2002 and 2001 reflects management’s evaluation of
its various portfolios, higher loan losses, statistical trends and
other economic factors, and its desire to maintain a strong
coverage of nonperforming assets in a continued uncertain
economic environment in the markets in which it operates.
Net charge-offs were $63.7 million, or .35% of average loans
and leases in 2002, compared to $38.4 million or .24% in
2001 and $42.4 million or .31% in 2000. Nonperforming
assets decreased to $115.7 million or .61% of loans and
other real estate owned as of December 31, 2002 from
$120.4 million or .69% as of December 31, 2001. Accruing
loans past due 90 days or more decreased to $37.4 million or
.20% of net loans and leases at December 31, 2002 com-
pared to $46.2 million or .27% at the end of 2001. 

As described in Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, the Company completed several
acquisitions in 2002 and 2001 accounted for as purchases.
Results of operations between periods are influenced
because of these transactions.

BUSINESS SEGMENT RESULTS

The Company manages its operations and prepares man-
agement reports with a primary focus on geographical area.
All segments presented, except for the segment identified as
“Other”, are based on commercial banking operations. The
operating segment identified as “Other” includes Zions
Bancorporation (“the Parent”), certain e-commerce sub-
sidiaries, other smaller nonbank operating units and elimi-
nations of transactions between segments.

Operating segment information is presented in Schedule 1
and Note 23 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements. The accounting policies of the individual seg-
ments are the same as those of the Company. The Company
allocates centrally provided services to the business seg-
ments based upon estimated usage of those services. The
Company initiated a program in 2002 to allocate income
between certain of its banking subsidiaries to better match
revenues from hedging strategies to the operating units
which gave rise to the exposures being hedged. Allocated
income (expense) from this program included in net 

interest income of the banking subsidiaries for 2002 is as 
follows: Zions First National Bank – $(47.0) million,
Nevada State Bank – $9.9 million, National Bank of
Arizona – $10.1 million, Vectra Bank Colorado – $21.9
million, and The Commerce Bank of Washington – $5.1
million. 

The Company has invested in start-up and early stage ven-
tures through a variety of entities. Through certain sub-
sidiary banks, the Company has principally made nonmar-
ketable investments in a number of companies using four
Small Business Investment Companies (“SBIC”). The
Company recorded pretax losses on these venture capital
SBIC investments of $18.4 million in 2002, compared to
losses of $39.6 million in 2001 and $3.0 million in 2000.
These losses impacted the noninterest income reported by
certain of the Company’s subsidiary banks. In addition, the
Company has made investments in a number of ventures,
either through acquisition or through internal funding ini-
tiatives. During 2002, the Company decided to discontin-
ue the operations of two acquired companies, Lexign, Inc.
and Phaos Technology Corp. The Company completed a
sale of Phaos Technology Corp. in December 2002. Both
companies are subsidiaries of Zions Bancorporation and
results of the discontinued operations are included in the
“Other” segment. Digital Signature Trust (“DST”) was the
largest internally funded venture and was a majority owned
subsidiary of ZFNB. During 2002, the Company complet-
ed a sale of DST in exchange for an approximate 33% own-
ership interest in Identrus, LLC, another venture company.
The Company has a number of smaller venture activities
that generally are subsidiaries of either ZFNB or 
Zions Bancorporation.

ZIONS FIRST NATIONAL BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES

Zions First National Bank and subsidiaries (“ZFNB”)
include the Company’s operations in Utah and Idaho. Net
income for ZFNB decreased 23.7% to $103.3 million for
2002 compared to $135.4 million for 2001, which was up
29.7% from the $104.4 million earned in 2000. Results for
2002 include allocated expense of $47.0 million included as
a reduction of net interest income under an allocation pro-
gram initiated by the Company in 2002, as previously dis-
cussed. This allocation does not affect the consolidated
results of operations of the Company as all such amounts
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are eliminated in consolidation. Loan growth for ZFNB was
10.8% for 2002 with loans increasing to $6.7 billion.

As part of its asset/liability management efforts in 2002, the
Company, with the mutual agreement of the parties
involved, repurchased loans from securitizations. On
December 16, 2002, under the terms of a Termination and
Release Agreement (“Agreement”), the Amended and
Restated Credit Card Transfer and Administration
Agreement dated February 8, 2002 and a Receivables
Purchase Agreement dated as of February 8, 2002 were ter-
minated with the consent of the parties to the Agreement
and a majority of the beneficial interest holders. Credit card
receivables in the amount of $68.5 million were repur-
chased by ZFNB at fair value under the terms of the
Agreement. No gain or loss was recognized as a result of this
transaction. On December 20, 2002, under the terms of a
Transfer Agreement, the Second Amended and Restated
Auto Loan and Lease Purchase Agreement dated as of
February 11, 2002 was terminated with the consent of the
parties to the Agreement and with the consent of a majori-
ty of the beneficial interest holders. Automobile loans in the
amount of $361.7 million were repurchased by ZFNB at
fair value under the terms of the Transfer Agreement. No
gain or loss was recognized as a result of this transaction.

Also during the fourth quarter of 2002, ZFNB sold to
California Bank & Trust $416.8 million of mortgage loans.
Excluding these loan transactions, loan growth for 2002
was 10.5%. Deposits increased 33.8% during the year to
$7.1 billion. At December 31, 2002, deposits included
$960 million of certificates of deposit from California Bank
& Trust compared to $600 million at the end of 2001.
Excluding these certificates of deposits, total deposits for
ZFNB increased 30.5%. Noninterest income decreased
14.9% to $199.7 million compared to $234.8 million for
2001 and $152.0 million for 2000. Noninterest income for
2001 included $44.6 million in gains realized from ZFNB’s
appreciated investment in a nonpublic investee. 

For 2002, ZFNB’s loan loss provision was $41.3 million
compared to $41.9 million for 2001 and $8.2 million for
2000. Nonperforming assets for ZFNB increased to $62.2
million at December 31, 2002 from $52.1 million at year-
end 2001, including an increase in OREO to $20.6 million
compared to $3.8 million at the end of 2001. Accruing

loans past due 90 days or more decreased to $19.8 million
at year-end 2002 compared to $25.0 million at the end of
2001. Net loan and lease charge-offs for 2002 were $38.5
million compared to $22.6 million for 2001. 

Noninterest expense for 2002 increased 8.1% compared to
2001, reflecting increased costs to originate and service the
bank’s strong loan and deposit growth. The increase in net
income for 2001 compared to 2000 resulted mainly from
the 2001 gains recognized from the investment in a non-
public investee previously discussed. Also as previously dis-
cussed, during 2002 ZFNB completed a sale of an e-com-
merce subsidiary, DST, in exchange for an approximate
33% ownership interest in Identrus, LLC, a corporate joint
venture. After-tax operating losses from ZFNB’s investment
in Identrus and DST were $6.1 million for 2002 compared
to losses from DST of $12.7 million for 2001 and $8.8 mil-
lion for 2000.

CALIFORNIA BANK & TRUST

Results of operations for California Bank & Trust
(“CB&T”) for the years presented are influenced by an
acquisition accounted for as a purchase during 2001. See
Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for further information about the acquisition. 

Net income for CB&T increased 24.8% to $120.1 million
for 2002, compared to $96.2 million for 2001 and $74.1
million for 2000. In 2002, net loans and leases increased
7.4% to $6.1 billion and deposits increased 2.9% to $7.0
billion from year-end 2001. Excluding the $416.8 million in
mortgage loans purchased from ZFNB in the fourth quarter
of 2002, net loans increased 0.1%. Net interest income for
2002 increased 9.9% from 2001 to $377.9 million while
other noninterest income decreased 14.0% to $78.4 million.
Noninterest income for 2001 included $26.2 million of
gains realized from CB&T’s appreciated investment in a
nonpublic investee. 

For 2002, CB&T increased its loan loss provision to $17.0
million compared to $9.2 million for 2001. No provision
was recorded in 2000. Nonperforming assets for CB&T
decreased to $19.3 million at year-end 2002 compared to
$32.6 million at December 31, 2001. Net loan and lease
charge-offs for 2002 were $14.3 million compared to $11.5
million for 2001. Noninterest expense decreased 5.4% for
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Zions First National Bank California
and Subsidiaries Bank & Trust Nevada State Bank

(Amounts in millions) 2002 2001 % Change 2002 2001 % Change 2002 2001 % Change

CONDENSED INCOME STATEMENT

Net interest income $ 296.2 302.5 (2)% $ 377.9 343.7 10% $ 124.9 114.3 9%
Noninterest income 199.7 234.8 (15) 78.4 91.2 (14) 28.1 23.7 19

Total revenue 495.9 537.3 (8) 456.3 434.9 5 153.0 138.0 11
Provision for loan losses 41.3 41.9 (1) 17.0 9.2 85 4.7 10.1 (53)
Noninterest expense 310.1 286.9 8 238.2 251.7 (5) 81.9 80.0 2

Income from continuing operations before
income taxes and minority interest 144.5 208.5 (31) 201.1 174.0 16 66.4 47.9 39

Income tax expense (benefit) 42.4 69.9 (39) 81.0 76.5 6 22.6 16.3 39
Minority interest (1.2) (2.1) (43) - - - - - - 

Income from continuing operations 103.3 140.7 (27) 120.1 97.5 23 43.8 31.6 39
Loss on discontinued operations - - - - - - - - - 

Income before cumulative effect adjustment 103.3 140.7 (27) 120.1 97.5 23 43.8 31.6 39
Cumulative effect adjustment - (5.3) (100) - (1.3) (100) - (0.6) (100)

Net income (loss) $ 103.3 135.4 (24)% $ 120.1 96.2 25% $ 43.8 31.0 41%

YEAR END BALANCE SHEET DATA

Total assets $ 10,530 8,580 23% $ 8,805 8,366 5% $ 2,683 2,481 8%
Net loans and leases 6,714 6,062 11 6,129 5,708 7 1,850 1,515 22
Allowance for loan losses 96 83 16 88 86 2 25 25 - 
Goodwill, core deposit and other intangibles 30 19 58 434 443 (2) 23 24 (4)
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits 1,178 1,095 8 2,035 1,784 14 653 541 21
Total deposits 7,116 5,318 34 6,970 6,773 3 2,349 2,140 10
Common equity 682 636 7 978 988 (1) 173 161 7
PERFORMANCE RATIOS

Return on average assets 0.99% 1.46% 1.40% 1.21% 1.70% 1.29%
Return on average common equity 15.56% 24.23% 11.69% 10.47% 26.68% 18.75%
Efficiency ratio 61.00% 52.31% 52.12% 57.76% 53.13% 57.36%
OTHER INFORMATION

Full-time equivalent employees 2,333 2,192 1,846 1,944 750 712 
Domestic offices:

Traditional branches 103 102 91 94 30 27 
Banking centers in grocery stores 46 48 - - 33 34 

Foreign office 1 1 - - - - 

Total offices 150 151 91 94 63 61 

ATMs 208 214 108 110 87 85 

Note: The Company initiated a program in 2002 to allocate income between certain of its banking subsidiaries to better match revenues from hedging 
strategies to the operating units which gave rise to the exposures being hedged. The reduction in net interest income of Zions First National Bank, and 
the various increases in net interest income at Nevada State Bank, National Bank of Arizona, Vectra Bank Colorado, and The Commerce Bank of 
Washington, reflect this allocation program. 

SCHEDULE 1

OPERATING SEGMENTS INFORMATION
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National Bank Vectra Bank The Commerce Bank Consolidated
of Arizona Colorado of Washington Other Company

2002 2001 % Change 2002 2001 % Change 2002 2001 % Change 2002 2001 % Change 2002 2001 % Change

$ 116.0 103.0 13% $ 110.7 86.4 28% $ 24.6 21.8 13% $ (15.2) (21.9) 31% $1,035.1 949.8 9%
19.1 16.1 19 34.2 27.5 24 1.7 1.2 42 15.6 17.7 (12) 376.8 412.2 (9)

135.1 119.1 13 144.9 113.9 27 26.3 23.0 14 0.4 (4.2) 110 1,411.9 1,362.0 4
2.0 1.5 33 5.0 9.4 (47) 1.1 1.3 (15) 0.8 (0.2) 500 71.9 73.2 (2)

69.0 64.1 8 100.1 94.2 6 10.3 9.4 10 49.3 49.8 (1) 858.9 836.1 3

64.1 53.5 20 39.8 10.3 286 14.9 12.3 21 (49.7) (53.8) 8 481.1 452.7 6
25.5 21.4 19 14.2 6.9 106 5.3 4.2 26 (23.3) (33.3) 30 167.7 161.9 4

- - - - - - - - - (2.5) (5.7) (56) (3.7) (7.8) (53)

38.6 32.1 20 25.6 3.4 653 9.6 8.1 19 (23.9) (14.8) (61) 317.1 298.6 6
- - - - - - - - - (28.4) (8.4) (238) (28.4) (8.4) (238)

38.6 32.1 20 25.6 3.4 653 9.6 8.1 19 (52.3) (23.2) (125) 288.7 290.2 (1)
- - - - - - - - - (32.4) - (32.4) (7.2) (350)

$ 38.6 32.1 20% $ 25.6 3.4 653% $ 9.6 8.1 19% $ (84.7) (23.2) (265)% $ 256.3 283.0 (9)%

$ 2,925 2,606 12% $ 2,768 2,639 5% $ 648 529 22% $ (1,793) (897) (100)% $ 26,566 24,304 9%
1,979 1,796 10 1,918 1,850 4 321 294 9 129 86 50 19,040 17,311 10

32 29 10 33 33 - 5 4 25 1 - - 280 260 8
74 68 9 252 255 (1) - - - - 71 (100) 813 880 (8)

721 580 24 477 424 13 79 66 20 (26) (9) (189) 5,117 4,481 14
2,487 2,193 13 1,911 1,764 8 459 382 20 (1,160) (728) (59) 20,132 17,842 13

233 211 10 441 439 - 45 38 18 (178) (192) 7 2,374 2,281 4

1.44% 1.33% 0.97% 0.15% 1.72% 1.59% 0.97% 1.19%
17.96% 16.49% 5.81% 0.86% 23.28% 22.57% 10.95% 13.28%
50.84% 53.49% 68.60% 82.11% 38.83% 40.53% 63.40% 61.60%

833 754 912 1,007 54 56 1,345 1,459 8,073 8,124 

53 47 54 55 1 1 - - 332 326 
- - 4 4 - - - - 83 86 
- - - - - - - - 1 1

53 47 58 59 1 1 - - 416 413 

52 45 133 135 - - - - 588 589 
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2002 compared to 2001. Expenses for 2001 included amor-
tization of goodwill of $16.0 million. Expenses for 2001 also
included $5.0 million of merger related expenses related to
the acquisition of Eldorado Bancshares, Inc. 

NEVADA STATE BANK

Net income for Nevada State Bank (“NSB”) was $43.8 mil-
lion for 2002 compared to $31.0 million in 2001 and $22.8
million for 2000. Earnings for 2002 include $9.9 million of
income included in net interest income allocated under a
program initiated by the Company in 2002 as discussed
previously. Earnings for 2002 included a provision for loan
losses of $4.7 million compared to $10.1 million for both
2001 and 2000. Nonperforming assets for NSB decreased
to $1.2 million at December 31, 2002 compared to $2.0
million at December 31, 2001. Net loan and lease charge-
offs for 2002 were $4.9 million compared to $2.4 million
for 2001. Net loans at year-end 2002 increased 22.1% from
2001 while total deposits increased 9.8%. 

NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA

Net income for National Bank of Arizona (“NBA”) was
$38.6 million for 2002 compared to $32.1 million in 2001
and $30.2 million for 2000. Earnings for 2002 include
$10.1 million of income included in net interest income
allocated under a program initiated by the Company in
2002 as discussed previously. Net loans increased 10.2%
from year-end 2001 to $2.0 billion at year-end 2002 and
deposits increased 13.4% to $2.5 billion. In November
2002, NBA completed the acquisition of Frontier State
Bank and acquired $52.0 million of loans and $88.0 mil-

lion of deposits. Excluding these acquired loans and
deposits, net loans increased 7.3% and deposits increased
9.4%. The provision for loan and lease losses was $2.0 mil-
lion for 2002 compared to $1.5 million for 2001 and $3.6
million for 2000. Nonperforming assets for NBA were
$11.0 million at December 31, 2002 compared to $11.5
million at December 31, 2001. Net loan and lease charge-
offs for 2002 were $0.5 million compared to $0.6 million
for 2001. 

VECTRA BANK COLORADO

Net income for Vectra Bank Colorado (“Vectra”) was $25.6
million in 2002 compared to $3.4 million in 2001 and $5.8
million in 2000. Earnings for 2002 include $21.9 million
of income included in net interest income allocated under a
program initiated by the Company in 2002 as discussed
previously. The years 2001 and 2000 also included goodwill
amortization of $10.5 million in each year. Net loans and
leases increased 3.7% from year-end 2001 to $1.9 billion at
year-end 2002 and deposits increased 8.3% to $1.9 billion.
The provision for loan losses was decreased to $5.0 million
for 2002, compared to $9.4 million for 2001 and $9.1 mil-
lion in 2000. Nonperforming assets for Vectra decreased to
$16.0 million at December 31, 2002 compared to $18.8
million at December 31, 2001. Net loan and lease charge-
offs for 2002 were $4.7 million compared to $0.9 million
for 2001 and $8.9 million for 2000. 

THE COMMERCE BANK OF WASHINGTON

Net income for The Commerce Bank of Washington
(“Commerce”) was $9.6 million for 2002 compared to $8.1
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million in 2001 and $7.9 million in 2000. Earnings for
2002 include $5.1 million of income included in net inter-
est income allocated under a program initiated by the
Company in 2002 as discussed previously. Net loans and
leases increased 9.0% from year-end 2001 to $321 million
at year-end 2002 and deposits increased 20.2% to $459
million. The provision for loan and lease losses was $1.1
million for 2002, compared to $1.3 million for 2001 and
$0.8 million in 2000. Nonperforming assets for Commerce
increased to $4.3 million at December 31, 2002, compared
to $3.4 million at December 31, 2001. Net loan and lease
charge-offs for 2002 were $0.8 million, compared to $0.4
million for 2001.

OTHER

Other includes the Parent and other various nonbanking
subsidiaries including certain e-commerce and other invest-
ment activities. Net losses in the Other category were $84.7
million for 2002, compared to losses of $23.2 million for
2001 and losses of $83.5 million for 2000. The increased
loss for 2002 relates primarily to losses of discontinued e-
commerce subsidiaries previously discussed and a $32.4
million charge for the cumulative effect adjustment related
to goodwill impairment in the e-commerce subsidiaries; see
Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
The decreased net loss for 2001, compared to 2000, of
$60.3 million is mainly due to the recognition during 2000
of a $96.9 million pretax impairment loss on First Security
Corporation common stock and $31.0 million of pretax
merger expense mainly related to the terminated First

Security Corporation merger, offset in part by gains of
$23.6 million from the subsequent sale of the First Security
Corporation common stock. 

In 2002 the Company took a number of actions to revalue
and restructure its e-commerce activities in light of contin-
ued disappointing results and a difficult market environ-
ment. In May 2002 the Company completed the sale of its
DST subsidiary to Identrus, LLC for a 33% ownership
position in Identrus. DST was a U.S. market leader in pro-
viding public key infrastructure (“PKI”) digital signatures
for on-line identity authentication. However, market adop-
tion of this technology has been slow. Identrus, a company
owned by a global consortium of banks, also provides PKI
standards and infrastructure. By selling DST to Identrus,
the Company was able to cut its operating losses from this
business activity by almost two-thirds, while retaining an
ability to benefit financially if the market for identity
authentication services develops.

In support of its PKI activities, in 2000 and 2001 the
Company acquired several software companies with the
objective of hastening the adoption of digital signatures by
developing applications using them. These acquisitions
became the Company’s subsidiaries, Lexign, Inc. and Phaos
Technology Corp. Market declines in the value of all simi-
lar software companies led the Company to recognize valu-
ation impairments related to these subsidiaries upon the
adoption of SFAS 142 in 2002. More importantly, after the
sale of DST, the Company no longer had a strategic ration-
ale to continue the development of digital signature appli-
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cations software. As a result, both Lexign and Phaos were
down-sized, offered for sale and reclassified as discontinued
operations in the third quarter of 2002. Additional write-
downs in addition to the impairment charges were taken at
this time. In December 2002, the Company completed the
sale of Phaos for approximately its revised value. The
restructuring of Lexign has resulted in a reduction of its rate
of operating losses by about two-thirds. In addition, the
Company and Lexign have developed an operating risk
management system that it is deploying throughout the
Company. This system, called RiskResolve™, is being
offered under license to third parties.

In addition to the Company’s e-commerce activities, the
Company developed a secure online storage and retrieval
product called “Entervault.” Because of poor market
response, management ceased further development of
Entervault in 2002, resulting in severance costs in the
fourth quarter. 

In 2000, the Company acquired a 24.9% interest in an
investment banking company serving primarily smaller and
middle market companies in the West. The strategic intent
was to allow the Company and the investment banking
company to provide a more complete array of financing
products and services to their customers through cross-
referrals. While a number of mutually-beneficial referrals
have occurred and continue to occur, the overall market for
investment banking products and services has declined
markedly. As a result, the investment banking company

experienced a substantial decline in revenue and incurred
significant operating losses. In the third quarter of 2002,
the Company took an impairment charge on its investment
in the investment banking company to reflect the decline in
value attributable to its poor operating results.

The Company continues to invest more selectively in a limited
number of new, innovative products and ventures. Most
notably the Company has funded the development of
NetDeposit, a family of innovative check imaging and clearing
products and services for which the Company has sought exten-
sive intellectual property protection. The expenses associated
with development of this product were incurred in both ZFNB
and the Other segment. The Company is actively marketing
NetDeposit’s products and has received significant indications
of interest, but it is not yet known if the product will be com-
mercially successful.

INCOME STATEMENT ANALYSIS

NET INTEREST INCOME, MARGIN AND INTEREST RATE

SPREADS

Net interest income on a taxable-equivalent basis is the dif-
ference between interest earned on assets and interest paid
on liabilities, with adjustments made to present income on
assets exempt from income taxes comparable to other tax-
able income. Changes in the mix and volume of earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities, their related yields and
overall interest rates have a major impact on earnings. In
2002, taxable-equivalent net interest income provided
73.7% of the Company’s net taxable-equivalent revenues
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compared to 70.2% for 2001 and 81.0% for 2000. As pre-
viously discussed, each of the three years contains unusual
or nonrecurring items which had a significant effect on
these percentages.

The Company’s taxable-equivalent net interest income
increased by 8.9% to $1,056.4 million in 2002 compared
to $970.0 million in 2001 and $821.5 million in 2000. The
increased level of taxable-equivalent net interest income was
driven by a 10.8% and 8.8% growth in average earning
assets for 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

The net interest margin, the ratio of taxable-equivalent net
interest income to average earning assets, was 4.56% in 2002,
4.64% in 2001 and 4.27% in 2000. The decreased margin for
2002 is the result of declining interest rates during 2002 cou-
pled with the Company’s slightly asset-sensitive position. The
margin was also affected by the strong deposit growth relative
to loan growth for 2002, which resulted in funds being invest-
ed in lower-yielding money market investments, particularly
in the second half of the year. The significant increase in the
margin for 2001 resulted primarily from a more attractive bal-
ance sheet composition as well as a major decrease in interest
rates, which increased interest income from derivatives used to
hedge the portfolio. Average loans and leases increased 13.1%
to $18.1 billion for 2002, while average securities declined
2.7% to $3.9 billion, average money market investments
increased 29.8% to $1.2 billion, average interest-bearing
deposits increased 9.6% to $14.1 billion and average bor-
rowed funds increased 9.0% to $4.9 billion. 

Schedule 2 analyzes the average balances, the amount of
interest earned or paid, and the applicable rates for the var-
ious categories of earning assets and interest-bearing funds
that represent the components of taxable-equivalent net
interest income. Schedule 3 analyzes the year-to-year
changes in net interest income on a fully taxable-equivalent
basis for the years shown. In the schedules, the principal
amounts of nonaccrual and renegotiated loans have been
included in the average loan balances used to determine the
rate earned on loans. Interest income on nonaccrual loans is
included in income only to the extent that cash payments
have been received and not applied to principal reductions.
Interest on restructured loans is generally accrued at
reduced rates.

The incremental tax rate used for calculating the taxable-
equivalent adjustment was 35% for all years presented.
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SCHEDULE 2

DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS, YIELDS AND RATES

2002 2001
Average Amount of Average Average Amount of Average

(Amount in millions) balance interest1 rate balance interest1 rate

ASSETS:

Money market investments $ 1,199 18.6 1.55% $ 924 34.9 3.78%

Securities:

Held to maturity 43 2.3 5.34 56 3.4 5.98

Available for sale 3,209 170.0 5.30 3,269 207.2 6.34

Trading account 611 22.1 3.62 647 30.9 4.78

Total securities 3,863 194.4 5.03 3,972 241.5 6.08

Loans:

Loans held for sale 210 9.4 4.50 220 13.1 5.94

Net loans and leases2 17,904 1,254.8 7.01 15,795 1,322.6 8.37

Total loans and leases 18,114 1,264.2 6.98 16,015 1,335.7 8.34

Total interest-earning assets 23,176 1,477.2 6.37 20,911 1,612.1 7.71

Cash and due from banks 939 821

Allowance for loan losses (267) (229)

Goodwill 744 703

Core deposit and other intangibles 98 101

Other assets 1,606 1,513

Total assets $ 26,296 $ 23,820

LIABILITIES:

Interest-bearing deposits:

Savings and NOW $ 2,555 26.5 1.04 $ 2,060 32.3 1.57

Money market super NOW 8,021 138.1 1.72 7,039 219.3 3.12

Time under $100,000 1,911 62.1 3.25 1,984 98.2 4.95

Time $100,000 and over 1,487 50.5 3.40 1,658 86.5 5.22

Foreign 106 1.5 1.42 106 2.9 2.79

Total interest-bearing deposits 14,080 278.7 1.98 12,847 439.2 3.42

Borrowed funds:

Securities sold, not yet purchased 394 16.4 4.17 340 17.0 5.01

Federal funds purchased and security

repurchase agreements 2,528 39.1 1.55 2,668 95.9 3.59

Commercial paper 359 7.5 2.09 336 14.5 4.30

FHLB advances and other borrowings:

One year or less 533 10.3 1.93 404 21.7 5.37

Over one year 240 12.5 5.18 203 11.1 5.44

Long-term debt 874 56.3 6.45 569 42.7 7.51

Total borrowed funds 4,928 142.1 2.88 4,520 202.9 4.49

Total interest-bearing liabilities 19,008 420.8 2.21 17,367 642.1 3.70

Noninterest-bearing deposits 4,522 3,907

Other liabilities 404 385

Total liabilities 23,934 21,659

Minority interest 21 30

Total shareholders’ equity 2,341 2,131

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 26,296 $ 23,820

Spread on average interest-bearing funds 4.16% 4.01%

Taxable-equivalent net interest income 
and net yield on interest-earning assets 1,056.4 4.56% 970.0 4.64%

1
Taxable-equivalent rates used where applicable.

2
Net of unearned income and fees, net of related costs. Loans include nonaccrual and restructured loans.
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2000 1999 1998
Average Amount of Average Average Amount of Average Average Amount of Average

balance interest 1 rate balance interest 1 rate balance interest 1 rate

$ 1,061 67.4 6.35% $ 1,185 67.2 5.67% $ 1,629 92.3 5.67%

3,254 222.1 6.83 3,277 204.6 6.24 2,271 154.8 6.82

685 44.8 6.53 741 42.4 5.72 849 48.6 5.72

574 36.3 6.32 538 30.1 5.59 430 24.0 5.58

4,513 303.2 6.72 4,556 277.1 6.08 3,550 227.4 6.41

192 14.5 7.52 178 12.2 6.85 202 14.3 7.08

13,457 1,259.2 9.36 11,641 1,019.0 8.75 7,430 708.8 9.54

13,649 1,273.7 9.33 11,819 1,031.2 8.72 7,632 723.1 9.47

19,223 1,644.3 8.55 17,560 1,375.5 7.83 12,811 1,042.8 8.14

826 856 657

(203) (211) (132)

572 574 515 

76 81 58 

1,228 1,052 488 

$ 21,722 $ 19,912 $ 14,397 

$ 1,783 40.0 2.24 $ 1,812 44.1 2.43 $ 1,338 39.4 2.94

6,210 289.4 4.66 5,521 203.6 3.69 3,712 134.5 3.62

1,719 87.7 5.10 2,085 98.5 4.72 1,651 85.7 5.19

1,408 80.4 5.71 1,257 61.1 4.86 894 49.3 5.51

138 6.3 4.56 165 7.2 4.36 182 8.2 4.51

11,258 503.8 4.48 10,840 414.5 3.82 7,777 317.1 4.08

311 19.7 6.32 271 15.6 5.76 202 10.0 4.95

2,747 159.7 5.81 2,369 108.5 4.58 1,908 90.5 4.74

316 20.7 6.55 194 10.8 5.57 28 1.6 5.71

1,161 76.2 6.56 545 28.5 5.23 63 4.0 6.35

140 8.5 6.06 76 4.8 6.32 114 6.6 5.79

429 34.2 7.98 453 35.1 7.75 347 29.1 8.39

5,104 319.0 6.25 3,908 203.3 5.20 2,662 141.8 5.33

16,362 822.8 5.03 14,748 617.8 4.19 10,439 458.9 4.40

3,316 3,249 2,448

329 316 196 

20,007 18,313 13,083

40 37 9

1,675 1,562 1,305

$ 21,722 $ 19,912 $ 14,397

3.52% 3.64% 3.74%

821.5 4.27% 757.7 4.31% 583.9 4.56%
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SCHEDULE 3

ANALYSIS OF INTEREST CHANGES DUE TO VOLUME AND RATE
2002 over 2001 2001 over 2000

Changes due to Total Changes due to Total

(Amounts in millions) Volume Rate1 changes Volume Rate1 changes

INTEREST- EARNING ASSETS:

Money market investments $ 4.3 (20.6) (16.3) (5.2) (27.3) (32.5)

Securities:
Held to maturity (0.7) (0.4) (1.1) (191.2) (27.5) (218.7)
Available for sale (3.2) (34.0) (37.2) 163.8 (1.4) 162.4
Trading account (1.3) (7.5) (8.8) 3.5 (8.9) (5.4)

Total securities (5.2) (41.9) (47.1) (23.9) (37.8) (61.7)

Loans:
Loans held for sale (0.5) (3.2) (3.7) 1.6 (3.0) (1.4)
Net loans and leases2 147.6 (215.4) (67.8) 196.3 (132.9) 63.4

Total loans 147.1 (218.6) (71.5) 197.9 (135.9) 62.0

Total interest-earning assets $ 146.2 (281.1) (134.9) 168.8 (201.0) (32.2)

INTEREST- BEARING LIABILITIES:

Interest-bearing deposits:
Savings and NOW $ 5.1 (10.9) (5.8) 4.3 (12.0) (7.7)
Money market super NOW 17.0 (98.2) (81.2) 25.5 (95.6) (70.1)
Time under $100,000 (2.4) (33.7) (36.1) 13.1 (2.6) 10.5
Time $100,000 and over (5.9) (30.1) (36.0) 13.0 (6.9) 6.1
Foreign - (1.4) (1.4) (0.9) (2.5) (3.4)

Total interest-bearing deposits 13.8 (174.3) (160.5) 55.0 (119.6) (64.6)

Borrowed funds:
Securities sold, not yet purchased 2.3 (2.9) (0.6) 1.4 (4.1) (2.7)
Federal funds purchased and security

repurchase agreements (2.2) (54.6) (56.8) (2.7) (61.1) (63.8)
Commercial paper 0.4 (7.4) (7.0) 0.9 (7.1) (6.2)
FHLB advances and other borrowings:

One year or less 2.5 (13.9) (11.4) (40.7) (13.8) (54.5)
Over one year 1.9 (0.5) 1.4 3.4 (0.8) 2.6

Long-term debt 19.6 (6.0) 13.6 10.5 (2.0) 8.5

Total borrowed funds 24.5 (85.3) (60.8) (27.2) (88.9) (116.1)

Total interest-bearing liabilities $ 38.3 (259.6) (221.3) 27.8 (208.5) (180.7)

Change in taxable-equivalent net interest income $ 107.9 (21.5) 86.4 141.0 7.5 148.5

1Taxable-equivalent income used where applicable.
2Net of unearned income and fees. Loans include nonaccrual and restructured loans.

In the analysis of interest changes due to volume and rate, changes due to the volume/rate variance are allocated to volume with the following exceptions: when volume and rate
both increase, the variance is allocated proportionately to both volume and rate; when the rate increases and volume decreases, the variance is allocated to rate.
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PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

The provision for loan losses reflects management’s judg-
ment of the expense to be recognized in order to maintain an
adequate allowance for loan losses. See the discussion on
allowance for loan losses under Risk Elements. The provi-
sion for loan losses was $71.9 million in 2002 compared to
$73.2 million in 2001 and $31.8 million in 2000. The pro-
vision was .40% of average loans for 2002, .46% in 2001
and .23% for 2000. The increased provision for loan losses
for 2002 and 2001 relative to 2000 reflects management’s
evaluation of its various portfolios, higher loan losses, statis-
tical trends and other economic factors, and its desire to
maintain a strong coverage of nonperforming assets in a 

continued uncertain economic environment in the markets
in which it operates.

NONINTEREST INCOME

Noninterest income comprised 26.3% of net taxable-equiva-
lent revenues in 2002 compared to 29.8% in 2001 and
19.0% in 2000. Noninterest income was $376.8 million in
2002, a decrease of 8.6% from $412.2 for 2001, which was
up 114.0% over $192.6 million in 2000. As previously dis-
cussed and further described in the following analysis, each of
the three years contains unusual or nonrecurring items,
which had a significant effect on these percentages. Schedule
4 shows the major components of noninterest income.

As reflected in Schedule 4, service charges for 2002 com-
pared to 2001 increased 17.8% and 2001 service charges
increased 29.0% compared to 2000. The increases for both
years are mainly the result of the strong deposit growth
experienced by the Company and the effect of acquisitions
consummated during 2001. 

The $26.7 million decrease in loan sales and servicing
income for 2002 compared to 2001 results from the
Company recording a write-down of approximately $13.6
million during 2002 on capitalized excess servicing related
to an auto securitization nonhedge derivative transaction.
The $13.6 million fair value of a swap entered into in this
transaction was recorded as an asset, and nonhedge deriva-
tive income was increased by this amount. The year 2001

included a gain of $12.1 million on the sale of small busi-
ness loans. See Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information on the
Company’s securitization programs.

Other service charges, commissions and fees, which include
investment, brokerage and fiscal agent fees, fees from ATM
usage, insurance commissions, merchant fee income and
other miscellaneous fees, increased $8.2 million to $81.2
million, or 11.2% from 2001 and increased 12.1% from
2000. The increases for both years are largely attributable to
increased fees from ATM usage and from the Company’s
municipal finance operations driven in part by the low
interest rate environment. 

SCHEDULE 4

NONINTEREST INCOME
Percent Percent Percent Percent

(Amounts in millions) 2002 change 2001 change 2000 change 1999 change 1998

Service charges on deposit accounts $ 119.0 17.8% $ 101.0 29.0% $ 78.3 2.0% $ 76.8 25.7% $ 61.1
Loan sales and servicing income 70.1 (27.6) 96.8 87.2 51.7 27.7 40.5 (19.6) 50.4
Other service charges, commissions and fees 81.2 11.2 73.0 12.1 65.1 (1.5) 66.1 16.0 57.0
Trust income 18.5 1.1 18.3 0.5 18.2 15.2 15.8 43.6 11.0
Income from securities conduit 20.3 65.0 12.3 6,050.0 0.2 - - - -
Dividends and other investment income 35.5 25.4 28.3 4.8 27.0 51.7 17.8 57.5 11.3
Market making, trading and nonhedge 

derivative income 39.0 14.4 34.1 237.6 10.1 (12.2) 11.5 25.0 9.2
Equity securities gains (losses), net (25.3) (168.0) 37.2 68.3 22.1 (49.9) 44.1 - -
Fixed income securities gains (losses), net 0.4 110.5 (3.8) (860.0) 0.5 105.1 (9.9) (341.5) 4.1
Impairment loss on First Security 

Corporation common stock - - - (100.0) (96.9) - - - -
Other income 18.1 20.7 15.0 (8.0) 16.3 297.6 4.1 (35.9) 6.4

Total $ 376.8 (8.6)% $ 412.2 114.0% $ 192.6 (27.8)% $ 266.8 26.7% $ 210.5
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Income from securities conduit represents liquidity, interest
rate agreement, and administrative fees from a qualified spe-
cial purpose entity securities conduit. The increases in fees
for 2002 and 2001 resulted from increases in the conduit’s
securities portfolio activity. See Note 6 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for further information
regarding securitization activities and the securities conduit. 

Dividends and other investment income consist of income
from the Company’s bank-owned life insurance and 
dividends and equity in earnings from investments in
unconsolidated companies. Income from bank-owned life
insurance products was $18.9 million for 2002, $16.6 mil-
lion for 2001 and $11.5 million for 2000 with the increas-
es resulting mainly from increased investments. Income
from investments in unconsolidated companies includes
dividends from Federal Home Loan Bank investments and
equity in earnings of other unconsolidated affiliates and was
$16.6 million for 2002, $11.7 million for 2001 and $15.5
million for 2000. 

Market making, trading and nonhedge derivative income
consists of the following:

Percent Percent
(Amounts in millions) 2002 change 2001 change 2000

Market making, 
trading income $ 24.6 33.0% $ 18.5 83.2% $ 10.1

Nonhedge derivative 
income 14.4 (7.7) 15.6 - -

Total $ 39.0 14.4% $ 34.1 237.6% $ 10.1

The Company started an electronic corporate bond trading
business in 2001 which has significantly increased trading
income. Trading income for 2001 also included $3.3 million
in appreciation of held to maturity securities transferred to
trading in conjunction with the adoption of SFAS 133 and
sold during the first quarter of 2001. Nonhedge derivative
income for 2002 includes the $13.6 million of nonhedge
derivative income previously discussed with loan sales and
servicing income.

Net equity securities losses for 2002 include losses of $28.7
million on write-downs of venture capital investments and
a minority interest in an investment banking firm as previ-
ously discussed. Net equity security gains for 2001 includ-
ed gains of $70.8 million from the Concord EFS, Inc.
transactions described below and losses of $39.6 million
from write-downs of venture capital investments. Net gains
for 2000 included gains of $23.6 million on the sale of First
Security Corporation common stock and net losses of $3.0
million on venture capital investments.

During 2001, the Company recognized an aggregate gain of
$70.8 million in connection with the sale of its equity inter-
est in Star Systems, Inc. to Concord EFS. Consideration
received was in the form of restricted securities that were
hedged by the Company through a forward sale transaction
that was subsequently contributed to an off-balance sheet
trust in the approximate amount of $83 million. The trans-
fer of the securities and forward contract to the trust repre-
sented a sale of the transferred assets for financial reporting
purposes. The forward sale contract was treated as a fair
value derivative hedge contract of securities resulting in a
$4.3 million gain reported in other income. This transaction
is not expected to be material to the Company’s future
results of operations and financial position under new rules
that apply pursuant to FASB Interpretation No. 46,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.

NONINTEREST EXPENSE

The Company’s noninterest expense was $858.9 million in
2002, an increase of 2.7% over $836.1 million in 2001, which
was up 15.9% over the $721.3 million in 2000. Schedule 5
shows the major components of noninterest expense.

The increased salaries and benefits for both 2002 and 2001
resulted from enhanced incentive programs that con-
tributed to the Company’s strong loan and deposit growth,
increased staffing to handle customer growth, and addition-
al staffing resulting from the acquisitions completed during
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SCHEDULE 5

NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Percent Percent Percent Percent

(Amounts in millions) 2002 change 2001 change 2000 change 1999 change 1998

Salaries and employee benefits $ 478.0 10.4% $ 432.9 24.3% $ 348.3 0.5% $ 346.7 32.6% $ 261.5
Occupancy, net 68.6 7.9 63.6 23.0 51.7 4.7 49.4 47.9 33.4
Furniture and equipment 63.4 4.3 60.8 15.4 52.7 16.1 45.4 18.5 38.3
Legal and professional services 25.4 (17.0) 30.6 55.3 19.7 21.6 16.2 (0.6) 16.3
Postage and supplies 27.6 (0.7) 27.8 26.9 21.9 (4.4) 22.9 - 22.9
Advertising 20.6 (7.6) 22.3 (12.2) 25.4 37.3 18.5 46.8 12.6
Merger related expense - (100.0) 7.3 (84.0) 45.5 64.3 27.7 (27.3) 38.1
Restructuring charges 3.3 - - - - - - - -
Impairment losses on long-lived assets 4.9 - - - - - - - -
Amortization of goodwill - (100.0) 31.5 20.2 26.2 6.9 24.5 21.9 20.1
Amortization of core deposit and 

other intangibles 13.4 4.7 12.8 11.3 11.5 (1.7) 11.7 (0.8) 11.8
Other expenses 153.7 4.9 146.5 23.7 118.4 (0.3) 118.8 16.5 102.0

Total $ 858.9 2.7% $ 836.1 15.9% $ 721.3 5.8% $ 681.8 22.4% $ 557.0

2002 and 2001. The Company also increased staffing in
2002 to prepare for planned conversions of all subsidiary
banks to common operating platforms. Employee benefit
costs for both 2002 and 2001 also increased significantly,
because of increased retirement plan expenses and employ-
ee health plan cost increases, as shown below:

Percent Percent
(Amounts in millions) 2002 change 2001 change 2000

Salaries and bonuses $ 403.4 10.1% $ 366.3 20.0% $ 305.2

Benefits:
Employee health 

and insurance 26.5 22.7 21.6 46.9 14.7
Retirement 20.2 11.6 18.1 293.5 4.6
Payroll taxes and other 27.9 3.7 26.9 13.0 23.8

Total benefits 74.6 12.0 66.6 54.5 43.1

Total salaries and 
employee benefits $ 478.0 10.4% $ 432.9 24.3% $ 348.3

Legal and professional services decreased $5.2 million com-
pared to 2001, which were up $10.9 million from 2000.
The large increase for 2001 resulted mainly from increased
expenditures related to consolidating back-office functions,
enhancing e-commerce and other technological capabilities,
legal and accounting fees related to the nonpublic investee
transactions, and other projects to improve operational effi-
ciencies and enhance revenues. Expenses remained relative-
ly high for 2002 as the Company continued its efforts to
consolidate back-office functions and initiated projects to
streamline operations and improve procurement functions.

The increases in occupancy, furniture and equipment
expense and other expenses for 2002 compared to 2001
reflect the effects of the 2002 and 2001 acquisitions, the sig-
nificant internal growth experienced by the Company,
upgrades to back-office facilities in preparation for the con-
version to common operating platforms for all subsidiary
banks, and increased expenditures in selected areas to
enhance revenue growth. The significant increases in occu-
pancy and furniture and equipment expense for 2001 com-
pared to 2000 resulted primarily from the addition of office
facilities, installation of personal computers and local area
networks, and expenses related to technology initiatives
including Internet security and authentication systems. The
decreases in advertising expense for 2002 and 2001 reflect a
return to more normal levels of advertising following a year
of significantly increased expenditures in 2000 to reestab-
lish the Company’s presence in critical markets subsequent
to the terminated merger with First Security Corporation.

During 2002, the Company incurred restructuring charges
of $3.3 million related to several cost saving steps taken by
the Company, as part of its announced intent, discussed
previously, to take $50 million out of the annual run-rate of
expenses. These included branch closings in Utah and
Colorado, and restructuring of trust operations and admin-
istrative functions. The Company also incurred impairment
losses of $4.9 million during 2002 on certain software relat-
ed to e-commerce activity. These losses also were related to
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the Company’s expense reduction efforts. See Note 15 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for addi-
tional information on these restructuring and impairment
charges.

On December 31, 2002, the Company had 8,073 full-time
equivalent employees and 415 domestic offices compared to
8,124 employees and 412 offices at year-end 2001 and
6,915 employees and 373 offices at year-end 2000. 

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As discussed previously under “Business Segment Results –
Other,” during the third quarter of 2002, the Company
decided to discontinue the operations of two e-commerce
subsidiaries. The Company determined that its plan to
restructure and offer all or part of these subsidiaries for sale
met the held for sale and discontinued operations criteria of
SFAS 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets. In December 2002, one of the sub-
sidiaries, Phaos Technology Corp., was sold. See Note 15 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for addi-
tional information regarding the discontinued operations
and related impairment losses recognized. 

The loss from discontinued subsidiaries increased to $28.5
million for 2002 compared to $8.4 million for 2001. The
loss from operations of discontinued subsidiaries increased
to $18.3 million for 2002 compared to $12.5 million for
2001. The main reason for the increased loss from opera-
tions is that one of the e-commerce companies was not
acquired until the third quarter of 2001 so the year 2001
does not include a full year of operations. As explained in
Note 15 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
during 2002 the Company also recognized an impairment
loss of $28.7 million related to these discontinued opera-
tions. 

INCOME TAXES

The Company’s income tax expense on continuing opera-
tions for 2002 was $167.7 million compared to $161.9 mil-
lion in 2001 and $79.7 million in 2000. The Company’s
effective income tax rate was 34.9% in 2002, 35.8% in 2001
and 32.8% in 2000. The lower effective tax rate for 2002 is

mainly due to higher book income resulting from the non-
amortization of goodwill. The lower effective tax rate for
2000 resulted mainly from a higher percentage of nontaxable
income and lower nondeductible merger-related expenses.

BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS

EARNING ASSETS

Earning assets consist of money market investments, securi-
ties and loans. A comparative average balance sheet report,
including earning assets, is presented in Schedule 2. Average
earning assets increased 10.8% to $23,176 million in 2002
compared to $20,911 million in 2001. Average earning
assets comprised 88.1% of total average assets in 2002 com-
pared with 87.8% in 2001. Average earnings assets were
91.1% of average tangible assets in 2002 compared to
90.9% in 2001. 

Average money market investments, consisting of interest-
bearing deposits, federal funds sold and security resell agree-
ments, increased 29.8% to $1,199 million in 2002 com-
pared to $924 million in 2001. This increase resulted from
a significant acceleration in the rate of deposit growth, par-
ticularly in the second half of the year, which outpaced the
Company’s increase in loans and lease assets. Average port-
folio securities decreased 2.7% to $3,863 million in 2002,
compared to $3,972 million in 2001. Average trading
account securities decreased 5.6% to $611 million. 

Average net loans and leases, including loans held for sale,
increased 13.1% to $18,114 million in 2002 compared to
$16,015 million in 2001, representing 78.2% of average
earning assets in 2002 compared to 76.6% in 2001. Average
net loans and leases were 97.4% of average total deposits in
2002, as compared to 95.6% in 2001.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES PORTFOLIO

Schedule 6 presents the Company’s year-end investment
securities on December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000.
Schedule 7 presents the Company’s maturities and average
yields on securities on December 31, 2002. See Notes 1,4
and 7 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information about securities.



{43}Zions Bancorporation Annual Report 2002

SCHEDULE 6

INVESTMENT SECURITIES PORTFOLIO
December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Estimated Estimated Estimated
Amortized market Amortized market Amortized market

(Amounts in millions) cost value cost value cost value

HELD TO MATURITY:

U.S. Treasury securities $ - - - - 1 1
U.S. government agencies and corporations:

Small Business Administration
loan-backed securities - - - - 560 563

Other agency securities - - - - 1,269 1,285
States and political subdivisions - - - - 292 296
Mortgage-backed securities - - 79 80 1,003 1,008

- - 79 80 3,125 3,153

AVAILABLE FOR SALE:

U.S. Treasury securities 44 47 61 63 51 52
U.S. government agencies and corporations:

Small Business Administration 
loan-backed securities 752 756 674 674 - -

Other agency securities 299 302 769 781 94 94
States and political subdivisions 640 645 505 514 185 190
Mortgage/asset-backed and 

other debt securities 1,187 1,208 960 969 274 273

2,922 2,958 2,969 3,001 604 609

Equity securities:
Mutual funds 317 321 266 267 159 160
Stock 15 25 10 16 18 13

332 346 276 283 177 173

3,254 3,304 3,245 3,284 781 782

Total $ 3,254 3,304 3,324 3,364 3,906 3,935

SCHEDULE 7

MATURITIES AND AVERAGE YIELDS ON SECURITIES

ON DECEMBER 31, 2002

After one but After five but
Total securities Within one year within five years within ten years After ten years

(Amounts in millions) Amount Yield* Amount Yield* Amount Yield* Amount Yield* Amount Yield*

AVAILABLE FOR SALE:
U.S. Treasury securities $ 44 4.9% $ 24 3.3% $ 20 6.8% - -
U.S. government agencies and corporations:

Small Business Administration
loan-backed securities 752 4.6 170 4.6 379 4.6 $ 153 4.6% $ 50 4.6%

Other agency securities 299 4.9 112 1.8 12 5.8 16 7.4 159 6.8
States and political subdivisions 640 8.1 89 7.6 175 7.9 204 8.1 172 8.5
Mortgage/asset-backed and 

other debt securities 1,187 5.8 256 5.8 584 5.8 250 5.8 97 5.8

2,922 5.9 651 5.0 1,170 5.8 623 6.3 478 7.0

Equity securities:
Mutual funds 317 2.1 212 1.0 - - 105 4.4
Stock 15 - - - - 15 -

332 2.0 212 1.0 - - 120 3.9

Total $ 3,254 5.5% $ 863 4.0% $ 1,170 5.8% $ 623 6.3% $ 598 6.3%

*Taxable-equivalent rates used where applicable.
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LOAN PORTFOLIO

During 2002, the Company consummated sales of automo-
bile loans, credit card receivables, home equity credit lines,
small business loans, low loan-to-value commercial mort-
gages and Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation
(“Farmer Mac”) loans totaling $1,344 million, compared to
securitized loan sales of $1,685 million during 2001. In
December 2002, the Company repurchased at fair value
from securitizations $361.7 million of automobile loans and
$68.5 million of credit card receivables. During 2002, the
Company also sold $567 million of long-term residential
mortgage loans, small business loans, Farmer Mac loans and
student loans classified as held for sale compared to $610
million sold during 2001. After these sales and repurchases,

gross on-balance-sheet loans and leases at December 31,
2002 totaled $19,133 million, an increase of 9.9% com-
pared to $17,413 million at December 31, 2001. 

Schedule 8 sets forth the amount of loans outstanding by
type on December 31 for the years indicated and the matu-
rity distribution and sensitivity to changes in interest rates
of the portfolio on December 31, 2002.

During 2002 the Company changed the classification of
loans to more appropriate presentation categories.
Information to reclassify the loans to the new categories for
periods prior to 2001 is not available.
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SCHEDULE 8

LOAN PORTFOLIO BY TYPE AND MATURITY
December 31, 2002

One year Over
One year through five

(Amounts in millions) or less five years years Total December 31, 2001

Loans held for sale $ 5 118 166 289 298
Commercial lending:

Commercial and industrial 2,062 1,330 732 4,124 3,921
Leasing 25 248 111 384 421
Owner occupied 337 451 2,230 3,018 2,344

Total commercial lending 2,424 2,029 3,073 7,526 6,686

Commercial real estate:
Construction 2,028 848 71 2,947 2,874
Term 372 1,146 1,657 3,175 3,027

Total commercial real estate 2,400 1,994 1,728 6,122 5,901

Consumer:
Home equity credit line 90 27 534 651 401
1-4 family residential 288 352 2,569 3,209 3,173
Bankcard and other revolving plans 95 109 1 205 126
Other 150 655 195 1,000 707

Total consumer 623 1,143 3,299 5,065 4,407

Foreign loans - 2 3 5 14
Other receivables 108 14 4 126 107

Total loans $ 5,560 5,300 8,273 19,133 17,413

Loans maturing in more than one year:
With fixed interest rates $ 2,478 3,246 5,724
With variable interest rates 2,822 5,027 7,849

Total $ 5,300 8,273 13,573

During 2002 the Company changed the classification of loans to more appropriate presentation categories. Information to reclassify the loans to the new categories for periods prior
to 2001 is not available.

December 31,

(Amounts in millions) 2000 1999 1998

Loans held for sale $ 181 205 232

Commercial, financial 
and agricultural 3,615 3,036 2,844

Loans secured by real estate:
Construction 2,273 1,722 960
Other:

Home equity credit line 263 232 232
1-4 family residential 2,911 2,503 2,207
Other real estate-secured 4,190 4,168 3,894

9,637 8,625 7,293

Consumer:
Bankcard and other revolving plans 135 107 99
Other 472 490 472

607 597 571

Lease financing 317 275 214

Foreign loans 26 53 44

Other receivables 75 62 72

Total loans $ 14,458 12,853 11,270
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SOLD LOANS BEING SERVICED

On December 31, 2002, conforming long-term first mort-
gage real estate loans serviced for others amounted to $342
million, compared to $364 million on December 31, 2001,
and $198 million on December 31, 2000. Consumer and
other loan securitizations serviced totaled $2,476 million,
$2,648 million, and $1,750 million on December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Schedule 9 summarizes
the Company’s sales and outstanding balances in its sold
loans being serviced portfolio (excluding conforming long-
term first mortgage real estate loans). See Notes 1 and 6 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information on asset securitizations.

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had assets of $244
million recorded on its balance sheet related to the $2,476
million of loans sold to securitized trusts. The Company
does not control nor have any equity interests in the trusts.
However, as is common with securitized transactions, the
Company has retained subordinated interests of $133 mil-
lion representing the Company’s junior position to other
investors in the securities. The capitalized residual cash
flows (sometimes called “excess servicing”) of $111 million
principally represent the present value of excess cash flows
over the life of the sold loans. These excess cash flows are
subject to prepayment risk. See Note 6 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

SCHEDULE 9

SOLD LOANS BEING SERVICED

2002 2001 2000

Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
(Amounts in millions) Sales at year-end Sales at year-end Sales at year-end

Auto loans $ 245 - 206 312 164 310
Home equity credit lines 362 447 308 349 248 312
Bankcard receivables 197 - 259 79 169 61
Nonconforming residential real estate loans - 80 281 222 - -
Home refinance loans - - - - - 6
Small business loans 443 1,351 447 1,079 494 722
SBA 7(a) loans 16 194 76 237 1 52
Farmer Mac 81 404 108 370 65 287

Total $ 1,344 2,476 1,685 2,648 1,141 1,750

Residual interests Residual interests
on balance sheet at December 31, 2002 on balance sheet at December 31, 2001

Subordinated Capitalized Subordinated Capitalized
retained residual retained residual
interests cash flows Total interests cash flows Total

Auto loans $ - - - 20 19 39
Home equity credit lines 11 9 20 9 10 19
Bankcard receivables - - - 3 1 4
Nonconforming residential real estate loans 3 2 5 3 7 10
Home refinance loans - - - - - -
Small business loans 119 93 212 93 74 167
SBA 7(a) loans - 2 2 - 2 2
Farmer Mac - 5 5 - 3 3

Total $ 133 111 244 128 116 244
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OTHER NONINTEREST BEARING INVESTMENTS

At December 31, 2002, the Company had $602 million of
other noninterest bearing investments compared to $616
million at December 31, 2001. At year-end 2002, these
investments included $348 million of bank-owned life
insurance, $94 million of Federal Home Loan Bank and
Federal Reserve stock, $71 million of investments in non-

public ventures through four Small Business Investment
Companies and $89 million of investments in other uncon-
solidated publicly traded and nonpublic companies
accounted for using the equity method of accounting. 

The following table presents certain information regarding
the publicly traded companies accounted for using the equi-
ty method:

December 31, 2002

Carrying Market Unrealized
(Amounts in millions) Symbol Exchange value value gain (loss)

COMPANY
Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation (Farmer Mac) AGM/A NYSE $ 4 7 3
Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation (Farmer Mac) AGM NYSE 20 46 26
ICAP plc (Garban - Intercapital PLC) IAP.L London Stock 32 92 60

Exchange
MACC Private Equities, Inc. MACC NASDAQ 3 2 (1)

Total publicly traded equity investments $ 59 147 88

DEPOSITS AND BORROWED FUNDS

Total deposits increased 12.8% to $20,132 million on
December 31, 2002, as compared to $17,842 million on
December 31, 2001. Comparing December 31, 2002 to
December 31, 2001, demand deposits increased 14.2% and
savings and money market deposits increased 22.6%. Time
deposits under $100,000 decreased 14.0% and time
deposits $100,000 and over decreased 15.8%.

As derived from Schedule 2, total average deposits increased
11.0% to $18,602 million in 2002 from $16,754 million in
2001. Average noninterest-bearing deposits increased
15.7%, average savings and NOW deposits increased
24.0%, and average money market and super NOW
deposits increased 14.0%. Average time deposits under
$100,000 decreased 3.7% and average time deposits
$100,000 and over decreased 10.4% from 2001.

See Notes 11, 12 and 13 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements and the discussion under Liquidity
Risk Management for information on borrowed funds.

CAPITAL

The Company’s basic financial objective is to consistently
produce superior risk-adjusted returns on its shareholders’
capital. The Company believes that a strong capital position
is vital to continued profitability and to promote depositor
and investor confidence. The Company’s goal is to steadily
achieve a high return on shareholders’ equity, while at the
same time maintaining “risk-based capital” of not less than

the “well-capitalized” threshold, as defined by federal bank-
ing regulators. See Note 20 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information on risk-
based capital.

Total shareholders’ equity on December 31, 2002 was
$2,374 million, an increase of 4.1% over total shareholders’
equity of $2,281 million on December 31, 2001. The
Company’s capital ratios are as follows at December 31,
2002 and 2001:

December 31,

2002 2001

Tangible common equity ratio 6.06% 5.98%
Average common equity to average assets 8.90 8.95

Risk-based capital ratios:
Tier 1 leverage 7.56 6.56
Tier 1 risk-based capital 9.26 8.25
Total risk-based capital 12.94 12.20

The Company repurchased and retired 2,393,881 shares of
its common stock at a cost of $113.2 million in 2002,
883,240 shares at a cost of $46.5 million in 2001 and
80,174 shares at a cost of $3.9 million in 2000. At
December 31, 2002, the Company had authorization to
repurchase an additional $27.6 million of common stock
under its share repurchase program.

The U.S. federal bank regulatory agencies’ risk-capital
guidelines are based upon the 1988 capital accord of the
Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (the “BIS”). The
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BIS is a committee of central banks and bank supervisors /
regulators from the major industrialized countries that
develops broad policy guidelines that each country’s super-
visors can use to determine the supervisory policies they
apply. In January 2001, the BIS released a proposal to
replace the 1988 capital accord with a new capital accord
that would set capital requirements for operational risk and
refine the existing capital requirements for credit risk and
market risk exposures. Operational risk is defined to mean
the risk of direct or indirect loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. The 1988 capital accord does not include
separate capital requirements for operational risk. The
events of September 11, 2001 demonstrate the importance
for financial institutions to manage operational risks. The
BIS proposal outlines several alternatives for capital assess-
ment of operational risks, including two standardized
approaches and an “internal measurement approach” tai-
lored to individual institutions’ circumstances. Revisions to
the proposals were made in 2002 and are still under con-
sideration by the BIS. The BIS has stated that its objective
is to finalize a new capital accord in the fourth quarter of
2003 and for member countries to implement the new
accord at year-end 2006. The ultimate timing for the new
accord and the specifics of capital assessments for address-
ing operational risk are uncertain. However, the Company
expects that a new capital accord addressing operational risk
will eventually be adopted by the BIS and implemented by
the U.S. federal bank regulatory agencies. The Company is
evaluating what effect the new capital requirements that
may arise out of a new BIS capital accord may have on its
minimum capital requirements.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends per share were $.80 for each of the years 2002
and 2001, and $.89 for 2000. Dividends were $.29 for the
first quarter of 2000 and were reduced to $.20 for the sec-
ond quarter of 2000 and remained at $.20 through the
fourth quarter of 2002. In January 2003, the Company’s
Board of Directors approved an increase in the quarterly
dividend to $.21 per share.

FOREIGN OPERATIONS

Zions First National Bank opened a foreign branch in
Grand Cayman, Grand Cayman Islands, B.W.I. in 1980.

The branch accepts deposits from qualified customers.
Foreign deposits at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
totaled $191 million, $133 million and $136 million,
respectively, and averaged $106 million for 2002, $106 mil-
lion for 2001 and $138 million for 2000. See Schedule 8 for
details of foreign loans outstanding. 

RISK ELEMENTS

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

Management of credit risk is essential in maintaining a safe
and sound institution. The Company has structured its
organization to separate the lending function from the credit
administration function to strengthen the control and inde-
pendent evaluation of credit activities. Loan policies and pro-
cedures provide the Company with a framework for consis-
tent underwriting and a basis for sound credit decisions. In
addition, the Company has well-defined standards for grad-
ing its loan portfolio, and management utilizes a comprehen-
sive loan grading system to determine risk potential in the
portfolio. A separate internal credit examination department
periodically conducts examinations of the quality, documen-
tation and administration of the Company’s lending depart-
ments, and submits reports thereon to a committee of the
Board of Directors. Emphasis is placed on early detection of
potential problem credits so that action plans can be devel-
oped on a timely basis to mitigate losses.

Another aspect of the Company’s credit risk management
strategy is the diversification of the loan portfolio. At 
year-end 2002, 39% of the Company’s portfolio was in
commercial lending, of which 55% were commercial and
industrial loans, 40% were owner occupied properties and
5% were lease financing. Commercial real estate loans were
32% of total loans with 52% of the commercial real estate
loans being term and 48% being construction. Consumer
loans represented 26% of total loans and 63% of consumer
loans were 1-4 family residential, 13% were home equity
credit lines, 4% were bankcard and other revolving plans,
and 20% were other consumer loans. Loans held for sale
were 2% of year-end loans and other loans were 1%. 

As reflected in the following table, the commercial real
estate loan portfolio is also well diversified by property type
and collateral location:
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Product Product
Northern Southern as % of loan as % of

Collateral Location Arizona California California Nevada Colorado Utah Washington Other Total type total CRE

Commercial term:
Industrial 1.24% 0.56 2.51 0.04 0.34 0.28 0.12 0.29 5.37 10.2 5.4
Office 2.18 1.17 3.00 3.08 1.80 1.77 0.18 0.38 13.56 25.7 13.6
Retail 2.09 1.51 4.27 1.25 0.71 0.42 0.10 0.69 11.03 20.9 11.0
Hotel/motel 0.91 0.45 1.10 0.57 0.60 1.27 0.21 1.25 6.37 12.1 6.4
A&D 0.55 0.02 0.09 0.20 0.27 0.23 0.12 0.08 1.56 3.0 1.6
Medical 0.82 0.03 0.80 0.64 0.12 0.14 0.00 0.00 2.55 4.8 2.6
Recreation/restaurant 0.45 0.21 0.32 0.16 0.09 0.06 0.00 0.12 1.42 2.7 1.4
Multifamily 0.60 0.28 1.37 0.62 0.56 0.92 0.19 0.31 4.86 9.2 4.9
Other 0.70 0.52 1.43 0.90 0.58 1.01 0.06 0.85 6.04 11.4 6.0
Total commercial term 9.55 4.75 14.89 7.45 5.06 6.11 0.99 3.97 52.77 100.0 52.8

Residential construction:
Single family housing 3.74 0.78 3.21 0.70 2.91 3.77 0.58 0.70 16.40 34.7 16.4
Land acquisition &

development 2.15 1.62 1.90 0.22 0.47 0.28 0.18 0.50 7.32 15.5 7.3
Total residential construction 5.89 2.41 5.10 0.92 3.39 4.05 0.75 1.20 23.72 50.2 23.7

Commercial construction:
Industrial 0.56 0.00 0.36 0.26 0.48 0.18 0.01 0.26 2.11 4.5 2.1
Office 0.46 0.92 1.93 0.99 0.41 1.15 0.61 0.11 6.58 13.9 6.6
Retail 1.87 0.00 1.50 1.99 0.15 0.87 0.36 0.10 6.83 14.5 6.8
Hotel/motel 0.00 0.44 0.28 0.29 0.12 0.21 0.21 0.16 1.71 3.6 1.7
A&D 0.43 0.18 0.27 0.60 0.08 0.19 0.11 0.03 1.88 4.0 1.9
Medical 0.30 0.00 0.19 0.03 0.00 0.04 0.01 0.00 0.57 1.2 0.6
Recreation/restaurant 0.05 0.00 0.19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.24 0.5 0.2
Other 0.03 0.01 0.12 0.20 0.21 0.11 0.15 0.05 0.87 1.8 0.9
Apartments 0.58 0.11 0.75 0.00 0.62 0.00 0.09 0.55 2.72 5.8 2.7
Total commercial construction 4.29 1.67 5.59 4.35 2.08 2.74 1.55 1.26 23.51 49.8 23.5
Total construction 10.18 4.07 10.69 5.27 5.46 6.80 2.30 2.46 47.23 100.0 47.2
Total commercial real estate 19.73% 8.82 25.58 12.72 10.52 12.90 3.29 6.43 100.00

Note: Excludes approximately $223 million of unsecured loans outstanding, but related to the real estate industry.

COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE PORTFOLIO BY PROPERTY TYPE AND COLLATERAL LOCATION 
REPRESENTS PERCENTAGES BASED UPON OUTSTANDING COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE LOANS
ON DECEMBER 31, 2002
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The Company’s concentration in owner occupied commer-
cial loans is in part mitigated by its emphasis on lending
programs sponsored by the Small Business Administration,
which carries the preponderance of credit risk on these types
of loans. In addition, the Company attempts to avoid the
risk of an undue concentration of credits in a particular
industry, trade group or property type. See Note 5 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further
information on concentrations of credit risk. The Company
has no significant exposure to highly leveraged transactions.
Most of the Company’s business activity is with customers
located within the states of Utah, Idaho, California,
Nevada, Arizona, Colorado, and Washington. Also, the
Company does not have significant exposure to any indi-
vidual customer or counterparty. 

NONPERFORMING ASSETS

Nonperforming assets include nonaccrual loans, restruc-
tured loans and other real estate owned. Loans are generally
placed on nonaccrual status when the loan is 90 days or
more past due as to principal or interest, unless the loan is
well secured and in the process of collection. Consumer
loans are normally not placed on a nonaccrual status, inas-
much as they are generally charged off when they become
120 days past due. Loans may be restructured to provide a
reduction or deferral of interest or principal payments when
the financial condition of the borrower deteriorates and
requires that the borrower be given temporary or permanent
relief from the original contractual terms of the credit. Other
real estate owned is primarily acquired through or in lieu of
foreclosure on credits secured by real estate.

The Company’s nonperforming assets were $116 million on
December 31, 2002, down from $120 million on
December 31, 2001. Such nonperforming assets as a per-
centage of net loans and leases, other real estate owned and
other nonperforming assets were .61% on December 31,
2002, compared to .69% on December 31, 2001. 

Accruing loans past due 90 days or more totaled $37 million
on December 31, 2002, down from $46 million on
December 31, 2001. These loans equaled .20% of net loans
and leases on December 31, 2002, as compared to .27% on
December 31, 2001. 

The Company’s total recorded investment in impaired loans
included in nonaccrual loans and leases amounted to $44
million and $80 million on December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Loans, other than those included in large
groups of smaller-balance homogeneous loans, are consid-
ered impaired when, based on current information and
events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to
collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms
of the loan agreement, including scheduled interest pay-
ments. The amount of the impairment is measured based
on the present value of expected cash flows, the observable
market price of the loan, or the fair value of the collateral.
Impairment amounts are included in the allowance for loan
losses through a provision for loan losses. Included in the
allowance for loan losses on December 31, 2002 and 2001,
is an allowance of $7 million and $18 million, respectively,
on $20 million and $20 million, respectively, of the record-
ed investment in impaired loans. See Note 5 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional informa-
tion on impaired loans.
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December 31,

(Amounts in millions) 2002 2001

Nonaccrual loans:
Commercial lending:

Commercial and industrial $ 29 40
Leasing 11 6
Owner occupied 14 18

Commercial real estate:
Construction 7 12
Term 4 20

Consumer:
Real estate 11 9
Other 4 2

Other 2 2
Restructured loans:

Commercial real estate:
Construction 1 1
Term 1 -

Other real estate owned:
Commercial, financial and agricultural:

Improved 23 4
Unimproved 3 2

Residential, 1-4 Family 6 4

Total $ 116 120

% of net loans and leases* and other real
estate owned 0.61% 0.69%

Accruing loans past due 90 days or more:
Commercial lending $ 13 22
Commercial real estate 10 13
Consumer 12 11
Other receivables 2 -

Total $ 37 46

% of net loans* and leases 0.20% 0.27%

During 2002 the Company changed the classification of loans to more appropriate
presentation categories. Information to reclassify the loans to the new categories for
periods prior to 2001 is not available.

December 31,

(Amounts in millions) 2000 1999 1998

Nonaccrual loans:
Commercial, financial 

and agricultural $ 20 29 12
Real estate 34 34 39
Consumer 2 1 1
Lease financing 2 1 3
Other - - -

Restructured loans:
Commercial, financial 

and agricultural 2 - -
Real estate 1 1 5

Other real estate owned:
Commercial, financial 

and agricultural:
Improved 6 5 -
Unimproved 2 3 -

Residential, 1-4 Family 2 1 2
Other - - 3

Total $ 71 75 65

% of net loans* and leases, 
other real estate owned 
and other nonperforming assets 0.49% 0.58% 0.58%

Accruing loans past due 90 days 
or more:

Commercial, financial 
and agricultural $ 8 4 5

Real estate 18 15 20
Consumer 1 2 1

Total $ 27 21 26

% of net loans* and leases 0.19% 0.16% 0.23%

* Includes loans held for sale.

SCHEDULE 10

NONPERFORMING ASSETS

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

In analyzing the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses,
management utilizes a comprehensive loan grading system
to determine risk potential in the portfolio, and considers
the results of independent internal and external credit
reviews. To determine the adequacy of the allowance, the
Company’s loan and lease portfolio is broken into segments
based on loan type. Historical loss experience factors by
segment, adjusted for changes in trends and conditions, are
used in determining the required allowance for each seg-
ment. Historical loss factors are evaluated and updated
using migration analysis techniques and other considera-
tions based on the makeup of the specific portfolio seg-
ment. Other considerations such as volumes and trends of

delinquencies, nonaccruals, repossessions and bankrupt-
cies, criticized and classified loan trends, current and 
anticipated foreclosure losses, new products and policies,
economic conditions, concentrations of credit risk, and
experience and abilities of lending personnel are also con-
sidered in establishing the loss factors. 

All loans graded substandard or doubtful in the amount of
$500 thousand or more are individually evaluated based on
facts and circumstances of the loan, and a specific allowance
amount may be designated. Specific allowances may also be
established for loans in amounts below the specified thresh-
olds when it is determined that the risk differs significantly
from factor amounts established for the category. 
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SCHEDULE 11

ALLOCATION OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES
ON DECEMBER 31

2002 2001

% of Allocation % of Allocation
total of total of

(Amounts in millions) loans allowance loans allowance

TYPE OF LOAN

Loans held for sale 1.5% $  2 1.7% $    2
Commercial lending 39.3 132 38.5 123
Commercial real estate 32.0 91 33.9 89
Consumer 26.5 42 25.3 35
Other receivables 0.7 2 0.6 2

Total loans 100.0% 100.0%

Off-balance sheet unused commitments
and standby letters of credit 10 8

Total allocated 279 259
Unallocated 1 1

Total allowance for loan losses $  280 $   260

During 2002 the Company changed the classification of loans to more appropriate presentation categories. Information to reclassify the loans to the new categories for periods prior
to 2001 is not available.

Although management has allocated a portion of the
allowance to specific loan categories using the methods
described, the adequacy of the allowance must be consid-
ered in its entirety. To mitigate the imprecision in most esti-
mates of expected credit losses, the allocated component of
the allowance is supplemented by an unallocated compo-
nent. The unallocated portion of the allowance includes
management’s judgmental determination of the amounts
necessary for subjective factors such as economic uncertain-
ties and concentration risks. Accordingly, the relationship of

the unallocated component to the total allowance for loan
losses may fluctuate from period to period. On December
31, 2002, the allowance for loan losses includes an alloca-
tion of $10 million related to commitments to extend cred-
it on loans for which the Company could separate the cred-
it risk from that of any related loans on the balance sheet
and for standby letters of credit. Schedule 11 provides a
breakdown of the allowance for loan losses by loan catego-
ry and Schedule 12 summarizes loan loss experience. 

2000 1999 1998

% of Allocation % of Allocation % of Allocation
total of total of total of

(Amounts in millions) loans allowance loans allowance loans allowance

TYPE OF LOAN

Loans held for sale 1.3% $ - 1.6% $   - 2.1% $  -
Commercial, financial and agricultural 25.1 57 23.8 46 25.4 83
Real estate 66.7 110 67.4 100 64.9 52
Consumer 4.2 9 4.6 12 5.1 12
Lease financing 2.2 4 2.1 6 1.9 6
Other receivables 0.5 - 0.5 - 0.6 -

Total loans 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Off-balance sheet unused commitments
and standby letters of credit 14 23 20

Total allocated 194 187 173
Unallocated 2 17 40

Total allowance for loan losses $    196 $ 204 $ 213
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SCHEDULE 12

SUMMARY OF LOAN LOSS EXPERIENCE

(Amounts in millions) 2002 2001

Loans* and leases outstanding on December 31, (net of unearned income) $   19,040 17,311

Average loans* and leases outstanding (net of unearned income) $   18,114 16,015

Allowance for loan losses:
Balance at beginning of year $   260 196
Allowance of companies acquired 1 30
Allowance associated with repurchased revolving securitized loans 10 -
Provision charged against earnings 72 73
Loans and leases charged-off:

Commercial lending (54) (37)
Commercial real estate (10) (4)
Consumer (20) (14)

Total (84) (55)

Recoveries:
Commercial lending 14 11
Commercial real estate 3 1
Consumer 4 4

Total 21 16

Net loan and lease charge-offs (63) (39)

Balance at end of year $   280 260

Ratio of net charge-offs to average loans and leases 0.35% 0.24%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to loans and leases outstanding on December 31, 1.47% 1.50%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans on December 31, 332.37% 236.65%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to nonaccrual loans and accruing loans past due 90

days or more on December 31, 234.14% 168.23%

During 2002 the Company changed the classification of loans to more appropriate presentation categories. Information to reclassify the loans to the new categories for periods prior
to 2001 is not available.

(Amounts in millions) 2000 1999 1998

Loans* and leases outstanding on December 31, (net of unearned income) $ 14,378 12,791 11,219

Average loans* and leases outstanding (net of unearned income) $ 13,649 11,819 7,632

Allowance for loan losses:
Balance at beginning of year $ 204 213 89
Allowance of companies acquired 2 3 126
Provision charged against earnings 32 18 14
Loans and leases charged-off:

Commercial, financial and agricultural (38) (32) (9)
Real estate (4) (3) (6)
Consumer (9) (9) (9)
Lease financing (2) (2) (1)

Total (53) (46) (25)

Recoveries:
Commercial, financial and agricultural 6 6 3
Real estate 1 7 3
Consumer 3 3 3
Lease financing 1 - -

Total 11 16 9

Net loan and lease charge-offs (42) (30) (16)

Balance at end of year $ 196 204 213

Ratio of net charge-offs to average loans and leases 0.31% 0.25% 0.21%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to loans and leases outstanding on December 31, 1.36% 1.60% 1.89%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans on December 31, 320.69% 310.87% 354.94%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to nonaccrual loans and accruing loans past due 90

days or more on December 31, 229.35% 238.07% 264.20%

* Includes loans held for sale.



Market risk is the possibility that changes in interest rates or
equity securities prices will impair the fair value of the
Company’s financial instruments. The Asset/Liability
Committee (“ALCOM”) measures and reviews the market
risk of the Company and establishes policies and procedures
to limit its exposure to changes in interest rates. These poli-
cies are reviewed and approved by the Boards of Directors
of the Company’s subsidiary banks. ALCOM objectives are
summarized as follows: ensure the safety and soundness of
bank deposits, while providing an appropriate return to
shareholders; provide the basis for integrated balance sheet,
net interest income and liquidity management; calculate the
duration, dollar duration, and convexity of each class of
assets, liabilities, and net equity given defined interest rate
scenarios; manage the Company’s exposure to changes in
net interest income and market value of equity due to inter-
est rate fluctuations; quantify the effect of hedging instru-
ments on the market value of equity and net interest income
under defined interest rate scenarios; and identify and
report any risk exposures that exceed limitations approved
by the Board of Directors.

Interest rate risk is the most significant market risk regular-
ly incurred by the Company. This risk is monitored through
the use of two complementary measurement methods:
duration of equity and income simulation. Duration of
equity is a measure of changes in the market value of equi-
ty in response to changes in interest rates. Income simula-
tion analyzes the change in income in response to changes
in interest rates. The Company uses the asset-liability man-
agement system marketed by QRM both in measuring
duration and income simulation. In general the Company’s
interest rate risk management practices seek to not take
positions with regard to either duration or income simula-
tion that seek to benefit from a particular forecast of inter-
est rate changes, and under most circumstances to maintain
a slightly “asset sensitive” position. An “asset sensitive” posi-
tion is one in which net interest income would increase if
interest rates increase. In a rising rate environment manage-
ment believes that the market cost of equity, or implied rate
at which future earnings are discounted, also would tend to
rise. Therefore, it seeks to have increased net interest
income in a rising environment in order to mitigate declines

in the market value of equity due to higher discount rates.

Duration of equity is derived by first calculating the dollar
duration of all assets, liabilities and derivative instruments.
Dollar duration is determined by calculating the market
value of each instrument assuming interest rates sustain
immediate and parallel movements up 1% and down 1%.
The average of these two changes in market value is the dol-
lar duration, which incorporates the value of embedded and
explicit options within each instrument. Subtracting the
dollar duration of liabilities from the dollar duration of
assets and adding the net dollar duration of derivative
instruments results in the dollar duration of equity.
Duration of equity is computed by dividing the dollar dura-
tion of equity by the market value of equity.

Income simulation is an estimate of the net interest income
that would be recognized under different rate environ-
ments. Net interest income is measured under several paral-
lel and nonparallel interest rate environments and considers
the possible exercise of options within the portfolio. 

Both of these measures require that management measure a
number of variables and make assumptions regarding loan
and security prepayments, early deposit withdrawals, and
other imbedded options and noncontrollable events in
managing the Company’s exposure to changes in interest
rates. The year 2002 was a particularly difficult year to man-
age exposure to interest rate risk. Rates declined to multi-
decade lows, triggering several waves of long-term debt refi-
nancing of all types. Increased volatility and generally
declining prices in equity markets appear to have caused
equity investors to reallocate some of their investments to
less risky and more liquid instruments, including insured
bank deposits. The Company traditionally has been a net
buyer of funds and seller of securitized assets. However, in
the fourth quarter of 2002 the Company briefly became a
net seller of $1.3 billion of Fed Funds, which led to reduc-
ing its off-balance sheet securitization activity. As a result of
the increased uncertainty about the maturity and repricing
characteristics of both deposits and loans the Company esti-
mates ranges of duration and income simulation under a
variety of assumptions and scenarios. The interest rate risk
position is actively managed and changes daily as the inter-
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MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT
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est rate environment changes; therefore, positions at the end
of any period may not be reflective of the Company’s posi-
tion in any subsequent period. 

At year-end 2002, the Company’s duration of equity was
estimated to be within a range of negative 2.0 years and pos-
itive 0.6 years. Duration of equity is highly sensitive to the
assumptions used for deposits with no maturities, such as
checking, savings, and money market accounts. Given the
uncertainty of these durations, management now views the
duration of equity as falling within a range of possibilities.
If interest rates were to sustain an immediate parallel
increase of 200 basis points, the duration of equity would
be estimated to fall within the range of negative 0.8 years
and positive 1.6 years. 

For income simulation, Company policy requires that net
interest income not be expected to decline by more than
10% during one year if rates were to immediately rise or fall
in parallel by 200 basis points. At year-end 2002, net inter-
est income was expected to increase 2.7% if interest rates
were to sustain an immediate parallel increase of 200 basis
points and decline 9.0% if rates were to sustain an immedi-
ate parallel decrease of 200 basis points. It should be noted

that LIBOR and U.S. Treasury rates with maturities six
months and less were below 2% at year-end 2002; in the
scenario of interest rates decreasing 200 basis points, rates
were not permitted to fall below .1%. At year-end 2001, net
interest income was expected to increase 3.8% if rates were
to increase in parallel 200 basis points and decline 10.0% if
rates were to decrease in parallel 200 basis points. These
estimates include management’s assumptions regarding loan
and deposit pricing, security and loan prepayments, and
changing relationships to market rates. 

At year-end the one-year gap for the Company was positive
$566 million; i.e., the $16,545 million of assets that mature
or reprice during 2002 was greater than the sum of $15,034
million of liabilities and the negative $945 million net effect
of derivative instruments that mature or reprice during the
same period. This gap represented 2.1% of total assets.
Details of the repricing characteristics of the balance sheet as
of year-end are presented in Schedule 13. The Company
does not have policy limits regarding its gap position, nor
does it utilize “gap analysis” in its asset-liability management;
it utilizes simulation and duration analyses described earlier.
Hence, the following table is presented for information only.
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The Company, through the management of maturities and
repricing of its assets and liabilities and the use of interest
rate swaps, attempts to manage the effect on net interest
income of changes in interest rates. The prime lending and
the LIBOR (London Interbank Offer Rate) curve are the
primary indices used for pricing the Company’s loans, and
the 91-day Treasury bill rate is the index used for pricing

many of the Company’s deposits. The Company does not
hedge the prime/LIBOR/T-bill spread risk through the use
of derivative instruments. Interest rate swap maturities and
average rates are presented in Schedule 14. For additional
information regarding derivative instruments, refer to Notes
1 and 7 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

SCHEDULE 13

MATURITIES AND INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

ON DECEMBER 31, 2002

Rate sensitive

After three After one
Within months but year but
three within one within five After five Not rate

(Amounts in millions) months year years years sensitive Total

USES OF FUNDS
Earning assets

Interest-bearing deposits $ - - 2 - - 2
Federal funds sold 96 - - - - 96
Security resell agreements 445 - - - - 445
Securities:

Available for sale 1,426 869 316 693 - 3,304
Trading account 332 - - - - 332

Loans and leases 10,407 2,970 4,612 771 - 18,760
Nonearning assets - - - - 3,627 3,627

Total uses of funds $ 12,706 3,839 4,930 1,464 3,627 26,566

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Interest-bearing deposits and liabilities:

Savings and money market deposits $ 8,992 40 1,879 743 - 11,654
Time deposits under $100,000 467 881 417 2 - 1,767
Time deposits $100,000 and over 467 673 260 2 - 1,402
Foreign deposits 191 - - - - 191
Securities sold, not yet purchased 204 - - - - 204
Federal funds purchased 820 - - - - 820
Security repurchase agreements 861 - - - - 861
Commercial paper 292 - - - - 292
FHLB advances and other borrowings:

One year or less - 15 1 - - 16
Over one year - 1 8 232 - 241

Long-term debt 310 - 47 713 - 1,070
Noninterest-bearing deposits 820 - - - 4,297 5,117
Other liabilities - - - - 534 534
Minority interest - - - - 23 23
Shareholders’ equity - - - - 2,374 2,374

Total sources of funds $ 13,424 1,610 2,612 1,692 7,228 26,566

Derivative instruments affecting 
interest rate sensitivity $ (1,011) 66 945 - -

Interest rate sensitivity gap $ (1,729) 2,295 3,263 (228) (3,601)
Percent of total assets (6.51)% 8.64% 12.28% (0.86)% (13.55)%
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap $ (1,729) 566 3,829 3,601 -
Cumulative as a % of total assets (6.51)% 2.13% 14.41% 13.55% -
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LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its liquidity to provide adequate
funds to meet its anticipated financial obligations, including
withdrawals by depositors and debt service requirements, as
well as to fund customers’ demand for credit. Liquidity is
provided primarily by the regularly scheduled maturities of
the Company’s investment and loan portfolios. 

The Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) system is a major
source of liquidity for each of the Company’s subsidiary
banks. Zions First National Bank and The Commerce Bank
of Washington are members of the FHLB of Seattle.
California Bank & Trust, Nevada State Bank, and National
Bank of Arizona are members of the FHLB of San Francisco.
Vectra Bank Colorado is a member of the FHLB of Topeka.
The FHLB allows member banks to borrow against their eli-
gible loans to satisfy liquidity requirements. 

As another source of liquidity, the Company’s core deposits,
consisting of demand, savings and money market deposits
and time deposits under $100,000, constituted 92.1% of
total deposits on December 31, 2002, as compared to 89.9%
on December 31, 2001.

Maturing balances in loan portfolios provide flexibility in
managing cash flows. Maturity management of those funds
is an important source of medium to long-term liquidity.
The Company’s ability to raise funds in the capital markets
through the securitization process and by debt issuance pro-
vides the Company additional flexibility in meeting 
funding needs.

On August 21, 2002, the Company sold $285 million of
8.00% Capital Securities issued by a newly formed sub-
sidiary of the Company, Zions Capital Trust B (the “Trust”).
The Capital Securities represent undivided beneficial owner-

ship interests in the assets of the Trust (consisting of junior
subordinated debentures issued by the Company). Holders
of the Capital Securities are entitled to receive cumulative
cash distributions at an annual rate of 8.00%. The cash dis-
tributions, which are payable quarterly in arrears beginning
December 1, 2002, match the timing and amount of the
Company’s interest obligations on the junior subordinated
debentures. The Company has unconditionally guaranteed
the payment of all amounts due on the Capital Securities to
the extent the Trust has funds available for the payment of
such amounts. The Company can, on one or more occa-
sions, defer the quarterly interest payments on the junior
subordinated debentures for up to five years. This would also
have the effect of deferring payments on the Capital
Securities. The Capital Securities are scheduled to be
redeemed on September 1, 2032 and can be redeemed in
whole or in part on or after September 1, 2007 or upon cer-
tain changes in tax laws and regulations or in the treatment
of the Capital Securities for bank regulatory purposes. The
Capital Securities, junior subordinated debentures and the
guarantee were registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission in August 2002 and are traded on the New
York Stock Exchange (ticker “ZBPRB”). 

During the third quarter of 2002, the Company also filed a
prospectus supplement with the Securities and Exchange
Commission for the issuance of up to $340 million of
Senior Medium-Term Notes, Series A and Subordinated
Medium-Term Notes, Series B. The Company may issue
such debt from time to time with the terms of each note
issuance to be specified in a pricing supplement filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission. At December 31,
2002, the Company had issued $46 million of Senior
Medium-Term Notes. These notes are listed on the NYSE
Bond Exchange.

SCHEDULE 14

INTEREST RATE SWAP MATURITIES AND AVERAGE RATES
(Amounts in millions) 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter Total

Receive fixed rate/pay variable rate:
Notional amount $ 186 500 848 123 152 63 1,872
Weighted average rate received 6.85% 5.42% 4.53% 5.63% 5.86% 5.87% 5.22%
Weighted average rate paid 1.66% 1.65% 1.58% 3.90% 3.56% 3.87% 2.00%

Receive variable rate/pay fixed rate:
Notional amount $ 100 475 250 - - - 825
Weighted average rate received 1.42% 1.61% 1.58% - - - 1.58%
Weighted average rate paid 4.90% 4.48% 4.46% - - - 4.52%
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In May 2001, the Company issued $200 million of subor-
dinated debt through a newly formed subsidiary, Zions
Financial Corp. The debt is unconditionally guaranteed by
Zions Bancorporation and matures in May 2011. In
October 2001, the Company issued an additional $200
million of subordinated debt which matures in October
2011. See Notes 11, 12 and 13 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional informa-
tion regarding the Company’s borrowings.

The parent company’s cash requirements consist primarily
of debt service, operating expenses, income taxes, dividends
to shareholders and share repurchases. The Parent’s cash
needs are routinely met through dividends from sub-
sidiaries, investment income, proportionate shares of cur-
rent income taxes, management and other fees, unaffiliated
bank lines, and debt issuance. 

At December 31, 2002, $236.1 million of dividend capaci-
ty was available from subsidiaries to pay to the Parent with-
out having to obtain regulatory approval. During 2002, div-
idends from subsidiaries were $272.3 million. The Parent
also has a program to issue short-term commercial paper. At
December 31, 2002 outstanding commercial paper was
$292 million. At December 31, 2002, the Parent had a
revolving credit facility with a bank totaling $40 million
and a margin borrowing facility totaling $14.3 million. No
balances were borrowed on either of these facilities at year-
end 2002.

Zions First National Bank provides a liquidity facility for a
fee to a qualified special purpose entity securities conduit
(“conduit”). In July of 2001, the liquidity facility was
increased from $2.0 billion to $5.1 billion. The conduit
purchases U.S. Government and AAA rated securities.
These assets are funded through the issuance of commercial
paper. Pursuant to the liquidity contract, ZFNB is required
to purchase securities from the conduit to provide funds for
the conduit to repay maturing commercial paper upon the
conduit’s inability to access the commercial paper market or
upon a commercial paper market disruption as specified in
governing documents to the conduit. No amounts were
outstanding under this liquidity facility at December 31,
2002 and 2001. See Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information on the con-
duit.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

SECURITIZATION TRANSACTIONS

Securitization activities represent a significant source of the
Company’s overall funding as discussed under Liquidity
Risk Management. These transactions involve periodic
transfers of loans or other receivables to off-balance sheet
Qualified Special Purpose Entities (“QSPEs”). The
Company may retain a cash reserve account, an interest-
only strip, and in some cases a subordinated tranche, all of
which are retained interests in the securitized assets. The
Company’s retained interests are subject to credit, prepay-
ment, and interest rate risk. The measurement of the
retained interests requires the Company to make economic
assumptions regarding these risk factors. See Notes 1 and 6
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for dis-
cussions regarding the Company’s policies for valuation and
impairment assessments on asset securitizations, detail on
the assumptions used and the sensitivity of the fair value of
retained interests to adverse changes in the assumptions.

DERIVATIVES

The Company uses certain derivative instruments to add
stability to interest income or expense, to modify the dura-
tion of specific assets and liabilities, and to manage exposure
to interest rate movements. The Company does not partic-
ipate in speculative derivatives trading. The fair value of
these derivative instruments is generally determined using
the market standard methodology of netting discounted
future cash receipts and payments. The values of these
derivatives will change over time as cash receipts and pay-
ments are made and as market conditions change. The
Company also faces the risk that certain derivatives desig-
nated as hedges that currently meet the strict hedge
accounting requirements of SFAS 133 may not qualify in
the future as highly effective or meet the other requirements
of SFAS 133 to be accounted for as hedges. See the section
on Market Risk Management and Notes 1 and 7 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further
information about the Company’s derivatives. 

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Management utilizes a comprehensive loan grading system
to determine risk potential in its loan portfolio. 
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Determination of the allowance is inherently subjective as it
requires significant estimates, including the amounts and
timing of expected future cash flows on impaired loans, esti-
mated losses on pools of homogeneous loans based on his-
torical loss experience, and consideration of current eco-
nomic trends, all of which may be susceptible to significant
change. See the sections on Credit Risk Management,
Allowance for Loan Losses and Provision for Loan Losses,
and Notes 1 and 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for a description of the methodology used by
the Company to determine the required allowance for loan
losses, a discussion of risks associated with the process, and
additional information regarding the allowance and associ-
ated provision.

NONMARKETABLE SECURITIES

The Company, both directly and through its Small Business
Investment Corporation (“SBIC”) and banking sub-
sidiaries, has investments in venture capital securities. These
nonmarketable venture capital securities are reported at esti-
mated fair values in the absence of readily ascertainable fair
values. Management believes that the cost of an investment
is initially the best indication of estimated fair value unless
there have been significant subsequent positive or negative
developments that justify an adjustment to the fair value
estimate. As of December 31, 2002, the carrying value of
these securities, which are classified in other noninterest
bearing investments, was approximately $71 million. The
Company’s portion of any losses incurred on these invest-
ments would be reduced by minority interests in the SBICs.
The values assigned to these securities where no market
quotations exist are based upon available information and
may not necessarily represent amounts that will ultimately
be realized. Although management believes its estimates of
fair value reasonably reflect the fair value of these securities,
key assumptions regarding the projected financial perform-
ance of these companies, the evaluation of the investee com-
pany’s management team, and other economic and market
factors may not necessarily reflect those of an active market
for these investments. If there had been an active market for
these securities at year-end, the carrying value may have
been significantly different than the amounts reported. See
Notes 1 and 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements for additional information regarding these
investments.

RELATED PARTIES

At December 31, 2002, transactions with related parties are
limited to loan and deposit relationships and other transac-
tions in the ordinary course of business. As discussed in
Note 14 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, during 2001 the Company reacquired a minor-
ity interest in its subsidiary California Bank & Trust from
the former CEO and certain senior officers of that sub-
sidiary.

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Statements in Management’s Discussion and Analysis that
are not based on historical data are forward-looking, includ-
ing, for example, the projected performance of the
Company and its operations. These statements constitute
forward-looking information within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Actual
results may differ materially from the projections discussed
in Management’s Discussion and Analysis since such pro-
jections involve significant risks and uncertainties. Factors
that might cause such differences include, but are not lim-
ited to: the timing of closing proposed acquisitions being
delayed or such acquisitions being prohibited; competitive
pressures among financial institutions increasing signifi-
cantly; economic conditions, either nationally or locally in
areas in which the Company conducts its operations, being
less favorable than expected; and legislation or regulatory
changes which adversely affect the Company’s operations or
business. The Company disclaims any obligation to update
any factors or to publicly announce the result of revisions to
any of the forward-looking statements included herein to
reflect future events or developments.
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CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Amounts in millions) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Net interest income $ 1,035.1 949.8 803.4 741.5 573.9
Noninterest income 376.8 412.2 192.6 266.8 210.5

Total revenue 1,411.9 1,362.0 996.0 1,008.3 784.4
Provision for loan losses 71.9 73.2 31.8 18.0 14.0
Noninterest expense 858.9 836.1 721.3 681.8 557.0

Income from continuing operations before 
income taxes and minority interest 481.1 452.7 242.9 308.5 213.4

Income taxes 167.7 161.9 79.7 109.5 69.6
Minority interest (3.7) (7.8) 1.5 4.9 0.4

Income from continuing operations 317.1 298.6 161.7 194.1 143.4
Loss on discontinued operations (28.4) (8.4) - - -

Income before cumulative effect adjustment 288.7 290.2 161.7 194.1 143.4
Cumulative effect adjustment (32.4) (7.2) - - -

Net income $ 256.3 283.0 161.7 194.1 143.4

Net income per share (diluted) $ 2.78 3.07 1.86 2.26 1.75
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Zions Bancorporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Zions Bancorporation and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and comprehensive
income, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by man-
agement, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of Zions Bancorporation and subsidiaries at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the consolidated results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

As discussed in Notes 1 and 9 to the financial statements, effective January 1, 2002, Zions Bancorporation and subsidiaries
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.

Salt Lake City, Utah
January 23, 2003
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(In thousands, except share amounts) 2002 2001
ASSETS

Cash and due from banks $ 1,087,296 978,609
Money market investments:

Interest-bearing deposits 1,690 2,780
Federal funds sold 96,077 57,653
Security resell agreements 444,995 222,147

Investment securities:
Held to maturity, at cost (approximate market 

value $0 and $79,752) - 79,546
Available for sale, at market 3,304,341 3,283,915
Trading account, at market (includes $110,886 and $87,612

transferred as collateral under repurchase agreements) 331,610 102,896

3,635,951 3,466,357
Loans:

Loans held for sale  289,499 297,959 
Loans, leases and other receivables 18,843,006 17,115,485

19,132,505 17,413,444 
Less:

Unearned income and fees, net of related costs 92,662 102,606 
Allowance for loan losses 279,593 260,483 

Net loans 18,760,250 17,050,355 
Other noninterest bearing investments 601,641 615,500 
Premises and equipment, net 393,630 368,076 
Goodwill 730,031 770,763 
Core deposit and other intangibles 82,920 109,148 
Other real estate owned 31,608 10,302 
Other assets 699,600 652,474 

$ 26,565,689 24,304,164 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing demand $ 5,117,458 4,480,669 
Interest-bearing:

Savings and money market 11,654,258 9,507,817 
Time under $100,000 1,766,844 2,055,087 
Time $100,000 and over 1,402,189 1,664,829 
Foreign 191,231 133,288 

20,131,980 17,841,690 
Securities sold, not yet purchased 203,838 87,255 
Federal funds purchased 819,807 1,203,764 
Security repurchase agreements 861,177 933,973 
Accrued liabilities 535,044 428,225 
Commercial paper 291,566 309,000 
Federal Home Loan Bank advances and other borrowings:

One year or less 15,554 181,266 
Over one year 240,698 240,458 

Long-term debt 1,069,505 781,342 

Total liabilities 24,169,169 22,006,973 

Minority interest 22,677 16,322 
Shareholders’ equity:

Capital stock:
Preferred stock, without par value; authorized

3,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding, none - - 
Common stock, without par value; authorized 350,000,000

shares; issued and outstanding 90,717,692 shares
and 92,208,736 shares 1,034,888 1,111,214 

Accumulated other comprehensive income 46,214 59,951 
Retained earnings 1,292,741 1,109,704 

Total shareholders’ equity 2,373,843 2,280,869 

$ 26,565,689 24,304,164 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

ZIONS BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND 2001



{63}Zions Bancorporation Annual Report 2002

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2002 2001 2000
Interest income:

Interest and fees on loans $ 1,227,358 1,292,955 1,236,588 
Interest on loans held for sale 9,437 13,080 14,477 
Lease financing 20,589 22,805 17,222 
Interest on money market investments 18,625 34,879 67,353 
Interest on securities:

Held to maturity - taxable 2,292 3,361 196,917 
Held to maturity - nontaxable - - 16,398 
Available for sale - taxable 128,622 169,224 33,792 
Available for sale - nontaxable 26,889 24,713 7,147 
Trading account 22,107 30,903 36,289 

Total interest income 1,455,919 1,591,920 1,626,183 

Interest expense:
Interest on savings and money market deposits 164,594 251,570 329,373 
Interest on time and foreign deposits 114,128 187,712 174,460 
Interest on borrowed funds 142,055 202,874 318,972 

Total interest expense 420,777 642,156 822,805 

Net interest income 1,035,142 949,764 803,378 
Provision for loan losses 71,879 73,191 31,811 

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 963,263 876,573 771,567 

Noninterest income:
Service charges on deposit accounts 118,994 101,033 78,269 
Loan sales and servicing income 70,153 96,754 51,741 
Other service charges, commissions and fees 81,175 72,996 65,102 
Trust income 18,479 18,298 18,205 
Income from securities conduit 20,317 12,262 213 
Dividends and other investment income 35,469 28,299 27,037 
Market making, trading and nonhedge derivative income 39,029 34,136 10,065 
Equity securities gains (losses), net (25,316) 37,239 22,107 
Fixed income securities gains (losses), net 358 (3,781) 470 
Impairment loss on First Security Corporation common stock - - (96,911)
Other 18,156 14,952 16,324 

Total noninterest income 376,814 412,188 192,622 

Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits 478,028 432,937 348,293 
Occupancy, net 68,627 63,600 51,671 
Furniture and equipment 63,429 60,830 52,704 
Legal and professional services 25,347 30,532 19,707 
Postage and supplies 27,582 27,753 21,888 
Advertising 20,577 22,344 25,416 
Merger related expense - 7,348 45,492 
Restructuring charges 3,349 - - 
Impairment losses on long-lived assets 4,942 - - 
Amortization of goodwill - 31,526 26,173 
Amortization of core deposit and other intangibles 13,379 12,770 11,508 
Other 153,668 146,453 118,433 

Total noninterest expense 858,928 836,093 721,285 

Income from continuing operations before income 
taxes and minority interest 481,149 452,668 242,904 

Income taxes 167,702 161,867 79,661 
Minority interest (3,660) (7,798) 1,534 

Income from continuing operations 317,107 298,599 161,709 

ZIONS BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000
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ZIONS BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (CONTINUED)

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2002 2001 2000

Discontinued operations:
Loss from operations of discontinued subsidiaries $ (18,304) (12,487) -
Impairment losses (28,691) - -
Income tax benefit (18,535) (4,067) -

Loss on discontinued operations (28,460) (8,420) -

Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 288,647 290,179 161,709
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax (32,369) (7,159) -

Net income $ 256,278 283,020 161,709

Weighted average shares outstanding during the year:
Basic shares 91,566 91,202 86,320 
Diluted shares 92,079 92,174 87,120 

Net income per common share:
Basic:

Income from continuing operations $ 3.46 3.27 1.87
Loss on discontinued operations (0.31) (0.09) -
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (0.35) (0.08) -

Net income $ 2.80 3.10 1.87 

Diluted:
Income from continuing operations $ 3.44 3.24 1.86
Loss on discontinued operations (0.31) (0.09) -
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (0.35) (0.08) -

Net income $ 2.78 3.07 1.86

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ZIONS BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss)

Net unrealized Net
gains (losses) unrealized

on investments gains (losses) Minimum Total
Common stock and retained on derivative pension Retained shareholders’

(In thousands, except share amounts) Shares Amount interests instruments liability Subtotal earnings equity

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1999 85,592,643 $ 888,231 (4,158) - - (4,158) 775,765 1,659,838 
Comprehensive income:

Net income 161,709 161,709 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Net realized and unrealized holding losses during
the year, net of income tax benefit of $31,088 (50,187) - - (50,187)

Reclassification for net realized losses recorded in
operations, net of income tax benefit of $31,406 50,701 - - 50,701 

Other comprehensive income 514 - - 514 514

Total comprehensive income 162,223 
Cash dividends—common, $.89 per share (76,762) (76,762)
Issuance of common shares for acquisitions 1,202,593 13,103 14,172 27,275 
Stock redeemed and retired (80,174) (3,899) (3,899)
Stock options exercised, net of shares tendered

and retired 385,126 10,169 10,169

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2000 87,100,188 907,604 (3,644) - - (3,644) 874,884 1,778,844 
Comprehensive income:

Net income 283,020 283,020 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Net realized and unrealized holding gains during
the year, net of income tax expense of $20,859 33,675 - - 33,675 

Reclassification for net realized gains recorded in
operations, net of tax income expense of $7,132 (11,516) - - (11,516)

Net unrealized gains on derivative instruments,
net of reclassification to operations of $20,757
and income tax expense of $4,281 - 6,911 - 6,911 

Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle, adoption of SFAS 133, net
of income tax expense of $21,245 13,259 21,266 - 34,525

Other comprehensive income 35,418 28,177 - 63,595 63,595 

Total comprehensive income 346,615 
Cash dividends—common, $.80 per share (73,899) (73,899)
Issuance of common shares for acquisitions 5,404,872 231,295 25,699 256,994 
Stock redeemed and retired (883,240) (46,462) (46,462)
Stock options exercised, net of shares tendered

and retired 586,916 18,777 18,777

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2001 92,208,736 $1,111,214 31,774 28,177 - 59,951 1,109,704 2,280,869 
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ZIONS BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss)

Net unrealized Net
gains (losses) unrealized

on investments gains (losses) Minimum Total
Common stock and retained on derivative pension Retained shareholders’

(In thousands, except share amounts) Shares Amount interests instruments liability Subtotal earnings equity

Comprehensive income:
Net income $ 256,278 256,278 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Net realized and unrealized holding losses during

the year, net of income tax benefit of $1,880 (3,035) - - (3,035)

Reclassification for net realized losses recorded in
operations, net of tax income benefit of $9,546 15,412 - - 15,412 

Net unrealized losses on derivative instruments,
net of reclassification to operations of $34,916
and income tax benefit of $1,708 - (2,757) - (2,757)

Minimum pension liability, net of income tax
benefit of $15,128 - - (23,357) (23,357)

Other comprehensive income (loss) 12,377 (2,757) (23,357) (13,737) (13,737)

Total comprehensive income 242,541 

Cash dividends—common, $.80 per share (73,241) (73,241)

Issuance of common shares for acquisitions 333,258 17,048 17,048

Stock redeemed and retired (2,393,881) (113,215) (113,215)

Stock options exercised, net of shares tendered
and retired 569,579 19,841 19,841

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2002 90,717,692 $ 1,034,888 44,151 25,420 (23,357) 46,214 1,292,741 2,373,843

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ZIONS BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income $ 256,278 283,020 161,709
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax 32,369 7,159 -
Impairment losses 33,633 - -
Provision for loan losses 71,879 73,191 31,811
Depreciation of premises and equipment 59,131 56,076 50,186
Amortization 37,906 63,538 64,786
Accretion of unearned income and fees, net of related costs (9,944) 15,412 16,983
Income (loss) to minority interest (3,660) (7,798) 1,534
Equity securities losses (gains), net 25,316 (37,239) (22,107)
Fixed income securities losses (gains), net (358) 3,781 (470)
Impairment loss on First Security Corporation common stock - - 96,911
Proceeds from sales of trading account securities 245,115,891 202,892,909 184,357,455
Increase in trading account securities (245,344,605) (202,281,198) (184,310,020)
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale 566,643 609,576 533,285
Increase in loans held for sale (558,183) (726,376) (509,644)
Net gains on sales of loans, leases and other assets (38,530) (69,702) (36,240)
Change in accrued income taxes 27,565 20,911 30,078
Change in accrued interest receivable 37,608 (1,329) (34,447)
Change in other assets (123,506) (104,498) (122,577)
Change in other liabilities 87,918 46,758 16,222
Change in accrued interest payable (5,660) (12,475) 11,342
Other, net 8,374 11,661 12,390

Net cash provided by operating activities 276,065 843,377 349,187

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Net decrease (increase) in money market investments (250,759) 377,387 (348)
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities held to maturity 1,415 12,964 881,175
Purchases of investment securities held to maturity (29,400) (29,347) (663,948)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available for sale 10,081,114 7,072,531 1,245,192
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities available for sale 1,860,299 2,591,160 134,785
Purchases of investment securities available for sale (11,830,782) (9,067,706) (1,442,094)
Proceeds from sales of loans and leases 1,380,430 1,753,195 1,175,687
Securitized loans repurchased (430,164) - -
Net increase in loans and leases (2,679,817) (3,250,280) (2,665,154)
Payments on leveraged leases (9,160) (8,012) (8,125)
Principal collections on leveraged leases 9,160 8,012 8,125
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment 10,037 13,056 12,079
Purchases of premises and equipment (97,821) (91,924) (82,288)
Proceeds from sales of other assets 21,683 23,431 13,927
Net cash received for acquisitions 9,690 209,509 11,886
Net cash paid for net liabilities on branches sold (68,352) - -

Net cash used in investing activities (2,022,427) (386,024) (1,379,101)
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ZIONS BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net increase in deposits $ 2,285,152 747,218 784,806
Net change in short-term funds borrowed (523,316) (1,511,725) 470,771
Proceeds from FHLB advances over one year 3,250 250,000 600,000
Payments on FHLB advances over one year (3,010) (173,948) (568,846)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 331,138 402,218 -
Payments on long-term debt (68,616) (69,152) (33,921)
Cash paid to reacquire minority interest - (66,044) -
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 16,907 15,798 6,717
Payments to redeem common stock (113,215) (46,462) (3,899)
Dividends paid (73,241) (73,899) (76,762)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,855,049 (525,996) 1,178,866

Net increase (decrease) in cash and due from banks 108,687 (68,643) 148,952
Cash and due from banks at beginning of year 978,609 1,047,252 898,300

Cash and due from banks at end of year $ 1,087,296 978,609 1,047,252

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid for:
Interest $ 424,735 651,083 812,018
Income taxes 113,349 156,307 63,825

Loans transferred to other real estate owned 43,987 23,175 13,872

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ZIONS BANCORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

BUSINESS

Zions Bancorporation (“the Parent”) is a financial holding
company headquartered in Salt Lake City, Utah, which pro-
vides a full range of banking and related services through its
subsidiaries operating primarily in Utah, Idaho, California,
Nevada, Arizona, Colorado and Washington.

BASIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of Zions Bancorporation and its subsidiaries (“the
Company”). All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain
prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the
current year financial statement presentation.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in conformity with accounting principles generally accept-
ed in the United States and prevailing practices within the
financial services industry. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements, management is required to make esti-
mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and
revenues and expenses for the period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

SECURITY RESELL AGREEMENTS 

Security resell agreements represent overnight and term agree-
ments, the majority maturing within 30 days. These agree-
ments are generally treated as collateralized financing transac-
tions and are carried at amounts at which the securities were
acquired plus accrued interest. Either the Company or, in
some instances, third parties on behalf of the Company take
possession of the underlying securities. The market value of
such securities is monitored throughout the contract term to
ensure that asset values remain sufficient to protect against
counterparty default. The Company is permitted by contract
to sell or repledge certain securities it accepts as collateral for
security resell agreements. If sold, the Company’s obligation
to return the collateral is recorded as a liability and included

in the consolidated balance sheet as “Securities sold, not yet
purchased.” As of December 31, 2002, the Company held
approximately $445 million of securities for which it was per-
mitted by contract to sell or repledge. The majority of these
securities have been either pledged or otherwise transferred to
others in connection with the Company’s financing activities,
or to satisfy its commitments under short sales. Security resell
agreements averaged approximately $1,099 million during
2002, and the maximum amount outstanding at any month-
end during 2002 was $2,074 million.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES 

The Company classifies its securities according to their pur-
pose and holding period. Gains or losses on the sale of securi-
ties are recognized using the specific identification method and
recorded in noninterest income.

Held to maturity debt securities are stated at cost, net of
unamortized premiums and unaccreted discounts. Upon
purchase, the Company has the intent and ability to hold
such securities to maturity. When Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 133, Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, issued by the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”), was
adopted on January 1, 2001, the Company transferred sub-
stantially all held to maturity securities to either the avail-
able for sale or trading categories. See additional discussion
in Note 7.

At December 31, 2002, all debt securities being held for
investment and all marketable equity securities that are not
being accounted for under the equity method of accounting
are classified as available for sale and are reported at fair
value, with unrealized gains and losses, after applicable
taxes, reported as a component of other comprehensive
income. Any declines in the value of debt securities and
marketable equity securities that are considered other than
temporary are recorded in noninterest income.

Securities acquired for short-term appreciation or other
trading purposes are classified as trading securities and are
recorded at fair value. Realized and unrealized gains and
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losses resulting from such fair value adjustments and from
recording the results of sales are recorded in trading income.

The market values of available for sale and trading securities
are generally based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes.
If a quoted market price is not available, market value is esti-
mated using quoted market prices for similar securities.

LOANS

Loans are reported at the principal amount outstanding, net
of unearned income. Unearned income, which includes
deferred fees net of deferred direct incremental loan origi-
nation costs, is amortized to interest income generally over
the life of the loan using the interest method.

Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or mar-
ket value. Gains and losses are recorded in noninterest
income, based on the difference between sales proceeds and
carrying value.

NONACCRUAL LOANS

Loans are generally placed on a nonaccrual status when
principal or interest is past due 90 days or more unless the
loan is both well secured and in the process of collection or
when, in the opinion of management, full collection of
principal or interest is unlikely. Generally, consumer loans
are not placed on nonaccrual status, inasmuch as they are
normally charged off when they become 120 days past due.
A loan may be returned to accrual status when all delin-
quent interest and principal become current in accordance
with the terms of the loan agreement or when the loan is
both well secured and in the process of collection.

IMPAIRED LOANS

Loans, other than those included in large groups of smaller-
balance homogeneous loans, are considered impaired when,
based on current information and events, it is probable that
the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement,
including scheduled interest payments. For a loan that has
been restructured, the contractual terms of the loan agree-
ment refer to the contractual terms specified by the original
loan agreement, not the contractual terms specified by the
restructuring agreement.

This assessment for impairment occurs when and while
such loans are on nonaccrual. When a loan has been identi-

fied as being impaired, the amount of impairment will be
measured based on the present value of expected future cash
flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or, when
appropriate, the loan’s observable market value or the fair
value of the collateral (less any selling costs) if the loan is
collateral-dependent.

If the measurement of the impaired loan is less than the
recorded investment in the loan (including accrued interest,
net of deferred loan fees or costs and unamortized premium or
discount), an impairment is recognized by creating or adjust-
ing an existing allocation of the allowance for loan losses.

RESTRUCTURED LOANS

In cases where a borrower experiences financial difficulties
and the Company makes certain concessionary modifica-
tions to contractual terms, the loan is classified as a restruc-
tured (accruing) loan. Loans restructured at a rate equal to
or greater than that of a new loan with comparable risk at
the time the contract is modified may be excluded from the
impairment assessment and may cease to be considered
impaired loans in the calendar years subsequent to the
restructuring if they are not impaired based on the modified
terms.

Generally, a nonaccrual loan that is restructured remains on
nonaccrual for a period of six months to demonstrate that
the borrower can meet the restructured terms. However,
performance prior to the restructuring, or significant events
that coincide with the restructuring, are included in assess-
ing whether the borrower can meet the new terms and may
result in the loan being returned to accrual at the time of
restructuring or after a shorter performance period. If the
borrower’s ability to meet the revised payment schedule is
uncertain, the loan remains classified as a nonaccrual loan.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

In analyzing the adequacy of the allowance for loan and
lease losses, management utilizes a comprehensive loan
grading system to determine risk potential in the portfolio
and considers the results of independent internal credit
reviews. To determine the adequacy of the allowance, the
Company’s loan and lease portfolio is broken into segments
based on loan type. Historical loss-experience factors by seg-
ment, adjusted for changes in trends and conditions, are
used in determining the required allowance for each seg-
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ment. Historical loss factors are evaluated and updated
using migration analysis techniques and other considera-
tions based on the makeup of the specific portfolio seg-
ment. Other considerations such as volumes and trends of
delinquencies, nonaccruals, repossessions and bankruptcies,
criticized and classified loan trends, current and anticipated
foreclosure losses, new products and policies, economic
conditions, and concentrations of credit risk are also con-
sidered in establishing the loan loss factors.

All loans graded substandard or doubtful in the amount of
$500 thousand or more are individually evaluated based on
facts and circumstances of the loan and a specific allowance
amount may be designated. Specific allowances may also be
established for loans in amounts below the specific thresh-
olds when it is determined that the risk differs significantly
from factor amounts established for the category. 

Although management has allocated a portion of the
allowance to specific loan categories using the methods
described, the adequacy of the allowance must be consid-
ered in its entirety. To mitigate the imprecision in most esti-
mates of expected credit losses, the allocated component of
the allowance may be supplemented by an unallocated com-
ponent. This is accomplished by assigning high and low loss
ranges for each portfolio segment reflecting management’s
best estimates of exposure to risk of loss. The unallocated
portion of the allowance incorporates management’s judg-
mental determination of the amounts necessary for subjec-
tive factors such as economic uncertainties and concentra-
tion risks. Accordingly, the relationship of the unallocated
component to the total allowance for loan losses may fluc-
tuate from period to period.

NONMARKETABLE SECURITIES

Nonmarketable securities are included in other noninterest
bearing investments on the Company’s balance sheet.
Nonmarketable securities include certain venture capital
securities and securities acquired for various debt and regu-
latory requirements. Nonmarketable venture capital securi-
ties are reported at estimated fair values, in the absence of
readily ascertainable market values. Changes in fair value
and gains and losses from sales are recognized in noninter-
est income. The values assigned to the securities where no
market quotations exist are based upon available informa-
tion and may not necessarily represent amounts that will

ultimately be realized. Such estimated amounts depend on
future circumstances and will not be realized until the indi-
vidual securities are liquidated. The valuation procedures
applied include consideration of economic and market con-
ditions, current and projected financial performance of the
investee company, and the investee company’s management
team. Management believes that the cost of an investment
is initially considered the best indication of estimated fair
value unless there have been significant subsequent positive
or negative developments that justify an adjustment in the
fair value estimate. Other nonmarketable securities acquired
for various debt and regulatory requirements are accounted
for at cost.

ASSET SECURITIZATIONS

When the Company sells receivables in securitizations of
home equity loans, small business loans, and nonconform-
ing residential real estate loans, it may retain a cash reserve
account, an interest-only strip, and in some cases a subordi-
nated tranche, all of which are retained interests in the secu-
ritized receivables. Gain or loss on sale of the receivables
depends in part on the previous carrying amount of the
financial assets involved in the transfer, allocated between
the assets sold and the retained interests based on their rel-
ative fair value at the date of transfer. Quoted market prices
are generally not available for retained interests. To obtain
fair values, the Company estimates the present value of
future expected cash flows using management’s best judg-
ment of key assumptions, including credit losses, prepay-
ment speeds, forward yield curves, and discount rates com-
mensurate with the risks involved.

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulat-
ed depreciation and amortization. Depreciation, computed
primarily on the straight-line method, is charged to operations
over the estimated useful lives of the properties, generally from
25 to 40 years for buildings and 3 to 10 years for furniture and
equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
terms of respective leases or the estimated useful lives of the
improvements, whichever are shorter.

GOODWILL AND IDENTIFIABLE INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill results from acquisitions made by the Company
and represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair
value of net assets and other identifiable intangible assets
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acquired. Beginning in January 2002, the Company adopt-
ed SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, and no
longer amortizes goodwill and intangible assets deemed to
have indefinite lives. Such assets are now subject to annual
specified impairment tests. Prior to the adoption of SFAS
142, substantially all of the Company’s goodwill was amor-
tized using the straight-line method over 25 years. Core
deposit assets and other intangibles are generally amortized
on an accelerated basis using an estimated useful life up to
10 years.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Company uses interest swaps as part of its overall asset
and liability duration and interest rate risk management
strategy. The objective of these instruments is to match esti-
mated repricing periods of interest-sensitive assets and liabil-
ities in order to reduce interest rate exposure and/or manage
desired asset and liability duration. The Company also enters
into foreign exchange derivative instruments primarily as an
accommodation to customers. When SFAS 133 was adopt-
ed on January 1, 2001, the Company modified its account-
ing for derivative instruments and now records all derivatives
at fair value as either other assets or accrued liabilities in the
balance sheet. See further discussion in Note 7.

COMMITMENTS AND LETTERS OF CREDIT

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into
commitments to extend credit, commercial letters of credit,
and standby letters of credit. Such financial instruments are
only recorded in the consolidated financial statements when
they become payable. See Note 2 for a discussion of FASB
Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others, to be applied prospectively beginning
in 2003. The credit risk associated with these commitments,
when indistinguishable from the underlying funded loan, is
considered in management’s determination of the allowance
for possible losses.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 148, Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation – Transition and Disclosure.
SFAS 148 provides guidance on how to transition from the
intrinsic value method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation under Accounting Principles
Board (“APB”) 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,

to the fair value method of accounting, if a company so
elects, under SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation. SFAS 148 also requires disclosure, in the
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, of the method
used for accounting for stock-based compensation and the
net income and earnings per share impact if the fair value
method of SFAS 123 had been applied.

The Company’s stock-based compensation plans are account-
ed for based on the intrinsic value method set forth under the
recognition and measurement principles of APB 25 and relat-
ed Interpretations. At December 31, 2002, the Company had
two stock-based employee compensation plans and a nonem-
ployee director stock-based compensation plan, which are
described more fully in Note 18. No compensation expense
has been recorded for these option plans, as the exercise price
was equal to the quoted market price of the stock on the date
of grant. The Company currently has no plans to adopt the
fair value method of SFAS 123.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and
earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to stock-based employ-
ee compensation (in thousands, except per share amounts):

2002 2001 2000

Net income, as reported $ 256,278 283,020 161,709
Deduct: Total stock-based 

employee compensation expense 
determined under fair value based
method for all awards, net of 
related tax effects (19,091) (18,804) (13,286)

Pro forma net income $ 237,187 264,216 148,423

Earnings per share:
Basic - as reported $ 2.80 3.10 1.87
Basic - pro forma 2.59 2.90 1.72

Diluted - as reported 2.78 3.07 1.86
Diluted - pro forma 2.58 2.87 1.70
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The fair values of stock options granted were estimated at the
date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model.
Using the option-pricing model, the per-share weighted aver-
age fair value of stock options granted during 2002, 2001 and
2000 was $11.54, $14.89, and $13.09, respectively. The fol-
lowing table summarizes assumptions used in applying the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model to compute the estimat-
ed impact of employee compensation costs on net income
and earnings per share for options granted:

2002 2001 2000

Weighted average of fair value for 
options granted $11.54 $14.89 $13.09

Weighted average assumptions used:
Expected dividend yield 1.8% 1.5% 1.5%
Expected volatility 26.5% 32.6% 32.5%
Risk-free interest rate 3.77% 4.44% 6.36%
Expected life (in years) 3.8 3.9 3.8

INCOME TAXES

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to differences between
the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets
and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating
loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and lia-
bilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those tempo-
rary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date.

NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE

Diluted net income per common share is based on the
weighted average outstanding common shares during each
year, including common stock equivalents. Basic net
income per common share is based on the weighted average
outstanding common shares during each year.

2. OTHER RECENT ACCOUNTING 
PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46
(“FIN 46”), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities. FIN
46 provides guidance on identifying a variable interest enti-
ty (“VIE”) and determining when the assets, liabilities, non-
controlling interests, and results of operations of a VIE are

to be included in a company’s consolidated financial state-
ments. FIN 46 also requires additional disclosures by pri-
mary beneficiaries and other significant variable interest
holders. The disclosure provisions of FIN 46 became effec-
tive upon issuance. At December 31, 2002, Zions First
National Bank (“ZFNB”) held variable interests in securiti-
zation structures, as discussed in Note 6. All such structures
are qualified special purpose entities that are exempt from
the consolidation requirements of FIN 46. The Company is
currently assessing the impact, if any, that FIN 46 will have
on the results of operations and financial position as it
applies to other areas within the Company. 

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45
(“FIN 45”), Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others. This Interpretation expands the dis-
closures by a guarantor about its obligations under certain
guarantees and requires recognition of a liability for the fair
value of an obligation assumed under a guarantee. In gen-
eral, FIN 45 applies to contracts or indemnification agree-
ments that contingently require the guarantor to make 
payments to the guaranteed party based on changes in an
underlying that is related to an asset, liability, or equity
security of the guaranteed party. Certain guarantee con-
tracts are excluded from both the disclosure and recognition
requirements of FIN 45, including, among others, guaran-
tees relating to employee compensation, residual value guar-
antees under capital lease arrangements, commercial letters
of credit, loan commitments, subordinated interests in a
special purpose entity, and guarantees of a company’s own
future performance. Other guarantees are subject to the dis-
closure requirements of FIN 45, but not to the recognition
provisions and include, among others, a guarantee account-
ed for as a derivative instrument under SFAS 133, a parent’s
guarantee of debt owed to a third party by its subsidiary or
vice versa, and a guarantee which is based on performance
and not price. The disclosure requirements of FIN 45 are
effective for the Company as of December 31, 2002, and
require disclosure of the nature of the guarantee, the maxi-
mum potential amount of future payments that the guar-
antor could be required to make under the guarantee, and
the current amount of the liability, if any, for the guarantor’s
obligations under the guarantee. The recognition require-
ments of FIN 45 are to be applied prospectively to guaran-
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tees issued or modified after December 31, 2002.
Significant guarantees entered into by the Company are 
disclosed in Note 19. The Company does not expect the
requirements of FIN 45 to have a material impact on results
of operations, financial position, or liquidity.

In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 147, Acquisition of
Certain Financial Institutions. SFAS 147 amends previous
accounting guidance which required certain acquisitions of
financial institutions where the fair market value of liabili-
ties assumed was greater than the fair value of the tangible
assets and identifiable intangible assets acquired to recog-
nize and account for the excess as an unidentifiable intangi-
ble asset. Under the former guidance, this unidentifiable
intangible asset was to be amortized over a period not
greater than the life of the long-term interest bearing assets
acquired. Under SFAS 147, this excess, if acquired in a busi-
ness combination, represents goodwill that should be
accounted for in accordance with SFAS 142. In addition,
SFAS 147 amends SFAS 144 to include in its scope long-
term customer-relationship intangible assets of financial
institutions such as depositor- and borrower-relationship
intangible assets and credit cardholder intangible assets.
Consequently, those intangible assets are subject to the
same undiscounted cash flow recoverability test and impair-
ment loss recognition and measurement provisions that
SFAS 144 requires. The Company does not expect the
adoption of SFAS 147 to have a material impact on its
financial results. 

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146, Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities. SFAS 146
requires companies to recognize costs associated with the
exit or disposal of activities as they are incurred rather than
at the date a plan of disposal or commitment to exit is ini-
tiated. Types of costs covered by SFAS 146 include lease ter-
mination costs and certain employee severance costs that are
associated with a restructuring, discontinued operation,
facility closing, or other exit or disposal activity. SFAS 146
will apply to all exit or disposal activities initiated after
December 31, 2002. At this time, the Company does not
expect the adoption of the provisions of SFAS 146 to have
a material impact on its financial results. 

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 145, Rescission of FASB
Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement

No. 13 and Technical Corrections. SFAS 145 clarifies certain
existing accounting guidance on extinguishments of debt,
certain sale-leaseback transactions, and other matters. The
changes required by SFAS 145 are not expected to have a
material impact on the Company’s financial results. 

3. MERGERS AND ACQUISITIONS ACTIVITY

The Company adopted SFAS 141, Business Combinations,
for business combinations completed after June 30, 2001.
SFAS 141 supersedes certain previous accounting guidance
on business combinations, and eliminates the pooling of
interests method of accounting. Although not significant to
the Company’s results of operations, financial position, or
liquidity, either individually or in the aggregate, the
Company made the following acquisitions in 2002 and in
2001 subsequent to June 30, 2001:

In November 2002, the Company acquired Frontier State
Bank (“Frontier”), Show Low, Arizona, for 204 thousand
shares of the Company’s common stock, valued at approxi-
mately $10.9 million based on the terms of the acquisition.
Frontier had assets of approximately $94.4 million, total
deposits of approximately $88.0 million, and six banking
offices. Frontier was merged with and into the Company’s
subsidiary, National Bank of Arizona. Goodwill amounted
to approximately $3.9 million.

In November 2001, the Company acquired Minnequa
Bancorp (“Minnequa”), Pueblo, Colorado, and its banking
subsidiary, Minnequa Bank of Pueblo, for $43.6 million,
consisting of $19.6 million cash and approximately 508
thousand shares of the Company’s common stock.
Minnequa had assets of approximately $336 million, total
deposits of approximately $314 million, and five banking
offices. Minnequa Bank of Pueblo was merged with and
into the Company’s subsidiary, Vectra Bank Colorado.
Goodwill amounted to approximately $21.8 million.

In July 2001, the Company acquired Internet Commerce
Express, Inc., Nashua, New Hampshire; ThinkXML, Inc.,
Rockville, Maryland; and Frontier Technologies
Corporation (asset purchase only), Mequon, Wisconsin.
Consideration of $55.0 million consisted of $48.5 million
cash and approximately 100 thousand shares of the
Company’s common stock. Goodwill amounted to approx-
imately $35.8 million. These companies provide e-com-
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merce solutions. They were subsequently merged into
Internet Commerce Express, Inc., and in October 2001 the
name was changed to Lexign, Inc.

Prior to July 1, 2001, the Company made the following
acquisitions:

In April 2001, the Company acquired, in a purchase transac-
tion, the Arizona operations of Pacific Century Bank, a sub-
sidiary of Pacific Century Financial Corporation. The
Company purchased approximately $231 million in loans,
assumed approximately $447 million in deposits, acquired
branch facilities with accompanying personnel, and received
cash to satisfy assumed deposits. Goodwill and core deposit
intangibles amounted to approximately $48.3 million. 

On March 30, 2001, the Company acquired Eldorado
Bancshares, Inc. (“Eldorado”), based in Laguna Hills,
California, and its banking subsidiaries, Eldorado Bank and
Antelope Valley Bank. Consideration consisted of 3.3 mil-
lion shares of the Company’s common stock. Eldorado had
assets of approximately $1.3 billion and shareholders’ equi-
ty of approximately $128 million. The acquisition was
accounted for as a purchase, and accordingly, the
Company’s financial statements reflect combined opera-
tions from the date of acquisition. Goodwill amounted to
approximately $105.7 million. The pro forma effect on
prior period results of operations was not significant.

In January 2001, the Company acquired Draper Bancorp,
based in Draper, Utah, and its banking subsidiary, Draper
Bank, in exchange for approximately 1.4 million shares of
the Company’s common stock. Draper Bancorp had assets
of approximately $242 million and shareholders’ equity of
approximately $26 million. The acquisition was accounted
for as a pooling of interests and was not considered material
to the historical results of the Company and, accordingly, the
Company’s financial statements were not restated.

On July 28, 2000, the Company completed the acquisition
of County Bank, headquartered in Prescott, Arizona, in
exchange for approximately 1.1 million shares of the
Company’s common stock. County Bank had assets of
approximately $247 million and total shareholders’ equity of
$23 million. The acquisition was accounted for as a pooling
of interests and was not considered material to the historical

results of the Company and, accordingly, the Company’s
financial statements were not restated.

Merger related expenses of $45.5 million in 2000 include
$6.2 million of severance and other employee benefits, $5.1
million of equipment and occupancy expense, $9.7 million
of integration of business operations, $6.2 million of inte-
gration of information systems, $12.8 million of legal and
other professional fees, and $5.5 million of other integra-
tion costs. Of these expenses, approximately $40.5 million
relate to the termination of a merger with First Security
Corporation. Also included in operations for 2000 are a
pretax impairment loss on First Security Corporation com-
mon stock of $96.9 million recognized during the first
quarter of the year and gains of $23.6 million from the sub-
sequent sale of the common stock. 

4. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Investment securities as of December 31, 2002 are summa-
rized as follows (in thousands):

Available for sale

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized unrealized unrealized market

cost gains losses value

U.S. Treasury 
securities $ 44,388 2,532 5 46,915

U.S. government 
agencies and 
corporations:
Small Business 

Administration
loan-backed 
securities 752,139 4,877 1,245 755,771

Other agency 
securities 299,445 3,391 970 301,866

States and 
political 
subdivisions 639,607 8,642 2,580 645,669

Mortgage/asset-
backed and other 
debt securities 1,186,623 25,031 3,523 1,208,131

2,922,202 44,473 8,323 2,958,352
Equity securities:

Mutual funds 317,309 3,351 94 320,566
Stock 14,651 12,255 1,483 25,423

$ 3,254,162 60,079 9,900 3,304,341
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Investment securities as of December 31, 2001 are 
summarized as follows (in thousands):

Held to maturity

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized unrealized unrealized market

cost gains losses value

Mortgage-backed 
securities $ 79,546 1,030 824 79,752 

Available for sale 

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized unrealized unrealized market

cost gains losses value

U.S. Treasury 
securities $ 61,212 2,225 1 63,436

U.S. government 
agencies and 
corporations:
Small Business 

Administration
loan-backed 
securities 673,500 3,223 2,658 674,065

Other agency 
securities 768,947 12,848 797 780,998

States and political 
subdivisions 505,188 10,521 2,161 513,548

Mortgage/asset-
backed and other 
debt securities 960,090 12,385 3,973 968,502

2,968,937 41,202 9,590 3,000,549
Equity securities:

Mutual funds 265,684 1,462 36 267,110
Stock 10,100 7,411 1,255 16,256

$ 3,244,721 50,075 10,881 3,283,915

The amortized cost and estimated market value of investment
securities as of December 31, 2002 by contractual maturity,
excluding equity securities, are shown below. Expected matu-
rities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers
may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or with-
out call or prepayment penalties (in thousands):

Available for sale

Estimated
Amortized market

cost value

Due in one year or less $ 650,554 655,282
Due after one year through five years 1,169,440 1,183,682 
Due after five years through ten years 624,559 639,956 
Due after ten years 477,649 479,432 

$ 2,922,202 2,958,352 

Gross gains and losses from investment securities of $4.6
million and $0.9 million in 2002, $11.1 million and $8.8
million in 2001, and $27.5 million and $1.9 million in
2000, respectively, were recognized in equity and fixed
income securities gains (losses). The Company also recog-
nized a pretax impairment loss of $96.9 million in 2000 on
a write-down of First Security Corporation common stock.

Net gains (losses) from securities held by the Company’s
venture capital subsidiaries, and included in equity securi-
ties gains (losses) were $(18.4) million in 2002, $(39.6) mil-
lion in 2001 and $(3.0) million in 2000. Consolidated net
income includes losses, net of income taxes and minority
interest, of approximately $11.4 million in 2002, $20.3
million in 2001, and $1.5 million in 2000 from the
Company’s venture capital subsidiaries. Nonmarketable
securities held by the venture capital subsidiaries are includ-
ed in other noninterest bearing investments in the consoli-
dated balance sheets. The carrying value of these securities
at December 31, 2002 and 2001 was $70.9 million and
$72.9 million, respectively. During 2002, the Company
also recognized a loss of $10.3 million from a write-down of
a minority interest in an investment banking firm that is
included in equity securities gains (losses). During 2001,
the Company recognized gains of  $70.8 million from
Concord EFS, Inc. transactions which are included in equi-
ty securities gains (losses).

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, securities with an
amortized cost of $1,587 million and $1,721 million,
respectively, were pledged to secure public and trust
deposits, advances, and for other purposes as required by
law. As described in Note 11, securities are also pledged as
collateral for security repurchase agreements.
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5. LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Loans are summarized as follows at December 31
(in thousands):

2002 2001

Loans held for sale $ 289,499 297,959 
Commercial lending:

Commercial and industrial 4,123,558 3,921,203 
Leasing 384,271 421,519 
Owner occupied 3,017,475 2,344,346 

Total commercial lending 7,525,304 6,687,068 
Commercial real estate:

Construction 2,946,887 2,874,491 
Term 3,175,366 3,026,694 

Total commercial real estate 6,122,253 5,901,185 
Consumer:

Home equity credit line 650,770 400,781 
1-4 family residential 3,208,953 3,172,873 
Bankcard and other revolving plans 204,714 125,577 
Other 999,906 707,293 

Total consumer 5,064,343 4,406,524 
Foreign loans 5,241 13,770 
Other receivables 125,865 106,938 

Total loans $ 19,132,505 17,413,444 

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, loans with a carrying
value of $1,679 million and $1,732 million, respectively,
were included as blanket pledges of security for Federal
Home Loan Bank advances. As of December 31, 2002 and
2001, amounts borrowed from Federal Home Loan Banks
were $225 million and $228 million, respectively.

The Company sold loans during 2002, 2001 and 2000
totaling $567 million, $610 million and $533 million,
respectively, that were classified as held for sale. Income
from loans sold, excluding servicing, of both loans held for
sale and loan securitizations was $48.2 million in 2002,
$80.3 million in 2001, and $40.5 million in 2000.

Changes in the allowance for loan losses are summarized as
follows (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Balance at beginning of year $ 260,483 195,535 204,114 
Allowance for loan losses 

of companies acquired 1,010 30,178 1,961 
Additions:

Provision for loan losses 71,879 73,191 31,811 
Allowance associated with 

repurchased revolving 
securitized loans 9,874 - - 

Recoveries 20,679 16,139 10,290 
Deductions:

Loan charge-offs (84,332) (54,560) (52,641)

Balance at end of year $ 279,593 260,483 195,535 

The Company’s total recorded investment in impaired loans
was $44 million and $80 million at December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively. Impaired loans of $20 million at
both December 31, 2002 and 2001 required an allowance
of $7 million and $18 million, respectively, which is includ-
ed in the allowance for loan losses. Contractual interest due
and interest foregone on impaired loans were $7.3 million
and $5.8 million, respectively, for 2002, $12.0 million and
$5.9 million, respectively, for 2001, and $9.1 million and
$6.7 million, respectively, for 2000. The average recorded
investment in impaired loans was $69 million in 2002, $61
million in 2001, and $57 million in 2000.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the allowance for loan
losses includes an allocation of $10 million and $8 million,
respectively, related to commitments to extend credit for
which the Company could separate the credit risk from that
of any related loans on the balance sheet and for standby let-
ters of credit.

Credit risk includes the loss that would be recognized sub-
sequent to the reporting date if counterparties failed to per-
form as contracted. Concentrations of credit risk from
financial instruments (whether on- or off-balance sheet)
occur when groups of customers or counterparties having
similar economic characteristics are unable to meet contrac-
tual obligations when similarly affected by changes in 
economic or other conditions. The Company limits its
exposure to any individual customer or counterparty.

Most of the Company’s business activity is with customers
located in the states of Utah, Idaho, California, Nevada,
Arizona, Colorado, and Washington. The commercial loan
portfolio is well diversified, consisting of 11 major industry
classification groupings. As of December 31, 2002, the larg-
er concentrations of risk in the commercial loan and leasing
portfolio are represented by the real estate, construction,
business services and transportation industry groupings. The
Company has minimal credit exposure from lending trans-
actions with highly leveraged entities. See discussion in Note
19 regarding commitments to extend additional credit.

6. ASSET SECURITIZATIONS

The Company adopted SFAS 140, Accounting for Transfers
and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of
Liabilities, effective December 31, 2000. This Statement
relates to the transfer and servicing of financial assets and
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extinguishments of liabilities, as well as the recognition and
reclassification of collateral, including disclosures relating to
collateral and securitization transactions.

During 2002, 2001 and 2000, the Company sold for cash
to revolving securitization structures automobile loans,
credit card receivables, and home equity loans. The
Company retains servicing responsibilities and receives serv-
icing fees, which on an annualized basis approximate 1% of
the outstanding loan balances for the automobile loans, 2%
for the credit card receivables, and 0.5% for the home equi-
ty loans. The Company recognized pretax gains in 2002,
2001 and 2000 from these securitizations of $5.8 million,
$8.7 million and $3.1 million for the automobile loans,
$6.2 million, $6.6 million and $5.6 million for the credit
card receivables, and $6.3 million, $5.6 million and $5.0
million for the home equity loans.

The Company retains subordinated tranche interests or cash
reserve accounts that serve as credit enhancements on the
securitizations. These retained interests provide the Company
with rights to the future cash flows arising after the investors
in the securitizations have received the return for which they
contracted, and after administrative and other expenses have
been paid. The investors and the securitization vehicles have
no recourse to the Company’s other assets for failure of
debtors to pay when due. The Company’s retained interests
are subject to credit, prepayment, and interest rate risks on the
transferred loans and receivables. 

The gain or loss on the sale of receivables is determined as
the difference between the proceeds from the sale and the
basis of the assets sold. The basis is determined by allocat-
ing the previous carrying amount between the assets sold
and the retained interests, based on their relative fair value
at the date of transfer. Fair values are based upon market
prices at time of sale for the assets and the estimated present
value of future cash flows for the retained interests.

On December 16, 2002, under the terms of a Termination
and Release Agreement (“Agreement”), the Amended and
Restated Credit Card Transfer and Administration
Agreement dated February 8, 2002 and a Receivables
Purchase Agreement dated as of February 8, 2002 were ter-
minated with the consent of the parties to the Agreement
and a majority of the beneficial interest holders. Credit card
receivables in the amount of $68.5 million were repur-
chased by ZFNB at fair value under the terms of the
Agreement. No gain or loss was recognized as a result of this
transaction.

On December 20, 2002, under the terms of a Transfer
Agreement (“Agreement”), the Second Amended and
Restated Auto Loan and Lease Purchase Agreement dated as
of February 11, 2002 was terminated with the consent of
the parties to the Agreement and with the consent of a
majority of the beneficial interest holders. Automobile loans
in the amount of $361.7 million were repurchased by
ZFNB at fair value under the terms of the Agreement. No
gain or loss was recognized as a result of this transaction.

Also during 2002, 2001 and 2000, the Company sold small
business loans to securitization structures. In 2001, the
Company also sold nonconforming residential real estate
loans (jumbo mortgage loans) to securitization structures.
Except for the revolving features, the general characteristics
of the securitizations and rights of the Company described
above also pertain to these transactions. Annualized servic-
ing fees approximate 1% of the outstanding loan balance
for the small business loans and 0.25% for the jumbo mort-
gage loans. The Company recognized pretax gains of $6.7
million in 2002, $12.1 million in 2001 and $2.8 million in
2000 for the small business loans, and $1.7 million in 2001
for the jumbo mortgage loans.
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Key economic assumptions used for measuring the retained interests at the date of securitization for sales during 2002, 2001
and 2000 are as follows:

Certain cash flows between the Company and the securiti-
zation trusts are summarized as follows (in millions):

2002 2001 2000

Proceeds from new securitizations $ 442 728 494 
Proceeds from loans sold into

revolving securitizations 616 539 413 
Proceeds from collections reinvested in

previous credit card securitizations 218 227 170 
Servicing fees received 16 12 8 
Other cash flows received on

retained interests1 104 73 30 
Repurchase of securitizations (430) - - 

$  966 1,579 1,115 

1 Represents total cash flows received from retained interests other than servicing fees.
Other cash flows include cash from interest-only strips and cash above the minimum
required level in cash collateral accounts.

Beginning in 2001, the Company began recognizing interest
income on retained interests in securitizations in accordance
with the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No.
99-20, Recognition of Interest Income and Impairment on
Purchased and Retained Beneficial Interests in Securitized
Financial Assets. Interest income thus recognized on retained
interests in securitizations, excluding revolving securitiza-
tions, was $21.0 million in 2002 and $9.2 million in 2001.

Servicing fee income on all securitizations was $16.1 mil-
lion in 2002, $12.0 million in 2001, and $7.8 million in
2000. All amounts of pretax gains, interest income, and
servicing fee income are included in loan sales and servicing
income in the statements of income.

Small Jumbo
Automobile Credit card Home equity business mortgage

loans receivables loans loans loans
2002:

Prepayment method ABS ABS CPR CPR
Annualized prepayment speed 16.2% 5.0% 54.2% 15.0%
Weighted average life (in months) 18 3 14 59
Expected annual net loss rate 1.25% 4.50% 0.25% 0.50%
Residual cash flows discounted at 15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

2001:
Prepayment method ABS ABS ABS CPR CPR
Annualized prepayment speed 16.2% 5.0% 7.0% 5, 10, 15 Ramp up 50.0%
Weighted average life (in months) 18 3 25 68 17
Expected annual net loss rate 1.25% 4.50% 0.25% 0.50% 0.25%
Residual cash flows discounted at 15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

2000:
Prepayment method ABS ABS ABS CPR
Annualized prepayment speed 16.2% 5.0% 4.0% 4, 8, 12 Ramp up
Weighted average life (in months) 18 3 33 67
Expected annual net loss rate 1.00% 4.50% 0.25% 0.50%
Residual cash flows discounted at 12.0% 12.0% 12.0% 12.0%
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Key economic assumptions and the sensitivity of the cur-
rent fair value of capitalized residual cash flows to immedi-
ate 10% and 20% adverse changes in those assumptions are
as follows at December 31, 2002 (in millions of dollars and
annualized percentage rates):

Home Small Jumbo
equity business mortgage
loans loans loans

Carrying amount/fair value of
capitalized residual cash flows $ 9.3 93.2 2.0 

Weighted average life (in months) 14 40 - 58 13 
Prepayment speed assumption 54.2% 15.0% - 18.5% 60.0%
Decrease in fair value due to

adverse change
-10% $ 0.4 1.8 0.2 
-20% $ 0.7 3.8 0.5 

Expected credit losses 0.25% 0.50% - 0.75% 0.35%
Decrease in fair value due to

adverse change
-10% $ 0.1 1.7 < 0.1 
-20% $ 0.2 3.8 0.1 

Residual cash flows
discount rate 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Decrease in fair value due to
adverse change

-10% $ 0.1 1.9 < 0.1 
-20% $ 0.2 4.0 < 0.1 

These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be used with
caution. As the figures indicate, changes in fair value based
on variations in assumptions cannot be extrapolated, as the
relationship of the change in assumption to the change of
fair value may not be linear. Also, the effect of a variation in
one assumption is in reality, likely to further cause changes
in other assumptions, which might magnify or counteract
the sensitivities.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the weighted average
expected static pool credit losses for small business and
jumbo mortgage loans was 2.19% and 1.87%. Static pool
losses are calculated by summing the actual and projected
future credit losses and dividing them by the original bal-
ance of each pool of assets. 

The following table presents quantitative information about
delinquencies and net credit losses for those categories of
loans for which securitizations existed at December 31. The
Company only securitizes loans originated or purchased by
ZFNB. Therefore, only loans and related delinquencies and
net credit losses of commonly managed ZFNB loans are
included (in millions):

Principal
balance of

loans past due
Principal balance 30+ days1

December 31, December 31, Net credit losses2

2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2000

Automobile loans $ NA 558.4 NA 13.2 NA 6.4 4.1 
Credit card receivables NA 104.7 NA 4.8 NA 4.4 3.1 
Home equity loans 562.9 443.4 1.3 1.3 0.2 0.7 0.1 
Small business loans 1,843.0 1,513.3 34.8 64.5 4.0 1.5 0.5 
Jumbo mortgage loans 109.8 261.3 4.0 3.0 0.4 - NA
Total loans managed or

securitized 2,515.7 2,881.1 40.1 86.8 4.6 13.0 7.8 
Less loans securitized3 1,878.3 2,040.9
Loans held in portfolio $ 637.4 840.2 

1Loans greater than 30 days past due based on end of period total loans.
2
Net credit losses are charge-offs net of recoveries and are based on total loans outstanding.

3
Represents the principal amount of the loans. Interest-only strips and other retained interests held for securitized assets are excluded because they are recognized separately. 
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ZFNB also sponsors an asset-backed commercial paper pro-
gram through a qualified special purpose entity securities
conduit (“conduit”). The conduit issues commercial paper
to fund the acquisition of U.S. Government and AAA rated
securities purchased from ZFNB. In addition to providing
administrative and investment advisory services, ZFNB also
provides hedge and liquidity support under contracts
between ZFNB and the conduit. Pursuant to the liquidity
contract, ZFNB is required to purchase securities from the
conduit to provide funds for the conduit to repay maturing
commercial paper upon the conduit’s inability to access the
commercial paper market or upon commercial paper mar-
ket disruptions, as specified in governing documents to the
conduit. No amounts were outstanding under this liquidity
facility during 2002, or at December 31, 2002 and 2001.
At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the size of this liquidity
facility is approximately $5.1 billion. Income recognized by
ZFNB under this arrangement is separately reflected as
income from securities conduit. At December 31, 2002 and
2001, the market value of the conduit’s securities portfolio
is approximately $3.8 billion and $2.4 billion, respectively. 

7. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING
ACTIVITIES

The Company adopted SFAS 133, Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, effective
January 1, 2001. This Statement, as amended, establishes
accounting and reporting standards for derivative instru-
ments, including certain derivative instruments embedded
in other contracts, and for hedging activities.

As required by SFAS 133, the Company records all deriva-
tives on the balance sheet at fair value. The accounting for
changes in the fair value of derivatives depends on the
intended use of the derivative and the resulting designation.
Derivatives used to hedge the exposure to changes in the fair
value of an asset, liability, or firm commitment attributable
to a particular risk, such as interest rate risk, are considered
fair value hedges under SFAS 133. Derivatives used to
hedge the exposure to variability in expected future cash
flows, or other types of forecasted transactions, are consid-
ered cash flow hedges.

For derivatives designated as fair value hedges, changes in
the fair value of the derivative and the hedged item related
to the hedged risk are recognized in earnings. For derivatives

designated as cash flow hedges, the effective portion of
changes in the fair value of the derivative are recorded in
other comprehensive income and recognized in earnings
when the hedged transaction affects earnings. The ineffec-
tive portion of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges
is recognized directly in earnings. The Company assesses the
effectiveness of each hedging relationship by comparing the
changes in fair value or cash flows on the derivative hedging
instrument with the changes in fair value or cash flows on
the designated hedged item or transaction. For derivatives
not designated as hedges, changes in fair value are recog-
nized in earnings. On January 1, 2001, all hedging rela-
tionships were designated anew by the Company in accor-
dance with the provisions of the Statement.

The Company’s objective in using derivatives is to add 
stability to interest income or expense, to modify the dura-
tion of specific assets or liabilities as considered necessary by
the Company, and to manage exposure to interest rate
movements or other identified risks. To accomplish this
objective, the Company uses interest rate swaps as part of its
cash flow hedging strategy. For 2002 and 2001, such deriv-
atives were used to hedge the variable cash flows associated
with designated commercial loans. 

In 2002, the Company used fair value hedges to manage
interest rate exposure to certain long-term debt. In 2001,
fair value hedge ineffectiveness of $4.3 million (a net gain)
was recognized in other noninterest income from a qualify-
ing fair value hedge of an investment. No other hedge inef-
fectiveness occurred for fair value hedges in 2002 or 2001.
As of December 31, 2002, no derivatives were designated
for hedges of investments in foreign operations.

Interest rate swap agreements designated as cash flow hedges
involve the receipt of fixed-rate amounts in exchange for
variable-rate payments over the life of the agreements with-
out exchange of the underlying principal amount. Basis
swap agreements designated as cash flow hedges are used in
conjunction with certain interest rate swaps and are used to
convert the variable rate paid on an interest rate swap to
match the variable rate received from a loan. Derivatives not
designated as hedges are not speculative and are used to
manage the Company’s exposure to interest rate movements
and other identified risks, but do not meet the strict hedge
accounting requirements of SFAS 133.
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The adoption of SFAS 133 on January 1, 2001 resulted in
transition adjustments presented as a cumulative effect
adjustment in the statement of income and in the statement
of changes in shareholders’ equity and comprehensive
income. The transition adjustments relate to the recording
of the fair value of derivatives on the balance sheet, and the
effect of transferring certain held to maturity investments to
either the trading or available for sale categories, as allowed
by the transition provisions of SFAS 133. The total amount
of held to maturity securities transferred was approximately
$3,074 million.

In the 2001 statement of income, the transition adjust-
ments resulted in a reduction to net income of 
$7.2 million, net of income tax benefit of $4.5 million. This
consisted of $.3 million, net of income tax benefit of 
$.2 million, to record the fair value of derivatives on the bal-
ance sheet, and $6.9 million, net of income tax benefit of
$4.3 million, to reclassify certain investment securities. In
the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and 
comprehensive income, the transition adjustments resulted
in an increase to accumulated other comprehensive income
of $34.5 million, net of income tax expense of 
$21.2 million. This consisted of $21.3 million, net of
income tax expense of $13.2 million, to record the fair value
of derivatives on the balance sheet, and $13.2 million, net
of income tax expense of $8.0 million, to reclassify certain
investment securities.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, derivatives with a fair
value of $109.4 million and $67.1 million were included in
other assets and derivatives with a fair value of $33.8 
million and $22.1 million were included in accrued liabili-
ties, respectively. The change in fair value of derivatives not
designated as hedges of $14.4 million in 2002 and $11.4
million in 2001 is included in market making, trading and
nonhedge derivative income. The change in net unrealized
gains for derivatives designated as cash flow hedges is sepa-
rately disclosed in the statement of changes in shareholders’
equity and comprehensive income. No hedge ineffectiveness
on cash flow hedges was recognized during 2002 or 2001.

Amounts reported in accumulated other comprehensive
income related to derivatives will be reclassified to interest
income as interest payments are received on the Company’s
variable rate loans. The change in net unrealized gains on
cash flow hedges discussed above reflects a reclassification of

net unrealized gains from accumulated other comprehen-
sive income to interest income, as disclosed in the statement
of changes in shareholders’ equity and comprehensive
income. For 2003, the Company estimates that an addi-
tional $32 million will be reclassified.

8. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment are summarized as follows at
December 31 (in thousands):

2002 2001

Land $ 70,269 61,976
Buildings 234,042 205,334
Furniture and equipment 334,816 330,032
Leasehold improvements 90,569 75,506

Total 729,696 672,848
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 336,066 304,772

Net book value $ 393,630 368,076

9. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company adopted SFAS 142 effective January 1,
2002. Under this Statement, goodwill and intangible assets
deemed to have indefinite lives are no longer amortized, but
are subject to specified annual impairment tests. Other
intangible assets are amortized over their useful lives. 

Transitional disclosures under SFAS 142 to reconcile prior
years net income to adjusted amounts for the add back of
goodwill amortization are as follows (in thousands, except
per share amounts):

2002 2001 2000

Net income:
As reported $ 256,278 283,020 161,709
Add back of goodwill amortization,

net of income tax benefit - 33,056 25,946

As adjusted $ 256,278 316,076 187,655

Net income per common share:
Basic:

As reported $ 2.80 3.10 1.87
Add back of goodwill amortization,

net of income tax benefit - 0.36 0.30

As adjusted $ 2.80 3.46 2.17

Diluted:
As reported $ 2.78 3.07 1.86
Add back of goodwill amortization,

net of income tax benefit - 0.36 0.30

As adjusted $ 2.78 3.43 2.16

Of the amount of goodwill amortization added back, $2.4
million in 2001 was subsequently included with discontin-
ued operations. See related discussion in Note 15.
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Core deposit and other intangible assets and related amortization for continuing operations are as follows at December 31
(in thousands):

Gross Accumulated
carrying amount amortization Total

2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

Core deposit intangibles $ 143,620 141,475 (62,650) (49,321) 80,970 92,154 
Other intangibles 2,000 19,816 (50) (2,822) 1,950 16,994

$ 145,620 161,291 (62,700) (52,143) 82,920 109,148

The amount of amortization expense of core deposit and other intangible assets is separately reflected in the statement of
income. The Company has no intangible assets with indefinite lives. 

Estimated amortization expense of core deposit and other intangible assets is as follows for the years succeeding 
December 31, 2002 (in thousands):

2003 $ 14,331
2004 13,788 
2005 13,662 
2006 13,537 
2007 12,401 

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for 2002 by operating segment are as follows (in thousands):

Zions First California National Vectra The Commerce
National Bank Bank & Nevada Bank Bank Bank of Consolidated

and Subsidiaries Trust State Bank of Arizona Colorado Washington Other Company

Balance as of 
January 1, 2002 $         11,533 387,387 21,051 57,168 239,232 - 54,392 770,763 

Goodwill acquired
during the year 1,782 3,896 5,678 

Impairment losses (46,682) (46,682)
Goodwill reclassified to 

discontinued operations (546) (546)
Goodwill written off from

sale of branches (1,082) (1,082)
Goodwill pushdown

from parent 7,989 1,142 16 (9,147) - 
Other adjustments,

including contingent
consideration paid (8) (474) 445 (46) 1,983 1,900

Balance as of 
December 31, 2002 $ 21,296 385,831 21,051 62,651 239,202 - - 730,031

In June 2002, the Company completed all goodwill impair-
ment testing required under the transitional provisions of
SFAS 142. Impairment losses of $32.4 million (net of
income tax benefit of $2.7 million) were recognized as of
January 1, 2002 as a cumulative effect adjustment in accor-
dance with SFAS 142. This adjustment relates to the
impairment in carrying value of the Company’s investments
in certain e-commerce subsidiaries included in the “Other”
operating segment. The impairment amount was deter-

mined by comparing the carrying value of these subsidiaries
to their fair value at January 1, 2002, which was estimated
from comparable market values including price-to-revenue
multiples. In September 2002, additional impairment loss-
es were recognized, as discussed in Note 15. In October
2002, the Company completed its annual review of impair-
ment required by SFAS 142 and did not recognize any addi-
tional impairment losses. 
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10. DEPOSITS

At December 31, 2002, the scheduled maturities of all time
deposits are as follows (in thousands):

2003 $ 2,488,798 
2004 346,561 
2005 157,345 
2006 57,735 
2007 and thereafter 118,594

$ 3,169,033

At December 31, 2002, the contractual maturities of time
deposits with a denomination of $100,000 and over were as
follows: $467 million in 3 months or less, $264 million
over 3 months through 6 months, $409 million over 
6 months through 12 months and $262 million over 
12 months.

Deposit overdrafts that have been reclassified as loan bal-
ances were $77 million and $58 million at December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

11. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings generally mature in less than 30
days. The following table shows selected information for
these borrowings (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Federal funds purchased:
Average amount outstanding $ 1,167,762 1,046,859 851,465 
Weighted average rate  1.67% 3.74% 6.12%
Highest month-end balance $ 1,991,882 1,492,262 1,069,124 
Year-end balance $ 819,807 1,203,764 1,069,124 
Weighted average rate on 

outstandings at year-end 1.03% 1.68% 6.28%

Security repurchase agreements:
Average amount outstanding $ 1,360,395 1,621,539 1,895,421 
Weighted average rate 1.44% 3.50% 5.68%
Highest month-end balance $ 1,871,728 2,021,895 2,664,768
Year-end balance $ 861,177 933,973 1,327,721
Weighted average rate on 

outstandings at your end 0.83% 1.27% 5.56%

The Company participates in overnight and term security
repurchase agreements. Certain overnight agreements are
performed with sweep accounts in conjunction with a mas-
ter repurchase agreement. In this case, securities under the
Company’s control are pledged for and interest is paid on the
collected balance of the customers’ accounts. For term repur-

chase agreements, securities are transferred to the applicable
counterparty. The counterparty, in certain instances, is con-
tractually entitled to sell or repledge securities accepted as
collateral. As of December 31, 2002, overnight security
repurchase agreements were $716.7 million and term securi-
ty repurchase agreements were $144.5 million.

12. FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES
AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) advances and other
borrowings over one year are summarized as follows at
December 31 (in thousands):

2002 2001

FHLB advances, 3.90% - 8.32% $ 225,198 227,958 
SBA notes payable, 2.25% - 8.08% 15,500 12,500

$ 240,698 240,458 

The weighted average interest rate on FHLB advances out-
standing at December 31, 2002 and 2001 was 5.0%.

The FHLB advances are borrowed by ZFNB and Vectra
Bank Colorado (“Vectra”), wholly-owned subsidiaries,
under their lines of credit with the Federal Home Loan
Banks of Seattle and Topeka, respectively. The lines of 
credit are secured under a blanket pledge whereby ZFNB
and Vectra maintain unencumbered collateral with a carry-
ing amount, which has been adjusted using a pledge
requirement percentage based upon the types of collateral
pledged, equal to at least 100% of outstanding advances.

Interest expense on FHLB advances and other borrowings
over one year was $12.4 million in 2002, $10.1 million in
2001, and $8.5 million in 2000. 

Maturities of FHLB advances and other borrowings with
original maturities over one year are as follows at December
31, 2002 (in thousands):

2003 $ 3,758 
2004 2,580 
2005 5,842 
2006 5,842 
2007 2,334 
Thereafter 220,342

$ 240,698
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13. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt at December 31 is summarized as follows
(in thousands):

2002 2001

Guaranteed preferred beneficial interests in 
junior subordinated deferrable interest 
debentures $ 511,172 218,845 

Subordinated notes:
Floating rate 510,000 510,000 
Fixed rate - 49,900 

Senior medium-term notes 46,138
Capital leases and other 2,195 2,597

$ 1,069,505 781,342

The guaranteed preferred beneficial interests in junior sub-
ordinated deferrable interest debentures include $170.1
million of 8.536% trust preferred securities issued by Zions
Institutional Capital Trust A (“ZICTA”), $29.0 million of
11.75% trust preferred securities issued by CSBI Capital
Trust I (“CSBICT”), and $2.2 million of 10.25% trust pre-
ferred securities issued by GB Capital Trust (“GBCT”).
Each series of trust preferred securities relates to a corre-
sponding series of junior subordinated deferrable interest
debentures issued by the Company or ZFNB (referred to as
the “ZICTA debentures,” the “CSBICT debentures” and
the “GBCT debentures,” respectively).

The ZICTA debentures are direct and unsecured 
obligations of ZFNB and are subordinate to the claims of
depositors and general creditors. The Company has irrevo-
cably and unconditionally guaranteed all of ZFNB’s obliga-
tions under the debentures. The Company became obligat-
ed with respect to the CSBICT and GBCT debentures as a
result of the acquisitions of Eldorado Bancshares and GB
Bancorporation, respectively, and are direct and unsecured
obligations subordinate to other indebtedness and general
creditors of the Company. All three of these series of deben-
tures are subject, with the approval of banking regulators, to
early redemption beginning in 2006 and 2007. The ZICTA
and GBCT debentures require semiannual interest pay-
ments and mature in December 2026 and January 2027,
respectively. The CSBICT debentures require quarterly
interest payments and mature in June 2027. The Company
has unconditionally guaranteed the obligations of ZICTA,
CSBICT and GBCT with respect to their respective series
of trust preferred securities to the extent set forth in the
applicable guarantee agreements and the Company has

unconditionally guaranteed the obligations of ZFNB with
respect to the ZICTA debentures to the extent set forth in
the applicable guarantee agreement.

The preferred beneficial interests also include $285 million
of 8.0% trust preferred securities issued in August 2002 by
Zions Capital Trust B (“ZCTB”), a newly formed sub-
sidiary. These trust preferred securities relate to a corre-
sponding series of junior subordinated deferrable interest
debentures issued by the Company (the “ZCTB deben-
tures”). The debentures are direct and unsecured obligations
of the Company and are subordinate to other indebtedness
and general creditors. The ZCTB debentures require quar-
terly interest payments that began in December 2002.
These debentures mature in September 2032, but are sub-
ject, with the approval of banking regulators, to early
redemption beginning in September 2007. The Company
has unconditionally guaranteed the obligations of ZCTB
with respect to the trust preferred securities issued by it to
the extent set forth in the applicable guarantee agreement.
The trust preferred securities, debentures and the guaran-
tees of the Company were registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission in August 2002.

The Company has entered into agreements to hedge the
ZICTA and $140 million of the ZCTB debentures. The fair
value hedge derivatives are accounted for in accordance with
SFAS 133, as discussed in Note 7. They are recorded at their
fair value of $24.9 million at December 31, 2002 in the
consolidated balance sheet with their related long-term debt
amounts. These fair value hedges are interest rate swaps
with early redemption dates consistent with the related
debt. Interest expense for 2002 has been reduced by $5.5
million as a result of these hedges.

The floating rate subordinated notes include $200 million at
6.95% issued through a subsidiary, Zions Financial Corp.,
and $200 million at 6.50% issued by the Company. Early
redemption may occur beginning in May and October 2006,
respectively, at which time the notes will bear interest at one-
month LIBOR plus 2.86% and one-month LIBOR plus
3.01% through maturity in May and October 2011, respec-
tively. Each series of notes requires semiannual interest pay-
ments. The Company has unconditionally guaranteed the
6.95% notes. Also included in floating rate subordinated
notes is $110 million callable in 2003 and due in 2008, with
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quarterly interest payments at three-month LIBOR plus 70
basis points. All subordinated notes are unsecured.

The senior medium-term notes are part of an overall unse-
cured Medium-Term Notes program commenced by the
Company. The Company has filed a registration statement
with the Securities and Exchange Commission for up to an
aggregate of $340 million of Senior Medium-Term Notes,
Series A, and Subordinated Medium-Term Notes, Series B.
The Company may issue such debt from time to time with
the terms of each note to be specified in a pricing supple-
ment filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Interest may be at a fixed or floating rate. The amount 
outstanding under this program at December 31, 2002 pro-
vided for quarterly interest payments at three-month
LIBOR plus 50 basis points through maturity in October
2004. Early redemption may occur in October 2003.

Interest expense on long-term debt was $56.3 million in
2002, $43.7 million in 2001, and $34.2 million in 2000.

Maturities and sinking fund requirements on long-term
debt are as follows for the years succeeding December 31,
2002 (in thousands):

Parent
Consolidated only

2003 $ 448 
2004  46,593 46,138 
2005 361 
2006 292 
2007 119 
Thereafter 1,021,692 634,709

$ 1,069,505 680,847

Parent only maturities on long-term debt include $324.7
million of subordinated debt payable to CSBICT, GBCT
and ZCTB after 2007.

14. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The Company has in place a Shareholder Rights Protection
Plan (“Plan”) which contains provisions intended to protect
shareholders if certain events occur. These events include,
but are not limited to, unsolicited offers or attempts to
acquire the Company including offers that do not treat all
shareholders equally, acquisitions in the open market of
shares constituting control without offering fair value to all
shareholders, and other coercive or unfair takeover tactics
that could impair the Board of Directors’ ability to repre-

sent shareholders’ interests fully. The Plan provides that
attached to each share of common stock is one right
(“Right”) to purchase one one-hundredth of a share of par-
ticipating preferred stock for an exercise price of $90, sub-
ject to adjustment. The Rights have certain antitakeover
effects and may cause substantial dilution to a person who
attempts to acquire the Company without the approval of
the Board of Directors. The Rights, however, should not
affect offers for all outstanding shares of common stock at a
fair price and, otherwise, in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders as determined by the Board
of Directors. The Board of Directors may, at its option,
redeem all, but not fewer than all, of the then outstanding
Rights at any time until the 10th business day following a
public announcement that a person or a group had acquired
beneficial ownership of 10% or more of the Company’s out-
standing common stock or total voting power.

As authorized by its Board of Directors, the Company repur-
chased and retired 2,393,881 shares of its common stock in
2002 at a cost of $113.2 million, 883,240 shares at a cost of
$46.5 million in 2001 and 80,174 shares at a cost of $3.9 mil-
lion in 2000. At December 31, 2002, the Company has
authorization from its Board of Directors to repurchase an
additional $27.6 million of common stock under its share
repurchase program.

On April 16, 2001, the Company reacquired the minority
interest of its subsidiary, California Bank & Trust
(“CB&T”). This minority interest was sold to the manage-
ment of CB&T and other individuals when the Company’s
acquisition of The Sumitomo Bank of California was com-
pleted in October 1998. One half of the minority interest
was sold to the former CEO of CB&T, who was also a
director of the Company. The other half was sold to two
limited liability companies, which the CEO managed.
Members of these limited liability companies include,
among others, certain senior officers of CB&T. In accor-
dance with the valuation terms of the minority sharehold-
er agreement entered into in 1998, the Company repur-
chased the total minority interest for $66.0 million. On
April 1, 2001, the carrying value of this minority interest
was $37.8 million with the difference recorded as a pur-
chase premium.
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15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS, IMPAIRMENT 
LOSSES, AND RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

In September 2002, the Company decided to discontinue
the operations of the e-commerce subsidiaries discussed in
Note 9. The Company determined that its plan to restruc-
ture and offer all or part of these subsidiaries for sale met the
held for sale and discontinued operations criteria of SFAS
144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets. The Company adopted SFAS 144 effective
January 1, 2002. 

Summarized information for the loss from operations of
discontinued subsidiaries is as follows (in thousands):

2002 2001

Noninterest income $ 7,414 7,197
Noninterest expense 25,718 19,684

Pretax loss from operations of
discontinued subsidiaries $ (18,304) (12,487)

Based on the acquisition dates of these discontinued sub-
sidiaries, operations were not included until 2001.
Additional pretax impairment losses of $28.7 million for
these subsidiaries are included as a separate line item with
discontinued operations. The amounts of these impairment
losses were determined by comparing the carrying amounts
of these subsidiaries to their fair values, less costs to sell. Fair
values were determined based on amounts offered in sales
negotiations and market comparables. 

In December 2002, the Company completed the sale of one
of these subsidiaries, Phaos Technology Corp., and recog-
nized a $5.3 million income tax benefit, which is included
with other income tax benefits in discontinued operations.

Assets and liabilities of discontinued operations included in
other assets and accrued liabilities in the consolidated bal-
ance sheet at December 31, 2002 are summarized as 
follows (in thousands):

Assets:
Cash and due from banks $ 657
Interest-bearing deposits 186
Premises and equipment, net 334
Other intangibles 358
Other assets 1,506

Total assets 3,041

Liabilities:
Accrued liabilities 3,788

Total liabilities 3,788

Impairment losses on long-lived assets in continuing opera-
tions relate to certain software, including software of other
continuing e-commerce activities. The recorded amount of
$4.9 million includes $2.7 million in ZFNB and $2.2 million
in the Other operating segment. The impairment losses
were determined by comparing the carrying value to fair
value, estimated by using discounted cash flow approaches. 

Restructuring charges relate primarily to certain branch
closings and to the restructuring of trust operations and
administrative functions. The recorded amount of 
$3.3 million includes severance costs of $1.8 million and
occupancy-related costs of $1.5 million.

16. INCOME TAXES

Income taxes (benefit) are summarized as follows 
(in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Continuing operations:
Federal:

Current $ 136,050 130,700 59,038
Deferred 2,837 6,135 6,342

State 28,815 25,032 14,281

167,702 161,867 79,661

Discontinued operations:
Federal (15,150) (3,260) -
State (3,385) (807) -

(18,535) (4,067) -

Cumulative effect adjustments:
Federal (2,143) (3,855) -
State (533) (666) -

(2,676) (4,521) -

Income tax expense $ 146,491 153,279 79,661

Income tax expense on continuing operations computed at
the statutory federal income tax rate of 35% reconciles to
actual income tax expense as follows (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Income tax expense 
at statutory federal rate $ 168,402 158,434 85,016

State income taxes, net 18,730 16,270 9,283
Nondeductible expenses 2,667 12,178 10,944
Nontaxable interest (18,576) (12,870) (17,217)
Tax credits and other taxes (2,343) (2,056) (1,874)
Corporate reorganization - (6,416) (6,416)
Other (1,178) (3,673) (75)

$ 167,702 161,867 79,661
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to sig-
nificant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities at December 31 are presented below 
(in thousands):

2002 2001

Gross deferred tax assets:
Book loan loss deduction in excess of tax $ 108,726 100,038
Postretirement benefits 3,984 2,150
Deferred compensation 9,249 10,895
Deferred loan fees 1,613 3,524
Deferred agreements 1,484 1,873
Minimum pension liability 15,128 -
Capital loss carryforward 8,013 24,703
Other 20,238 43,751

Total deferred tax assets 168,435 186,934

Gross deferred tax liabilities:
Core deposits and purchase accounting (28,412) (38,167)
Premises and equipment, 

due to differences in depreciation (4,760) (4,748)
FHLB stock dividends (10,383) (29,191)
Leasing operations (69,992) (56,020)
Security investments and derivative

market adjustments (67,605) (74,903)
Prepaid pension reserves (1,734) (6,191)
Other (8,554) (8,978)

Total deferred tax liabilities (191,440) (218,198)

Net deferred tax liabilities $ (23,005) (31,264)

The amount of net deferred tax liabilities is included with
accrued liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. The
Company has determined that it is not required to establish
a valuation reserve for any deferred tax assets since it is
“more likely than not” that such assets will be principally
realized through future taxable income and tax planning
strategies. This conclusion is based on the history of growth
in earnings and the prospects for continued growth and
profitability.

The exercise of stock options under the Company’s 
nonqualified stock option plan, and nonqualified exercises
of options under the qualified plan, resulted in tax benefits
reducing the Company’s current income tax payable and
increasing common stock by $2.9 million in 2002, 
$3.0 million in 2001, and $3.4 million in 2000. 

17. NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE

Basic and diluted net income per common share, based on
the weighted average outstanding shares, are summarized as
follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

2002 2001 2000

Basic:
Income from continuing 

operations $ 317,107 298,599 161,709 
Loss on discontinued operations (28,460) (8,420) - 

Income before cumulative effect 
adjustment 288,647 290,179 161,709 

Cumulative effect adjustment (32,369) (7,159) - 

Net income applicable to 
common stock $ 256,278 283,020 161,709 

Average common shares 
outstanding 91,566 91,202 86,320 

Income from continuing 
operations per share $ 3.46 3.27 1.87 

Loss on discontinued 
operations per share (0.31) (0.09) - 

Cumulative effect adjustment 
per share (0.35) (0.08) - 

Net income per common share $ 2.80 3.10 1.87 

Diluted:
Income from continuing 

operations $ 317,107 298,599 161,709 
Loss on discontinued operations (28,460) (8,420) - 

Income before cumulative effect 
adjustment 288,647 290,179 161,709 

Cumulative effect adjustment (32,369) (7,159) - 

Net income applicable to 
common stock $ 256,278 283,020 161,709 

Average common shares 
outstanding 91,566 91,202 86,320 

Stock option adjustment 513 972 800 

Average common shares 
outstanding 92,079 92,174 87,120 

Income from continuing 
operations per share $ 3.44 3.24 1.86 

Loss on discontinued 
operations per share (0.31) (0.09) - 

Cumulative effect adjustment 
per share (0.35) (0.08) - 

Net income per common share $ 2.78 3.07 1.86 

18. STOCK OPTIONS

The Company has a qualified stock option plan under
which stock options may be granted to key employees, and
a nonqualified plan under which options may be granted to
nonemployee directors. Under the qualified plan and non-
qualified plan, 3,244,000 and 400,000 shares, respectively,
of common stock were reserved. Options equal to 2% of the
issued and outstanding shares of the Company’s common
stock as of the first day of the year are automatically reserved
for issuance under the qualified plan.
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Under the qualified plan, options vest at the rate of one
third each year after the date of grant and expire seven years
after the date of grant. Options granted previous to 2000
are exercisable in increments from one to four years after the
date of grant and expire six years after the date of grant.
Under the nonqualified plan, options are exercisable in
increments from six months to three and a half years after
the date of grant and expire ten years after the date of grant.
At December 31, 2002, there were 1,962,562 and 167,000
additional shares available for grant under the qualified and
nonqualified plans, respectively.

The Company has also adopted a broad-based employee
stock option plan. Participation in this plan requires
employment for a full year prior to the option grant date
with service of 20 hours a week or more. Executive officers
of the Company are not eligible to participate in this plan.
Stock options are granted to eligible employees based on an
internal job grade structure. All options vest at the rate of
one third each year and expire four years after the date of
grant. At December 31, 2002, there were 1,277,878
options outstanding and 198,809 additional shares 
available for grant. 

The Company’s stock-based compensation plans are account-
ed for based on the intrinsic value method set forth under the
recognition and measurement principles of APB 25, and
related Interpretations. No compensation expense was
recorded for these option plans, as the exercise price was
equal to the quoted market price of the stock at the time of
grant. The Stock-Based Compensation section of Note 1,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, illustrates the
effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company
had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS
123 to stock-based employee compensation. That section
also discusses the recently issued SFAS 148. 

The following table is a summary of the Company’s stock
option activity and related information for the three years
ended December 31, 2002:

Weighted-
Number average

of exercise
shares price

Balance at December 31, 1999 3,345,691 $ 43.30
Acquired 132,097 11.48
Granted 1,993,961 43.38
Exercised (409,935) 18.25
Forfeited (328,223) 51.03

Balance at December 31, 2000 4,733,591 43.98
Acquired 906,845 41.90
Granted 2,090,843 53.28
Exercised (611,174) 28.04
Forfeited (655,449) 47.12

Balance at December 31, 2001 6,464,656 47.89
Granted 2,086,595 52.17
Exercised (652,860) 32.62
Expired (108,547) 50.58
Forfeited (306,961) 55.93

Balance at December 31, 2002 7,482,883 50.04

Outstanding options exercisable as of:
December 31, 2002 3,744,828 $ 48.01 
December 31, 2001 3,315,756 44.50 
December 31, 2000 1,701,254 36.55 

Selected information on stock options as of December 31, 2002 follows:

Outstanding options Exercisable options

Weighted average
Exercise Weighted average remaining contractual Weighted average

price range Number of shares exercise price life (years) Number of shares exercise price

$2.37 to $6.91 16,143 $ 3.57 2.6 16,143 $ 3.57
$6.92 to $13.83 31,823 12.55 3.4 31,823 12.55

$13.84 to $20.74 60,594 16.30 3.5 60,594 16.30
$20.75 to $27.65 41,200 23.38 4.3 33,871 23.45
$27.66 to $34.56 178,338 30.82 0.8 178,338 30.82
$34.57 to $41.48 247,510 40.08 3.9 11,857 40.26
$41.49 to $48.39 2,076,609 42.67 3.8 1,569,479 42.59
$48.40 to $55.30 4,039,859 53.23 4.8 1,255,809 51.75
$55.31 to $62.21 108,500 56.58 4.9 42,994 56.46
$62.22 to $69.13 682,307 68.70 2.2 543,920 68.59

7,482,883 50.04 4.1 3,744,828 48.01 
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19. COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES, CONTINGENT 
LIABILITIES, AND RELATED PARTIES

The Company is a party to certain derivative instruments
and other financial instruments in the normal course of
business to meet the financing needs of its customers, to
reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, and
to make a market in U.S. government, agency, corporate,
and municipal securities. These financial instruments
involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit, liquidity, and
interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the
balance sheets.

Contractual amounts of the off-balance sheet financial
instruments used to meet the financing needs of the
Company’s customers are as follows (in thousands):

2002 2001

Commitments to extend credit $ 7,526,188 6,598,112 
Standby letters of credit:

Performance 101,380 66,231 
Financial 287,819 148,123 

Commercial letters of credit 26,392 26,200 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a
customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have
fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may
require the payment of a fee. The amount of collateral
obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company upon exten-
sion of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of
the counterparty. Collateral varies but may include accounts
receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, and
income-producing properties.

Establishing commitments to extend credit gives rise to
credit risk. As of December 31, 2002, a significant portion
of the Company’s commitments is expected to expire with-
out being drawn upon; commitments totaling $5.1 billion
expire in 2003. As a result, the Company’s actual future
credit exposure or liquidity requirements will be lower than
the contractual amounts of the commitments. The
Company uses the same credit policies and procedures in
making commitments to extend credit and conditional
obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments.
These policies and procedures include credit approvals, lim-
its, and monitoring.

Standby and commercial letters of credit are conditional com-

mitments issued by the Company generally to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. The guarantees are
primarily issued to support public and private borrowing
arrangements, including commercial paper, bond financing,
and similar transactions. Standby letters of credit include
remaining commitments in the amount of $304 million expir-
ing in 2003 and $85 million expiring thereafter through 2020.
The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially
the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to cus-
tomers. The Company generally holds marketable securities
and cash equivalents as collateral supporting those 
commitments for which collateral is deemed necessary.

The Company uses interest rate swaps as part of its overall
asset and liability duration and interest rate risk management
strategy. These transactions enable the Company to manage
asset and liability durations, and transfer, modify, or reduce
its interest rate risk. Exposure to credit risk arises from the
possibility of nonperformance by counterparties, which are
primarily established, well-capitalized financial institutions.
The Company controls this credit risk through credit
approvals, limits, and monitoring procedures. No losses
associated with counterparty nonperformance on derivative
instruments have occurred. Nevertheless, the related credit
risk is considered and measured when and where appropri-
ate.

As a market maker in U.S. government, agency, corporate,
and municipal securities, the Company enters into agree-
ments to purchase and sell such securities. As of December
31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had outstanding commit-
ments to purchase securities of $45 million and $82 million,
respectively, and outstanding commitments to sell securities
of $37 million and $81 million, respectively. These agree-
ments at December 31, 2002 have remaining terms of one
month or less.

The contractual or notional amount of financial instruments
indicates a level of activity associated with a particular class of
financial instrument and is not a reflection of the actual level
of risk. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the regulatory
risk-weighted values assigned to all off-balance sheet financial
instruments and derivative instruments described herein
totaled $2,116 million and $2,075 million, respectively.

The Company has $54.3 million available in lines of credit
from two separate institutions, which were unused as of
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December 31, 2002. Interest rates are LIBOR plus 50 basis
points on one line and prime less 1.5% on the other line.
There are no compensating balance arrangements.

At December 31, 2002, the Company was required to
maintain a cash balance of $25 million with the Federal
Reserve Banks to meet minimum balance requirements in
accordance with Federal Reserve Board regulations.

At December 31, 2002, the Company has guaranteed
approximately $1,021 million of debt issued by various sub-
sidiaries, as discussed in Note 13. See Note 6 for the dis-
cussion of ZFNB’s commitment of $5.1 billion at
December 31, 2002 to a qualified special purpose entity
securities conduit.

The Company is a defendant in various legal proceedings
arising in the normal course of business. The Company
does not believe that the outcome of any such proceedings
will have a material adverse effect on its consolidated results
of operations, financial position, or liquidity.

The Company has commitments for leasing premises and
equipment under the terms of noncancelable capital and
operating leases expiring from 2003 to 2068. Premises leased
under capital leases were recorded at $14.9 million, net of
$13.3 million accumulated amortization at December 31,
2002. Amortization applicable to premises leased under capi-
tal leases is included in depreciation expense.

Future aggregate minimum rental payments under existing
noncancelable operating leases at December 31, 2002 are as
follows (in thousands):

2003 $ 30,652
2004 29,977
2005 27,107
2006 22,085
2007 19,005
Thereafter 91,948

$ 220,774

Future aggregate minimum rental payments have been
reduced by noncancelable subleases as follows: 2003, 
$2.7 million; 2004, $1.4 million; 2005, $1.0 million; 2006,
$.6 million; 2007, $.5 million; and thereafter 
$2.3 million. Aggregate rental expense on operating leases
amounted to $47.8 million in 2002, $47.8 million in 2001,
and $40.0 million in 2000.

The Company has no other material related party transac-
tions requiring disclosure. Credit is extended to certain offi-
cers and directors of the Company through its subsidiaries in

the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same
terms as comparable third-party lending arrangements in
compliance with applicable banking regulations. 

20. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company is subject to various regulatory capital
requirements administered by federal banking agencies.
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate
certain mandatory–and possibly additional discretionary–
actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct
material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the reg-
ulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the
Company must meet specific capital guidelines that involve
quantitative measures of the Company’s assets, liabilities,
and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under reg-
ulatory accounting practices. The Company’s capital
amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative
judgments by the regulators about components, risk
weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure
capital adequacy require the Company to maintain mini-
mum amounts and ratios (set forth in the following table) of
total and Tier I capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-
weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier I capital (as defined)
to average assets (as defined). Management believes, as of
December 31, 2002, that the Company meets all capital ade-
quacy requirements to which it is subject.

As of December 31, 2002, the Company’s capital ratios 
significantly exceed the minimum capital levels, and the
Company is considered well capitalized under the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as
well capitalized, the Company must maintain minimum total
risk-based, Tier I risk-based, and Tier I leverage ratios as set
forth in the table. There are no conditions or events that man-
agement believes have changed the Company’s category.

Dividends declared by the Company’s banking subsidiaries in
any calendar year may not, without the approval of the
appropriate federal regulator, exceed their net earnings for
that year combined with their net earnings less dividends
paid for the preceding two years. At December 31, 2002, the
Company’s subsidiaries had approximately $236.1 
million available for the payment of dividends under the
foregoing restrictions.
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The actual capital amounts and ratios of the Company and significant banking subsidiaries are as follows (in thousands):

Minimum for capital To be well
Actual adequacy purposes capitalized

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31, 2002:
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets)

The Company $ 2,759,443 12.94% $ 1,705,937 8.00% $ 2,132,421 10.00%
Zions First National Bank 854,485 10.82 631,861 8.00 789,827 10.00
California Bank & Trust 771,695 11.06 558,359 8.00 697,949 10.00

Tier I capital (to risk-weighted assets)
The Company 1,974,095 9.26 852,969 4.00 1,279,453 6.00
Zions First National Bank 596,529 7.55 315,931 4.00 473,896 6.00
California Bank & Trust 534,334 7.66 279,179 4.00 418,769 6.00

Tier I capital (to average assets)
The Company 1,974,095 7.56 783,627 3.00 1,306,044 5.00
Zions First National Bank 596,529 5.63 317,833 3.00 529,721 5.00
California Bank & Trust 534,334 6.51 246,354 3.00 410,590 5.00

As of December 31, 2001:
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets)

The Company $ 2,330,155 12.20% $ 1,527,745 8.00% $ 1,909,681 10.00%
Zions First National Bank 809,418 11.39 568,372 8.00 710,465 10.00
California Bank & Trust 728,288 11.37 512,382 8.00 640,478 10.00

Tier I capital (to risk-weighted assets)
The Company 1,576,175 8.25 763,872 4.00 1,145,808 6.00
Zions First National Bank 566,509 7.97 284,186 4.00 426,279 6.00
California Bank & Trust 537,427 8.39 256,191 4.00 384,287 6.00

Tier I capital (to average assets)
The Company 1,576,175 6.56 720,599 3.00 1,200,999 5.00
Zions First National Bank 566,509 5.87 289,574 3.00 482,624 5.00
California Bank & Trust 537,427 6.60 244,200 3.00 407,000 5.00

21. RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company has a noncontributory defined benefit pen-
sion plan for eligible employees. Plan benefits are based on
years of service and employees’ compensation levels.
Benefits vest under the plan upon completion of five years
of vesting service. Plan assets consist principally of corpo-
rate equity, debt securities and cash investments. Plan ben-
efits are defined as a lump-sum cash value or an annuity at
retirement age.

During 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors approved
significant changes to the pension plan, which became effec-
tive January 1, 2003. The plan was amended so that new
employees will not be allowed to participate in the plan on
or after January 1, 2003. Benefit accruals for existing partic-
ipants will cease as of that date with the following grandfa-
thering exceptions. Participants age 55 and over with 10
years of service by December 31, 2002 may receive reduced
future earnings credits in accordance with a reduced sched-
ule. Participants age 55 and over with 10 years of service as

of March 31, 1997 will continue to receive future earnings
credits without reduction.

The following table presents the change in the plan’s benefit
obligation (in thousands):

2002 2001

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 135,032 117,514
Service cost 11,113 8,601
Interest cost 9,202 8,659
Plan amendments 501 615
Actuarial (gain) loss (8,116) 5,925
Curtailments (11,934) -
Benefits paid (7,784) (6,282)

Benefit obligation at end of year $ 128,014 135,032

Plan assets included 123,744 shares of Company common
stock at December 31, 2002 and 123,142 shares at
December 31, 2001. The total value of these shares was
approximately $4.9 million at December 31, 2002.
Dividends paid on these shares were approximately 
$99 thousand in 2002. 
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The following table presents the change in plan assets 
(in thousands):

2002 2001

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 119,033 119,758
Actual return on plan assets (17,253) (9,443)
Employer contributions - 15,000
Benefits paid (7,784) (6,282)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 93,996 119,033

The following table presents the plan’s funded status and a
reconcilement with the amounts recognized in the
Company’s consolidated balance sheets at December 31 
(in thousands):

2002 2001

Funded status $ (34,018) (15,999)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 38,602 32,300
Unrecognized prior service cost - (1,216)

Net amount recognized $ 4,584 15,085

Prepaid benefit cost $ - 15,085
Accrued benefit liability (33,901) -
Accumulated other comprehensive income-pretax 38,485 -

$ 4,584 15,085

Net periodic benefit cost recognized includes the following
components (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Service cost $ 11,113 8,601 7,026
Interest cost 9,202 8,659 8,137
Expected return on plan assets (10,398) (10,351) (12,059)
Amortization of prior service cost (404) (412) (403)
Amortization of net actuarial loss 1,299 - -
Recognized actuarial gain - - (632)

Net periodic benefit cost 10,812 6,497 2,069
Curtailment gain (311) - -

Total cost $ 10,501 6,497 2,069

For the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company rec-
ognized in other comprehensive income a minimum pen-
sion liability of $23.4 million, net of income tax benefit of
$15.1 million.

The weighted average discount rate used in determining the
pension benefit obligation was 6.75% in 2002 and 7.25%
in 2001. The rate of compensation increase was 4.00% for
2002 and 5.00% for 2001, and the expected long-term rate
of return was 8.60% for 2002 and 9.00% for 2001. Any net
transition asset or obligation and any unrecognized prior
service cost are being amortized on a straight-line basis.

Unrecognized gains and losses are amortized using the 
minimum recognition method.

The Company also is obligated under several unfunded
nonqualified supplemental retirement plans for certain cur-
rent and former employees. At December 31, 2002 and
2001, the Company’s liability included in accrued liabilities
totaled $16.0 million and $14.7 million, respectively for
these plans.

In addition to the Company’s defined benefit pension plan, the
Company sponsors a defined benefit health care plan that pro-
vides postretirement medical benefits to full-time employees
hired before January 1, 1993, who meet minimum age and
service requirements. The plan is contributory, with retiree
contributions adjusted annually, and contains other cost-shar-
ing features such as deductibles and coinsurance. Plan coverage
is provided by self-funding or health maintenance organiza-
tions (HMOs) options. Reductions in the Company’s obliga-
tions to provide benefits resulting from cost sharing changes
have been applied to reduce the plan’s unrecognized transition
obligation. In 2000, the Company increased its contribution
toward retiree medical coverage and permanently froze the
Company contributions. Retirees pay the difference between
the full premium rates and the capped Company contribution.

The following table presents the change in the plan’s benefit
obligation (in thousands):

2002 2001

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 7,152 8,914
Service cost 104 110
Interest cost 495 512
Actuarial (gain) loss 359 (1,079)
Benefits paid (609) (1,305)

Benefit obligation at end of year $ 7,501 7,152

The following table presents the plan’s funded status recon-
ciled with amounts recognized in the Company’s consoli-
dated balance sheets at December 31 (in thousands):

2002 2001

Funded status $ (7,501) (7,152)
Unrecognized net actuarial gain (2,103) (3,058)
Unrecognized prior service cost 170 255 

Net amount recognized $ (9,434) (9,955)

Accrued benefit liability $ (9,434) (9,955)
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Net periodic benefit cost recognized includes the following
components (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Service cost $ 104 110 265
Interest cost 495 512 767
Amortization of prior service cost 85 85 85
Amortization of net actuarial (gain) loss (596) (917) (441)

Net periodic benefit cost (credit) 88 (210) 676
Curtailment loss - - 940

Total cost (credit) $ 88 (210) 1,616

The weighted average discount rate used in determining the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was 6.75% at
December 31, 2002 and 7.25% at December 31, 2001.
Because the Company’s contribution rate is capped, there is
no effect from assumed increases or decreases in healthcare
cost trend rates.

The Company has a 401(k) plan (“PAYSHELTER”) under

which employees select from a nontax-deferred or tax-
deferred plan option along with several investment alterna-
tives. For 2002, employees could contribute from 1 to 15%
of compensation, which was matched up to 50% by the
Company for contributions up to 5% and 25% for contri-
butions greater than 5% up to 15%. Effective January 1,
2003, employees can contribute up to 50% of their earnings
to the plan which will be matched by the Company 100%
for the first 3% of employee contributions and 50% for the
next 2% of employee contributions. Also effective January 1,
2003, the Company added a profit sharing feature to the
PAYSHELTER plan. The profit sharing contribution is dis-
cretionary and the contributions may range from 0% to
4.5% of compensation based upon the Company’s return on
average common equity for the year. The Company’s contri-
butions to the plans amounted to $8.1 million in 2002, $6.6
million in 2001, and $5.5 million in 2000.

22. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying value and estimated fair value of principal financial instruments are summarized as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Estimated Estimated

Carrying value fair value Carrying value fair value
Financial assets:

Cash and due from banks $ 1,087,296 1,087,296 978,609 978,609
Money market investments 542,762 542,762 282,580 282,580
Investment securities 3,635,951 3,635,951 3,466,357 3,466,563
Loans, net 18,760,250 19,810,336 17,050,355 17,698,693
Derivatives in other assets 109,393 109,393 67,087 67,087

Total financial assets $ 24,135,652 25,185,738 21,844,988 22,493,532
Financial liabilities:

Demand, savings, and money market deposits $ 16,771,716 16,771,716 13,988,486 13,988,486
Time deposits 3,169,033 3,320,343 3,719,916 3,776,388
Foreign deposits 191,231 191,215 133,288 133,266
Securities sold, not yet purchased 203,838 203,838 87,255 87,255
Federal funds purchased and security

repurchase agreements 1,680,984 1,680,984 2,137,737 2,137,737
Derivatives in accrued liabilities 33,823 33,823 22,056 22,056
FHLB advances and other borrowings 547,818 584,860 730,724 747,166
Long-term debt 1,069,505 1,172,630 781,342 822,898

Total financial liabilities $ 23,667,948 23,959,409 21,600,804 21,715,252

FINANCIAL ASSETS

The estimated fair value approximates the carrying value of
cash and due from banks and money market investments.
For investment securities, the fair value is based on quoted
market prices where available. If quoted market prices are
not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices
of comparable instruments or a discounted cash flow model
based on established market rates. The fair value of fixed-rate
loans is estimated by discounting future cash flows using the
London Interbank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”) yield curve adjust-
ed by a factor which reflects the credit and interest rate risk

inherent in the loan. Variable-rate loans reprice with changes
in market rates. As such, their carrying amounts are deemed
to approximate fair value.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The estimated fair value of demand, savings and money
market deposits, securities sold not yet purchased, and fed-
eral funds purchased and security repurchase agreements,
approximates the carrying value. The fair value of time and
foreign deposits is estimated by discounting future cash
flows using the LIBOR yield curve. The fair value of fixed-
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rate FHLB advances is estimated by discounting future cash
flows using the LIBOR yield curve. Variable rate FHLB
advances reprice with changes in market rates. As such, their
carrying amounts approximate their fair value. Other bor-
rowings are not significant. The estimated fair value of the
subordinated notes included in long-term debt is based on a
quoted market price. The remaining long-term debt is 
not significant.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of the derivatives reflects the estimated
amounts that the Company would receive or pay to termi-
nate these contracts at the reporting date based upon pricing
or valuation models applied to current market information.
Interest rate swaps are valued using the market standard
methodology of netting the discounted future fixed cash
receipts (or payments) and the discounted expected variable
cash payments (or receipts). The variable cash payments (or
receipts) are based on an expectation of future interest rates
derived from observed market interest rate curves.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of commitments to extend credit and letters
of credit, based on fees currently charged for similar 
commitments, is not significant.

LIMITATIONS

These fair value disclosures represent management’s best esti-
mates, based on relevant market information and information
about the financial instruments. Fair value estimates are based
on judgments regarding future expected loss experience, cur-
rent economic conditions, risk characteristics of the various
instruments, and other factors. These estimates are subjective
in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant
judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision.
Changes in the above methodologies and assumptions could
significantly affect the estimates.

Further, the calculations do not represent the underlying
value of the Company. Other significant assets and liabili-

ties, which are not considered financial assets or liabilities
and for which no fair values have been estimated, include
premises and equipment, goodwill and other intangibles,
deferred taxes, and other liabilities.

23. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments represent components of an enterprise
about which separate financial information is available that
is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker
in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing per-
formance.

The Company manages its operations and prepares man-
agement reports with a primary focus on geographical area.
All segments presented, except for the segment identified 
as “Other” are based on commercial banking operations.
The operating segment identified as “Other” includes Zions
Bancorporation, certain e-commerce subsidiaries, other
smaller nonbank operating units and eliminations of trans-
actions between segments.

The accounting policies of the individual operating segments
are the same as those of the Company described in Note 1.
Transactions between operating segments are primarily con-
ducted at fair value, resulting in profits that are eliminated for
reporting consolidated results of operations. The Company
allocates centrally provided services to the business segments
based upon estimated usage of those services.

The Company initiated a program in 2002 to allocate
income between certain of its banking subsidiaries to better
match revenues from hedging strategies to the operating units
which gave rise to the exposures being hedged.  Allocated
income (expense) from this program included in net interest
income of the banking subsidiaries for 2002 is as follows:
Zions First National Bank – $(47.0) million, Nevada State
Bank – $9.9 million, National Bank of Arizona –
$10.1 million, Vectra Bank Colorado – $21.9 million, and
The Commerce Bank of Washington – $5.1 million.
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The following is a summary of selected operating segment information for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000 (in thousands):

Zions First The
National California National Vectra Commerce Consoli-
Bank and Bank & Nevada Bank of Bank Bank of dated

Subsidiaries Trust State Bank Arizona Colorado Washington Other Company

2002:
Net interest income $ 296,194 377,916 124,914 115,990 110,717 24,556 (15,145) 1,035,142
Provision for loan losses 41,300 17,000 4,750 1,950 5,000 1,070 809 71,879

Net interest income after
provision for loan losses 254,894 360,916 120,164 114,040 105,717 23,486 (15,954) 963,263

Noninterest income 199,727 78,435 28,071 19,115 34,222 1,719 15,525 376,814
Noninterest expense 310,097 238,180 81,854 69,033 100,123 10,257 49,384 858,928

Income from continuing 
operations before income
taxes and minority interest 144,524 201,171 66,381 64,122 39,816 14,948 (49,813) 481,149

Income tax expense (benefit) 42,420 81,035 22,607 25,481 14,189 5,300 (23,330) 167,702
Minority interest (1,153) - - - - - (2,507) (3,660)

Income from continuing operations 103,257 120,136 43,774 38,641 25,627 9,648 (23,976) 317,107
Loss on discontinued operations - - - - - - (28,460) (28,460)

Income before cumulative effect
adjustment 103,257 120,136 43,774 38,641 25,627 9,648 (52,436) 288,647

Cumulative effect adjustment - - - - - - (32,369) (32,369)

Net income (loss) $ 103,257 120,136 43,774 38,641 25,627 9,648 (84,805) 256,278

Assets $ 10,529,580 8,804,855 2,683,207 2,925,044 2,767,660 647,887 (1,792,544) 26,565,689
Net loans and leases1 6,714,289 6,129,171 1,849,704 1,978,623 1,917,504 320,958 129,594 19,039,843
Deposits 7,116,514 6,970,139 2,348,623 2,486,949 1,910,889 458,702 (1,159,836) 20,131,980
Shareholder’s equity 682,287 978,414 173,246 232,737 440,929 45,377 (179,147) 2,373,843

2001:
Net interest income $ 302,469 343,736 114,273 102,950 86,445 21,847 (21,956) 949,764
Provision for loan losses 41,900 9,250 10,080 1,500 9,350 1,278 (167) 73,191

Net interest income after
provision for loan losses 260,569 334,486 104,193 101,450 77,095 20,569 (21,789) 876,573

Noninterest income 234,798 91,175 23,719 16,123 27,490 1,203 17,680 412,188
Noninterest expense 286,789 251,659 79,951 64,110 94,253 9,429 49,902 836,093

Income from continuing 
operations before income 
taxes and minority interest 208,578 174,002 47,961 53,463 10,332 12,343 (54,011) 452,668

Income tax expense (benefit) 69,900 76,465 16,350 21,412 6,947 4,206 (33,413) 161,867
Minority interest (2,053) - - - - - (5,745) (7,798)

Income from continuing operations 140,731 97,537 31,611 32,051 3,385 8,137 (14,853) 298,599
Loss on discontinued operations - - - - - - (8,420) (8,420)

Income before cumulative effect
adjustment 140,731 97,537 31,611 32,051 3,385 8,137 (23,273) 290,179

Cumulative effect adjustment (5,318) (1,284) (616) - 59 - - (7,159)

Net income (loss) $ 135,413 96,253 30,995 32,051 3,444 8,137 (23,273) 283,020

Assets $ 8,580,293 8,366,328 2,480,884 2,605,665 2,639,118 529,395 (897,519) 24,304,164
Net loans and leases1 6,062,313 5,707,772 1,514,546 1,796,279 1,849,683 294,443 85,802 17,310,838
Deposits 5,318,078 6,772,735 2,139,606 2,193,050 1,763,613 381,623 (727,015) 17,841,690
Shareholder’s equity 636,266 988,327 160,953 210,920 439,115 38,256 (192,968) 2,280,869
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Zions First The
National California National Vectra Commerce Consoli-
Bank and Bank & Nevada Bank of Bank Bank of dated

Subsidiaries Trust State Bank Arizona Colorado Washington Other Company

2000:
Net interest income $ 227,057 297,153 101,685 92,300 89,094 19,991 (23,902) 803,378 
Provision for loan losses 8,250 - 10,060 3,570 9,112 819 - 31,811 

Net interest income after
provision for loan losses 218,807 297,153 91,625 88,730 79,982 19,172 (23,902) 771,567 

Noninterest income 151,990 43,585 23,488 14,092 20,223 1,472 (62,228) 192,622 
Noninterest expense 223,608 207,258 81,024 52,721 86,295 8,817 61,562 721,285 

Income from continuing 
operations before income
taxes and minority interest 147,189 133,480 34,089 50,101 13,910 11,827 (147,692) 242,904 

Income tax expense (benefit) 44,917 59,401 11,337 19,885 8,103 3,965 (67,947) 79,661 
Minority interest (2,142) - - - - - 3,676 1,534 

Income from continuing operations 104,414 74,079 22,752 30,216 5,807 7,862 (83,421) 161,709 
Loss on discontinued operations - - - - - - - - 

Income before cumulative effect
adjustment 104,414 74,079 22,752 30,216 5,807 7,862 (83,421) 161,709 

Cumulative effect adjustment - - - - - - - - 

Net income (loss) $ 104,414 74,079 22,752 30,216 5,807 7,862 (83,421) 161,709 

Assets $ 8,095,001 6,952,940 2,373,585 1,943,675 2,155,929 552,661 (134,348) 21,939,443 
Net loans and leases1 4,885,246 4,855,632 1,383,142 1,488,773 1,475,166 242,042 48,032 14,378,033 
Deposits 4,173,002 5,588,601 1,992,947 1,551,182 1,385,271 404,864 (25,884) 15,069,983 
Shareholder’s equity 459,951 714,322 176,168 160,925 390,252 33,226 (156,000) 1,778,844 

1 Net of unearned income and fees, net of related costs.
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24. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Financial information by quarter for 2002 and 2001 is as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Quarters

First Second Third Fourth Year
2002:

Gross interest income $ 364,990 368,682 366,620 355,627 1,455,919
Net interest income 256,210 259,044 261,306 258,582 1,035,142
Provision for loan losses 18,090 15,705 22,309 15,775 71,879
Noninterest income 93,826 101,605 74,815 106,568 376,814
Noninterest expense 205,254 215,708 219,158 218,808 858,928
Income from continuing operations

before income taxes and minority interest 126,692 129,236 94,654 130,567 481,149
Income from continuing operations 82,817 84,864 65,368 84,058 317,107
Income (loss) on discontinued operations (3,186) (2,789) (25,922) 3,437 (28,460)
Income before cumulative effect adjustment 79,631 82,075 39,446 87,495 288,647
Cumulative effect adjustment (32,369) - - - (32,369)
Net income 47,262 82,075 39,446 87,495 256,278

Net income per common share:
Basic:

Income from continuing operations $ 0.90 0.92 0.71 0.92 3.46
Income (loss) on discontinued operations (0.03) (0.03) (0.28) 0.04 (0.31)
Cumulative effect adjustment (0.35) - - - (0.35)
Net income 0.52 0.89 0.43 0.96 2.80

Diluted:
Income from continuing operations 0.89 0.92 0.71 0.92 3.44
Income (loss) on discontinued operations (0.03) (0.03) (0.28) 0.04 (0.31)
Cumulative effect adjustment (0.35) - - - (0.35)
Net income 0.51 0.89 0.43 0.96 2.78

2001:
Gross interest income $ 406,909 407,409 401,220 376,382 1,591,920
Net interest income 215,833 235,018 247,118 251,795 949,764
Provision for loan losses 12,772 12,235 21,470 26,714 73,191
Noninterest income 111,066 93,302 106,044 101,776 412,188
Noninterest expense 202,410 205,055 214,582 214,046 836,093
Income from continuing operations

before income taxes and minority interest 111,717 111,030 117,110 112,811 452,668
Income from continuing operations 72,314 74,035 77,330 74,920 298,599
Income (loss) on discontinued operations (413) (440) (4,533) (3,034) (8,420)
Income before cumulative effect adjustment 71,901 73,595 72,797 71,886 290,179
Cumulative effect adjustment (7,159) - - - (7,159)
Net income 64,742 73,595 72,797 71,886 283,020

Net income per common share:
Basic:

Income from continuing operations $ 0.82 0.80 0.84 0.81 3.27
Income (loss) on discontinued operations (0.01) - (0.05) (0.03) (0.09)
Cumulative effect adjustment (0.08) - - - (0.08)
Net income 0.73 0.80 0.79 0.78 3.10

Diluted:
Income from continuing operations 0.81 0.79 0.83 0.81 3.24
Income (loss) on discontinued operations (0.01) - (0.05) (0.03) (0.09)
Cumulative effect adjustment (0.08) - - - (0.08)
Net income 0.72 0.79 0.78 0.78 3.07
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25. PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND 2001

(In thousands) 2002 2001

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks $ 1,867 2,063
Interest-bearing deposits 55,935 12,778
Investment securities 212,862 9,144
Loans and other receivables, net 1,632 2,418
Other noninterest bearing investments 61,876 43,935
Investments in subsidiaries:

Commercial banks 2,552,641 2,473,056
Other operating companies 3,602 65,272
Nonoperating - Zions Municipal Funding, Inc.1 259,664 208,402

Receivables from subsidiaries:
Commercial banks 165,000 125,000
Other 14,422 15,848

Other assets 56,283 67,119

$   3,385,784 3,025,035

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accrued and other liabilities $       39,528 24,916
Commercial paper 291,566 309,000
Subordinated debt to subsidiaries 324,709 50,350
Long-term debt 356,138 359,900

Total liabilities 1,011,941 744,166

Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock 1,034,888 1,111,214
Accumulated other comprehensive income 46,214 59,951
Retained earnings 1,292,741 1,109,704

Total shareholders’ equity 2,373,843 2,280,869

$   3,385,784 3,025,035

1
Zions Municipal Funding, Inc. is a wholly-owned nonoperating subsidiary whose sole purpose is to hold a portfolio of municipal bonds, loans and leases.

The Company’s financial statements for the first quarter of
2002 were restated to reflect an impairment loss adjustment
determined during the second quarter of 2002. This
impairment charge resulted from the required adoption of
SFAS 142 as discussed in Note 9 and related to the impair-
ment in carrying value of certain e-commerce subsidiaries.
The impairment charge was recognized as a cumulative
effect adjustment. A reconciliation of originally reported
amounts to restated amounts follows (in thousands, except
per share amounts):

Restatement
As due to required

originally change in
reported Adjustments accounting

Cumulative effect adjustment $ - (32,369) (32,369)
Net income 79,631 (32,369) 47,262 

Net income per common share:
Basic $ 0.87 (0.35) 0.52 
Diluted 0.86 (0.35) 0.51 

Previously reported amounts have also been reclassified to
reflect the treatment of the operations of these e-commerce
subsidiaries as discontinued operations. See Note 15.
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000

Interest income – interest and fees on loans and securities $     13,330 9,988 18,034 
Interest expense – interest expense on borrowed funds 39,557 34,641 48,641 

Net interest loss (26,227) (24,653) (30,607)
Provision for loan losses 816 (417) - 

Net interest loss after provision for loan losses (27,043) (24,236) (30,607)

Other income:
Dividends from consolidated subsidiaries:

Commercial banks 272,250 254,438 163,046 
Other operating companies - - 1,000 

Investment securities gains, net 2,686 6,056 25,076 
Impairment loss on First Security Corporation common stock - - (96,911)
Other income 18,937 10,615 10,236 

293,873 271,109 102,447 

Expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits 13,429 14,018 9,311 
Merger related expense - 372 28,291 
Other operating expenses 16,486 12,782 5,661 

29,915 27,172 43,263 

Income before income tax benefit and undistributed income of consolidated subsidiaries 236,915 219,701 28,577 
Income tax benefit 35,946 29,429 60,661 

Income before equity in undistributed income of consolidated subsidiaries 272,861 249,130 89,238 
Equity in undistributed income of consolidated subsidiaries:

Commercial banks 69,262 50,164 78,628 
Other operating companies (95,310) (25,429) (12,832)
Nonoperating – Zions Municipal Funding, Inc. 9,465 9,155 6,675 

Net income $     256,278 283,020 161,709 
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income $   256,278 283,020 161,709 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Undistributed net (income) losses of consolidated subsidiaries 16,583 (33,890) (72,471)
Depreciation of premises and equipment 75 81 117 
Investment securities gains, net (2,686) (6,056) (25,076)
Impairment loss on First Security Corporation common stock - - 96,911 
Amortization of intangibles - 660 660 
Other (3,160) (23,992) (23,615)

Net cash provided by operating activities 267,090 219,823 138,235 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Net (increase) decrease in interest-bearing deposits (43,157) (7,424) 17,545 
Collection of advances to subsidiaries 129,745 21,885 12,846 
Advances to subsidiaries (168,319) (23,689) (32,325)
Proceeds from sale of investment securities available for sale 5,035 9,531 162,282 
Purchase of investment securities (196,392) (6,456) (1,065)
Increase of investment in subsidiaries (78,422) (237,584) (75,674)
Cash paid to reacquire minority interest - (66,044) - 
Other (813) 19,964 621 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (352,323) (289,817) 84,230 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net change in commercial paper and other borrowings under one year (17,434) 41,761 (146,421)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 339,952 200,000 - 
Payments on long-term debt (67,941) (67,100) (3,650)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 16,907 15,798 6,717 
Payments to redeem common stock (113,215) (46,462) (3,899)
Dividends paid (73,232) (73,899) (76,762)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 85,037 70,098 (224,015)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and due from banks (196) 104 (1,550)
Cash and due from banks at beginning of year 2,063 1,959 3,509 

Cash and due from banks at end of year $ 1,867 2,063 1,959 

The parent company paid interest of $36.5 million in 2002, $32.8 million in 2001, and $50.1 million in 2000.
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FORM 10-K
The Annual Report includes the materials required in Form 10-K filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.  The integration
of the two documents give shareholders and other interested parties timely and comprehensive information about the Company.  Portions of the Annual
Report are not required by the Form 10-K and are not filed as part of the Company’s Form 10-K.  Only the portions of the Annual Report referenced
in the Form 10-K cross-reference index are incorporated in the Form 10-K.  The report has not been approved or disapproved by the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission, nor has the Commission passed upon its accuracy or adequacy. 
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Yes X   No     
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Description of Business

Zions Bancorporation (“the Parent”) is a financial holding
company organized under the laws of Utah in 1955, and reg-
istered under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as
amended.  Zions Bancorporation and its subsidiaries (“the
Company”) own and operate six commercial banks with a total
of 416 offices.  The Company provides a full range of banking
and related services through its banking and other subsidiaries,
primarily in Utah, Idaho, California, Nevada, Arizona,
Colorado and Washington. Full-time equivalent employees
totaled 8,073 at year-end 2002. For further information about
the Company’s industry segments, see “Business Segment
Results” in Management’s Comments and Note 23 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  For further
information about the Company’s foreign operations, see
“Foreign Operations” in Management’s Comments.

Growth

While the Company’s internally generated growth remained
very strong during 2002, the Company also continued to
build the business through acquisitions that complement its
strategies and build on its core strengths. For information
about merger activities, see Note 3 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Products and Services

The Company focuses on maintaining community-minded
banking by strengthening its core business lines of retail bank-
ing, small and medium-sized business lending, residential mort-
gage, and investment activities. It operates six different banks in
eight western states; each bank operates under a different name
and each has its own chief executive officer and management
team. The banks provide a wide variety of commercial and retail
banking and mortgage lending products and services. The
Company provides commercial loans, lease financing, cash man-
agement, lockbox, customized draft processing, and other spe-
cial financial services for business and other commercial banking
customers. The Company provides a wide range of personal
banking services to individuals, including bankcard, student and
other installment loans and home equity lines of credit, check-
ing accounts, savings accounts, time certificates of various types
and maturities, trust services, safe deposit facilities, direct
deposit, and 24-hour ATM access. The Company also provides
services to key segments through its Women’s Financial, Private
Client Services, and Executive Banking Groups. 

In addition to these core businesses, the Company has built
specialized lines of business in capital markets and public
finance. The Company is also a leader in U.S. Small Business
Administration lending. Through its six bank subsidiaries, the

Company provides SBA 7(a) loans to small businesses through-
out the United States and is also one of the largest providers of
SBA 504 financing in the nation. The Company also owns an
equity interest in the Federal Agricultural Mortgage
Corporation (“Farmer Mac”) and is the nation’s top originator
of secondary market agricultural real estate mortgage loans
through Farmer Mac. The Company is a leader in municipal
finance advisory and underwriting services. It is also a leader in
the emerging electronic corporate bond trading market, and it
owns an equity interest in and is represented on the board of
Garban-Intercapital plc, a London Stock Exchange listed com-
pany that is a leader in electronic securities trading in the
United States. Four venture capital companies owned by the
Company provide early-stage capital, primarily for start-up
companies located in the Western United States. 

Competition

Zions Bancorporation and its subsidiaries operate in a highly
competitive environment due to the diverse financial services
and products they offer. Competitors include not only other
banks and thrift institutions, credit unions, and mutual funds,
but also insurance companies, finance companies, brokerage
firms, securities dealers, investment banking companies, and a
variety of other financial services and advisory companies.
Many of these competitors are not subject to the same regula-
tory restrictions as the Company. Most of these competitors
compete across geographic boundaries and provide customers
increasing access to meaningful alternatives to banking servic-
es in many significant products. These competitive trends are
likely to continue. 

Supervision and Regulation

On July 30, 2002, the Senate and the House of
Representatives of the United States (Congress) enacted the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, a law that addresses, among other
issues, corporate governance, auditing and accounting, execu-
tive compensation, and enhanced and timely disclosure of cor-
porate information. Effective August 29, 2002, as directed by
Section 302(a) of Sarbanes-Oxley, the Company’s chief execu-
tive officer and chief financial officer are each required to cer-
tify that the Company’s Quarterly and Annual Reports do not
contain any untrue statement of a material fact. The rules have
several requirements, including having these officers certify
that: they are responsible for establishing, maintaining and
regularly evaluating the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
controls; they have made certain disclosures to the Company’s
auditors and the audit committee of the Board of Directors
about internal controls; and they have included information 
in the Company’s Quarterly and Annual Reports about
theirevaluation and whether there have been significant
changes in the Company’s internal controls or in other factors
that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to
the evaluation.
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The Board of Directors of Zions Bancorporation has approved
a series of actions to strengthen and improve its already strong
corporate governance practices, including the adoption of new
Corporate Governance Guidelines, a Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics, and new charters for the Audit, Credit
Review, Executive Compensation, and Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committees.  More information on
Zions Bancorporation’s corporate governance practices will be
available on the Zions Bancorporation website at www.zions-
bancorporation.com.

The enactment of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (“the
GLB Act”) represented a pivotal point in the history of the
financial services industry. The GLB Act swept away large
parts of a regulatory framework that had its origins in the
Depression Era of the 1930s. Effective March 11, 2000, new
opportunities became available for banks, other depository
institutions, insurance companies and securities firms to enter
into combinations that permit a single financial services organ-
ization to offer customers a more complete array of financial
products and services. The GLB Act provides a new regulato-
ry framework through a financial holding company, which has
as its umbrella regulator the Federal Reserve Board (“FRB”).
Functional regulation of the financial holding company’s sep-
arately regulated subsidiaries is conducted by their primary
functional regulator. 

The GLB Act provides a federal right to privacy for non-public
personal information of individual customers. The Company,
including its subsidiaries, is also subject to certain state laws that
deal with the use and distribution of nonpublic personal infor-
mation.

Zions Bancorporation is a financial holding company and, as
such, is subject to regulation under the Bank Holding
Company Act of 1956, as amended (“the BHC Act”). The
BHC Act requires the prior approval of the FRB for a finan-
cial holding company to acquire or hold more than 5% voting
interest in any bank, and restricts interstate banking activities.
The BHC Act allows interstate bank acquisitions and inter-
state branching by acquisition anywhere in the country.

The BHC Act restricts the Company’s nonbanking activities to
those that are permitted for financial holding companies or
determined by the FRB to be financial in nature, incidental to
financial activities, or complementary to a financial activity.
The BHC Act does not place territorial restrictions on the
activities of nonbank subsidiaries of bank holding companies.
The Company’s banking subsidiaries are subject to limitations
with respect to transactions with affiliates.

The Company’s banking subsidiaries are also subject to various
requirements and restrictions in the laws of the United States
and in the states in which the banks operate. These include

restrictions on the amount of loans to a borrower and its affil-
iates, the nature and amount of their investments, their ability
to act as an underwriter of securities, the opening of branches
and the acquisition of other financial entities. The Company’s
subsidiary banks are subject to the provisions of the National
Bank Act or the banking laws of their respective states, are
under the supervision of, and are subject to periodic examina-
tion by, the Comptroller of the Currency (“OCC”) or their
respective state banking departments, and are subject to the
rules and regulations of the OCC, the FRB, and the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”). 

The FRB has established capital guidelines for financial hold-
ing companies. The OCC, the FDIC, and the FRB have also
issued regulations establishing capital requirements for banks
under federal law. Failure to meet capital requirements could
subject the Company and its subsidiary banks to a variety of
restrictions and enforcement remedies. See Note 20 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information
regarding capital requirements.

The U.S. federal bank regulatory agencies’ risk-capital guide-
lines are based upon the 1988 capital accord of the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision (“the BIS”). The BIS is a
committee of central banks and bank supervisors/regulators
from the major industrialized countries that develops broad
policy guidelines that each country’s supervisors can use to
determine the supervisory policies they apply. In January
2001, the BIS released a proposal to replace the 1988 capital
accord with a new capital accord that would set capital require-
ments for operational risk and refine the existing capital
requirements for credit risk and market risk exposures.
Operational risk is defined to mean the risk of direct or indi-
rect loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people and systems or from external events. The 1988 capital
accord does not include separate capital requirements for oper-
ational risk. In 2002 the BIS published proposed modifica-
tions to its January 2001 proposal. While the ultimate timing
for the new accord and the specifics of capital assessments for
addressing operational risk are uncertain, the BIS has stated
that its objective is to finalize a new capital accord in the fourth
quarter of 2003 and for member countries to implement the
new accord at year-end 2006. The Company expects that a
new capital accord addressing operational risk will eventually
be adopted by the BIS and implemented by the U.S. federal
bank regulatory agencies. 

Dividends payable by the subsidiary banks to Zions
Bancorporation are subject to various legal and regulatory
restrictions. These restrictions and the amount available for the
payment of dividends at year-end are summarized in Note 20
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery, and
Enforcement Act of 1989 provides that the Company’s bank
subsidiaries are liable for any loss incurred by the FDIC in
connection with the failure of an affiliated insured bank.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act
of 1991 prescribes standards for the safety and soundness of
insured banks. These standards relate to internal controls,
information systems, internal audit systems, loan documenta-
tion, credit underwriting, interest rate exposure, asset growth,
and compensation, as well as other operational and manage-
ment standards deemed appropriate by the federal banking
regulatory agencies.

The Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA”) requires banks to
help serve the credit needs in their communities, including
credit to low and moderate income individuals. Should the
Company or its subsidiaries fail to adequately serve their com-
munities, penalties may be imposed including denials of appli-
cations to add branches, relocate, add subsidiaries and affili-
ates, and merge with or purchase other financial institutions.
The GLB Act requires “satisfactory” or higher CRA compli-
ance for insured depository institutions and their financial
holding companies in order for them to engage in new finan-
cial activities.

On October 26, 2001, the President signed into law compre-
hensive anti-terrorism legislation known as the USA PATRI-
OT Act of 2001 (the “USA Patriot Act”).  Title III of the USA
Patriot Act substantially broadened the scope of U.S. anti-
money laundering laws and regulations by imposing signifi-
cant new compliance and due diligence obligations, creating
new crimes and penalties and expanding the extra-territorial
jurisdiction of the United States.  The U.S. Treasury
Department (“Treasury”) has issued a number of implement-
ing regulations which apply various requirements of the USA
Patriot Act to financial institutions such as the Company’s
bank and broker-dealer subsidiaries and mutual funds and pri-
vate investment companies advised or sponsored by the
Company’s subsidiaries.  Those regulations impose new obli-
gations on financial institutions to maintain appropriate poli-
cies, procedures and controls to detect, prevent and report
money laundering and terrorist financing.  Treasury is expect-
ed to issue a number of additional regulations, which will fur-
ther clarify the USA Patriot Act’s requirements.

Failure of a financial institution to comply with the USA
Patriot Act’s requirements could have serious legal and reputa-
tional consequences for the institution.  The Company has
adopted appropriate policies, procedures and controls to
address compliance with the requirements of the USA Patriot
Act under the existing regulations and will continue to revise
and update its policies, procedures and controls to reflect

changes required by the Act and Treasury’s regulations.

Regulators and Congress continue to enact rules, laws, and
policies to regulate the financial services industry and to pro-
tect consumers. The nature of these laws and regulations and
the effect of such policies on future business and earnings of
the Company cannot be predicted.

Government Monetary Policies

The earnings and business of the Company are affected not
only by general economic conditions, but also by fiscal and
other policies adopted by various governmental authorities.
The Company is particularly affected by the policies of the
FRB, which affects the national supply of bank credit. The
instruments and methods of monetary policy available to the
FRB include open-market operations in U.S. government
securities; adjustment of the discount rates or cost of bank bor-
rowings; imposing or changing reserve requirements against
member bank deposits; and imposing or changing reserve
requirements against certain borrowings by banks and their
affiliates. These methods are used in varying combinations to
influence the overall growth or contraction of bank loans,
investments and deposits, and the interest rates charged on
loans or paid for deposits.

In view of the changing conditions in the economy and the
effect of the FRB’s monetary policies, it is difficult to predict
future changes in loan demand, deposit levels and interest
rates, or their effect on the business and earnings of the
Company. FRB monetary policies have had a significant effect
on the operating results of commercial banks in the past and
are expected to continue to do so in the future.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company operates 415 domestic branches, of which 174
are owned and 241 are on leased premises. The Company also
leases its headquarters offices. Other operations facilities are
variously owned or leased. The annual rentals under long-term
leases for leased premises are determined under various formu-
las and factors, including operating costs, maintenance, and
taxes. For information regarding rental payments, see Note 19
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information contained in Note 19 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements is incorporated herein by
reference.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTANT’S 
COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCK-
HOLDER MATTERS

The Company’s common stock is traded on the NASDAQ
National Market under the symbol “ZION”.  The last report-
ed sale price of the common stock on NASDAQ on February
19, 2003 was $41.96 per share. 

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the
high and low sale prices of the Company’s common stock, as
quoted on NASDAQ:

2002 2001

High Low High Low

1st Quarter $ 59.46 $ 48.32 $ 64.00 $ 45.75

2nd Quarter 59.65 49.54 59.55 50.26

3rd Quarter 55.34 42.30 60.04 50.23

4th Quarter 44.37 34.14 53.61 42.30

As of February 19, 2003, there were 6,636 holders of record of
the Company’s common stock.

Frequency and amount of dividends paid during the last two
years:

1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

2002 $.20 $.20 $.20 $.20

2001 $.20 $.20 $.20 $.20

In January 2003, the Board of Directors approved a dividend
of $0.21 per share payable on February 26, 2003. 

PART III

ITEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Within the 90-day period prior to the filing of this report, an
evaluation was carried out under the supervision and with the
participation of the Company’s management, including the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s dis-
closure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-14(c)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). Based on that
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that the design and operation of these dis-
closure controls and procedures were effective. There have
been no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls
or in other factors that could significantly affect these controls
subsequent to the date of their evaluation.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATE-
MENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON
FORM 8-K

The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and report
of independent auditors are set forth on pages 61-101.

Financial Statement Schedules – All financial statement sched-
ules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission are
not required under the related instructions, the required infor-
mation is contained elsewhere in the Form 10-K, or the sched-
ules are inapplicable and have therefore been omitted.

Exhibits – The index of exhibits and any exhibits filed as part
of the 2002 Form 10-K are accessible at no cost on the
Company’s website at www.zionsbancorporation.com or
through the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission’s website at www.sec.gov.  Copies of exhibits may
also be requested from the Company’s investor relations
department. 

Reports on Form 8-K filed during the fourth quarter of 2002
and through the date of this Form 10-K filing:

October 4, 2002 – Item 9. Exhibit 99.  A copy of a press
release dated October 3, 2002 reporting on charges related to
expense reduction plans and impaired investments.

October 21, 2002 – Items 5 and 7.  Exhibit 99.1.  A copy of
a press release dated October 17, 2002 announcing third
quarter 2002 earnings with additional statements of income
by quarter.

November 14, 2002 – Items 7 and 9. Exhibits 99.1 and 99.2.
Certifications, dated November 14, 2002, of Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, Harris H. Simmons, and Chief
Financial Officer, Doyle L. Arnold, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

January 23, 2003 – Item 9. Exhibit 99.  A copy of a press
release dated January 23, 2003 announcing fourth quarter
2002 earnings.
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SIGNATURES
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CERTIFICATION OF 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Harris H. Simmons, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Zions
Bancorporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not con-
tain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this annual report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and
other financial information included in this annual report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condi-
tion, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are respon-
sible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14
and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to
ensure that material information relating to the regis-
trant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particular-
ly during the period in which this annual report is
being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure
controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days
prior to the filing date of this annual report (the
“Evaluation Date”); and

Date:   March 20, 2003

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proce-
dures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation
Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have dis-
closed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the regis-
trant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal controls which could adversely affect the regis-
trant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial data and have identified for the registrant’s
auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls;
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves man-
agement or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indi-
cated in this annual report whether there were significant
changes in internal controls or in other factors that could
significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date
of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective
actions with regard to significant deficiencies and materi-
al weaknesses.

/s/ Harris H. Simmons
Harris H. Simmons, Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION OF 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Doyle L. Arnold, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Zions
Bancorporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not con-
tain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this annual report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and
other financial information included in this annual report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condi-
tion, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are respon-
sible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14
and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to
ensure that material information relating to the regis-
trant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particular-
ly during the period in which this annual report is
being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure
controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days
prior to the filing date of this annual report (the
“Evaluation Date”); and

Date:   March 20, 2003

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proce-
dures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation
Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have dis-
closed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the regis-
trant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal controls which could adversely affect the regis-
trant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial data and have identified for the registrant’s
auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls;
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves man-
agement or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indi-
cated in this annual report whether there were significant
changes in internal controls or in other factors that could
significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date
of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective
actions with regard to significant deficiencies and materi-
al weaknesses.

/s/ Doyle L. Arnold
Doyle L. Arnold, Executive Vice 
President and Chief Financial Officer
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